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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We"), | have the
pleasure to present to you this annual report (the “Annual
Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (“Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, 2019 coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19 Pandemic”) has spread across the globe and caused
an unprecedented impact on the global economy. With the
committed efforts of medical research institutions of various
countries, vaccines have been developed and successively put into
use, leading to clearer signs of economic recovery. Compared
with other countries in the world, Mainland China was among
the fastest countries to effectively control the pandemic within
the country in the first quarter of 2020. In Mainland China, the
negative impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic resulted in shrinkage
of GDP by more than 5% for the first quarter of 2020. However,
under strict preventive measures and consorted efforts, the
outbreak of COVID-19 Pandemic was under control with trades
and business activities gradually picking up during the second
quarter of 2020. To ensure economic recovery, the central
government had provided an accommodative monetary policy and
the necessary fiscal stimulus. Despite the Sino-US trade conflict
continued and the worldwide COVID-19 Pandemic, Mainland
China became the first major economy to show economic
recovery and recorded growth as compared to the previous year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a total turnover
of approximately HK$103.8 million (2020: approximately
HK$351.6 million). The net loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$36.7 million (2020: HK$35.3
million), representing a slight increase of approximately HK$1.4
million or 4%.
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The increase in loss for the Reporting Period was mainly the
results of (i) the significant drop in turnover for the Reporting
Period; and (ii) the increase in finance costs as more loans were
obtained. The above was partly offset by the recovery of the
Mainland China property market from the last reporting period,
which resulted in an aggregate fair value gain on the Group’s
investment properties in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) amounted to HK$24,950,000 (2020: fair value loss of
HK$22,758,000) upon the revaluation of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC as of the end of the Reporting Period.

Loss per share for the Reporting Period was HK3.76 cents.

The consolidated net assets value of the Group as at 31 March
2021 was approximately HK$1,586 million (2020: approximately
HK$1,516 million). The consolidated net assets value per share as
at 31 March 2021 was HK$1.62 per share based on
977,880,400 shares in issue, as compared to HK$1.55 per share
based on 977,880,400 shares in issue as at 31 March 2020.

The Group’s financial performance primarily arose from the sale
of properties, rental income from investment properties, sale of
medical equipment, sale of home security and automation
products and income from hotel operations.

For the property development and investment segment, the
Group maintained a prudent land acquisition policy and focused
on quality and profitability of projects. No new land was acquired
during the Reporting Period, and the Group focused on the
development projects in Kaifeng and Haikou, Mainland China.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend (2020: Nil) in respect of the Reporting Period.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

OUTLOOK

Despite signs of alleviation of the COVID-19 Pandemic in certain
regions and rollout of vaccines, the pandemic may continue to
retard economic recovery in some major economies and bring
uncertainties to the globe extensively in the near future. Also,
although the new US administration is seemed comparatively
favourable for halting escalation of the Sino-US trade tensions,
the complications caused by COVID-19 Pandemic and other
geopolitical dynamics may fuel political volatility. Nevertheless, we
remain cautiously optimistic about the Group’s prospect in the
coming reporting period.

Our team has extensive experience in property development, and
has witnessed the ups and downs and periodic fluctuations of the
market. We believe that with the active efforts of all employees
of the Group, the Group can overcome current difficulties,
improve operating performance, and gradually implement the
strategy to achieve steady and long-term development of the
Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the directors of the Company (“Directors”), | would
like to express my heartfelt thanks for the long-term support and
trust of the Company’s shareholders, business partners and
customers. | would also like to thank my colleagues for their
dedication, hard work and continuous commitment over the past
few years in aiding the Group to achieve outstanding
performance. The Group will carry on dedicating its efforts
towards the Group’s long-term development and hence deliver
sustainable returns to the Company’s shareholders.

Tjia Boen Sien
Managing Director and Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2019 CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC (“COVID-19
PANDEMIC") RESPONSE
From early 2020, the Group has taken steps to protect the health

and safety of our workforce, their families,

local suppliers and

neighbouring communities while ensuring a safe environment for
operations to continue as usual. For example:

measures to maximise social distancing and staff protection
within the offices;

meetings held off-site or by conference calls or video
conference as far as possible;

cancellation of all non-essential travel;

flexible and remote working plans for employees;
restrictions on office access and temperature screening;
self-isolation following travel, development of symptoms, or
interaction with any confirmed case of COVID-19 Pandemic
and requirement to undergo a coronavirus test as and when

necessary at the Group's cost; and

increased inventory of face mask, hand sanitiser and hygiene
supplies and increased focus on cleaning and sanitisation.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group’s major business segments during the year ended
31 March 2021 (“Reporting Period”) comprise:

(a)

(@

the property development and investment business segment
is engaged in property development of residential and
commercial properties and the holding of investment

properties;

the trading business segment is engaged in the trading of
medical equipment and home security and automation
products, including the provision of related installation; and

the “others”
of a hotel.

segment comprises, principally, the operation

The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March
2021 of approximately HK$103,799,000 (2020: HK$351,614,000),
representing a significant decrease of approximately 70% as
compared to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DN

Property development and investment business
The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March
2021 from this segment of approximately HK$45,300,000 (2020:

HK$302,170,000),

representing a significant decrease of

approximately 85% as compared with last year. The turnover
generated from this segment arises from the sales of properties in

The People’s Republic of China (the

“PRC"”) and rental income

earned from investment properties located in the PRC.

(i)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

Sales of properties

Turnover decreased significantly from approximately
HK$282,301,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$24,454,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021, representing a significant decrease of approximately
91%. There was a one-off sale recognised in the last
reporting period from the sale of the entire Zhu Ji Lane
("Br¥ B ") project in Kaifeng (total saleable area of
approximately 13,000 square metres (“sg.m.”)) to a single
customer at a consideration of RMB160 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$176 million) which did not recur in the
Reporting Period. In the Reporting Period, the sales were
mainly contributed by the sales of two shops at Century
Place in Kaifeng, the PRC (“Century Place”) and certain
remaining residential units at World Expo Plaza in Kaifeng,
the PRC ("World Expo”).

The process of seeking potential buyers for the remaining
properties was delayed due to the general slowdown in the
property market in the PRC and the domestic property
market was basically frozen due to the impact of the
COVID-19 Pandemic. During the vyear, the Group had
deferred the pre-sale arrangement for the residential area of
Section G of Century Place, Kaifeng, the PRC. The pre-sale
commenced since May 2021, and the related sales revenue
will be recognised during the year ending 31 March 2022,
subject to the progress of the construction and completion
of sales.
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(ii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

For other remaining units in Haikou and Kaifeng, the PRC,
the Group has been actively seeking potential buyers, in
particular, the commercial project located in Haikou City,
Hainan Province, the PRC. After taking into consideration of
the rise and development of Hainan, the Group has
planned to apply to the relevant local government authority
for the optimisation and redevelopment of the project
located in Haikou City in order to generate a greater
economic return to the Group. The outcome of the
discussion regarding such plan has not been reached as of
the date of this report. In the event that any agreement or
contract with any third party is reached, the Group will
comply with the relevant requirements of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Rental income from investment properties
Turnover from rental income increased from approximately
HK$19,869,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$20,846,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021, representing a slight increase of approximately 5%.
The increase was because of a one-month rental concession
provided to the shopping mall tenants in Kaifeng, the PRC
due to the COVID-19 Pandemic in February 2020, while no
such rental concession was provided in this Reporting
Period.

Segment operating profit generated from this segment during the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$13,375,000
(2020: HK$5,069,000), which represents a significant increase by
approximately 164% as compared to last year. This is mainly due
to the significant increase in fair value gain on investment
properties (before deferred tax) to approximately HK$24,950,000
(2020: loss of HK$22,758,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Trading business

The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March
2021 from this segment of approximately HK$49,104,000 (2020:
HK$49,444,000), representing a slight decrease of approximately
0.7% as compared with last year.

The turnover generated from this segment arises from the trading
of medical equipment, wellness and pandemic prevention
products and home security and automation products, including
the provision of the related installation services.

(i) Trading of medical equipment, wellness and

pandemic prevention products

Turnover increased from approximately HK$28,463,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$34,599,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 22%. The
increase was because of the sales of newly-introduced
wellness and pandemic prevention products, including
surgical masks and air purifiers during the Reporting Period.
The spread of COVID-19 Pandemic also caused the increase
in awareness and demand for medical products.

(ii) Trading of home security and automation

products

Turnover decreased from approximately HK$20,981,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$14,505,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately 31%. The
decrease was because of the drop in demand for security
products during the COVID-19 Pandemic because some
potential projects in the PRC have been deferred due to the
lock down policy.

Segment operating profit generated from this segment during the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$988,000 (2020:
HK$6,438,000 (restated)). The decrease was due to the drop in
sales of home security and automation products in the PRC
market as mentioned above during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

"Others” business, principally operation of a hotel
The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March
2021 from this segment of approximately HK$9,395,000 (2020:
Nil (restated)), representing an increase of 100% as compared
with last year. The turnover generated from this segment arises
mainly from the operation of a hotel. The hotel was opened in
January 2020. The Group operated one hotel, namely Holiday Inn
Express Kaifeng City Center (“Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng")
during the Reporting Period with a turnover of approximately
HK$9.4 million.

Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng is located in the city centre of
Kaifeng, with a total gross floor area of approximately 14,000
sg.m.. It consists of 243 guest rooms, including 100 king bed
standard rooms, 106 single bed standard rooms, 18 king bed
superior rooms, 18 single bed superior rooms and 1 suite. There
are also 3 meeting rooms with a total gross floor area of
approximately 460 sqg.m..

The PRC Government imposed lockdowns in some provinces with
strict social distancing measures during the COVID-19 Pandemic.
Hence, Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng temporarily closed its food
and beverage facilities in February and March 2020. As most of
the cities in the PRC have substantially eased or lifted domestic
travel restrictions and have resumed normal social activities since
the second quarter of 2020, the business of Holiday Inn Express
Kaifeng has been gradually recovering. While room rates
remained depressed, the occupancy levels in Holiday Inn Express
Kaifeng have started to rebuild throughout the rest of 2020 with
demand being led by the domestic retail segment. Nevertheless,
the resurgence of COVID-19 cases from November 2020 onwards
has translated to slower business pickup with cancellations in
rooms and restaurants reservations.

Segment operating loss generated from this segment during the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$5,339,000
(2020: HK$5,715,000 (restated)). The loss was mainly due to
depreciation expense of the hotel and the operating loss of the
hotel operation.

The decrease of segment loss was because a whole-year
operation was noted in the Reporting Period compared to only
one-month of operation in the last reporting period as the hotel
operation commenced in January 2020 and was temporarily
closed for around two months in the last reporting period.
However, the increase in revenue was totally offset by the
increase in full-year depreciation in this Reporting Period.
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The net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$36,738,000 as compared with the net loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 of
approximately HK$35,296,000. The slight increase in loss was due
to (i) the significant drop in turnover for the Reporting Period,;
and (ii) the in finance costs as more
obtained. The above was partly offset by the recovery of the
PRC’s property market from the last reporting period, which
resulted in an aggregate fair value gain on the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC amounted to HK$24,950,000
(2020: fair value loss of HK$22,758,000) upon the revaluation of
the Group's investment properties in the PRC as of the end of
the Reporting Period.

increase loans were

Loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 was

approximately HK3.76 cents.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s turnover
amounted to approximately HK$104 million, decreased by
approximately 70% as compared with last year. Such decrease
was mainly contributed by the sale of the entire Zhu Ji Lane (”Zk
B ") project (total saleable area of approximately 13,000 sg.m.)
to a single customer in the last reporting period. The sales during
this Reporting Period mainly arose from the sales of the
remaining units of the Group’s existing projects. No new project
was launched to market during the Reporting Period. The
decrease was partly offset by the increase in turnover contributed
by the new hotel operation.

Turnover generated from property development and investment
business, trading business and others business amounted to
approximately HK$45 million, HK$49 million and HK$10 million,
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 85%, a
decrease of approximately 1% and an increase of approximately
100%, respectively, as compared with the last reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit margin

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s gross profit
margin was approximately 44.8%, increased by approximately 21
percentage points as compared with last year's 23.8%. This was
mainly driven by the fact that the proportion of rental income
among turnover of the property development and investment
segment is larger in this Reporting Period than last year,
increasing from 7% to 46% in that segment. The gross profit
margin of rental income was much higher than that of sales of
properties because only minimal cost was incurred for the
property rental business, with the gross profit margin of over
90%. As a result, the overall gross profit margin was higher in
this Reporting Period.

Other operating expenses, net

The amount decreased from approximately HK$20.7 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately HK$11.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021. Prior year's amount mainly
represented the aggregate fair value loss on the equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$14.8 million. Such loss decreased to approximately HK$5.9
million in the Reporting Period. This year’s amount mainly
represented the impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables totalling approximately HK$7.7 million.

Share of profits and losses of associates

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s share of profits
of associates amounted to approximately HK$2.0 million, as
compared with the share of losses of associates amounted to
approximately HK$1.8 million during the last reporting period,
which was due to the disposal of the loss-making associates,
Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (now known as
Smart City Development Holdings Limited) (“DCIHL"”) and its
subsidiaries, in June 2019. No further losses of DCIHL and its
subsidiaries were shared by the Group since then. On the other
hand, in April 2018, we established an associate engaging in the
trading of software licences. This new associate has contributed a
share of profit to the Group in the Reporting Period, where a
share of loss was recorded in the last reporting period.
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Liquidity, financial resources and gearing ratio

During the Reporting Period, the Group maintained a healthy
liquidity position with working capital financed mainly by internal
resources and also other borrowings. The Group adopted a
prudent cash and financial management policy.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$2,391,039,000, which were financed by total
liabilities, shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$804,617,000, approximately HK$1,589,401,000
and approximately HK$2,979,000 (debit balance), respectively. The
Group’s current ratio as at 31 March 2021 was 2.24 as
compared with 2.61 as at 31 March 2020.

Gearing ratio is calculated by the total interest-bearing debts less
cash and cash equivalents divided by the total equity as at the
end of the respective reporting periods and multiplied by 100%.
The Group had a net gearing ratio of approximately 29% as at
31 March 2021 (2020: 27%). We analysed the maturity profiles
of our borrowings and manage our liquidity level to ensure a
sufficient cash flow to service our indebtedness and meet cash
requirements arising from our business. We will explore various
financing opportunities to improve our capital structure and
reduce our cost of capital.

Capital expenditure
Total capital expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$11,653,000.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

Commitments
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, of approximately
HK$9,363,000.

Charges on group assets

Details of the charged assets of the Group are set out in note 25
of the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Treasury policies

The Group had adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year ended 31 March
2021. The Group strives to reduce its exposures to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the
financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time
to time.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to balances denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which mainly arise from certain entities’
foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities for
the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy to eliminate the currency exposures against changes in
exchange rates of RMB against HKD. However, management
monitors the related foreign currency exposures closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.

PROSPECTS

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

Looking forward to 2021, as COVID-19 vaccines become available
and their inoculation rates rise, the Board estimates the pace of
recovery of economic activities will speed up accordingly.

Since late January 2020, travel restrictions and other public health
measures including the extension of Chinese new year holiday
and quarantine requirements for travellers have been imposed in
various areas in China due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, as a result
of which some staff of the Group were restricted from business
travelling or otherwise returning to work after the holiday. The
prolonged effect of the epidemic and the public health measures
have adversely affected the Group’s hotel business in Kaifeng.
Going forward, the Group will closely take note of the
development of the COVID-19 Pandemic and its impact on the
Group's businesses, and will proactively take preventive measures
to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the Group's
businesses. As the COVID-19 Pandemic has greatly increased the
public awareness of the importance of health and hygiene, the
Group’s medical business has demonstrated capability to maintain
normal operation and stable performance notwithstanding the
challenges posed by COVID-19 Pandemic to medical operators.
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The Group will leverage its experience in the health and medical
industry and continue to explore suitable investment and
acquisition opportunities which are in line or may create synergy
with the Group’s existing businesses.

Property development and investment

In Mainland China, if the COVID-19 Pandemic is under control for
the rest of 2021, the economy is expected to continue to
recover. It is also expected that the PRC Government will
continue to provide fiscal stimulus and accommodative monetary
policy to support economic recovery and growth. The property
market, in particular the residential property sector, will be
resilient in the long term.

On 9 June 2005, the Group was granted the land use rights of a
development site in Long Ting District of the city of Kaifeng,
Henan Province, the PRC, which has been developed into a
residential and commercial complex with an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 210,500 sg.m., known as “Century Place,
Kaifeng”. Up to the date of this report, the construction of a
gross floor area of approximately 190,000 sq.m. has been
completed and achieved a total sales contract sum of
approximately RMB767 million. The remaining part of the land
(Section G) is under construction, and it is expected that the
construction will be completed by the last quarter of 2021 and
the pre-sale has already started in the second quarter of 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The unsold area at the Century Place, Kaifeng consists of the
following:

EEENWR DN

At LSAERREEREREATEE

CURRENT USE AREA
EA AR [k
(approximately sgq.m.)
(B4 F 75 0K)
Section A Investment properties — Shops (leased out) 53,600
AR REWE —BH(EdA)
Section B Properties held for sales — Apartments 200
BI& FEWE — 18
Car park 78
BE5
Section C Properties held for sales — Villas 6,000
Clz TEME — HIE
Section D Properties held for sales — Offices 1,200
D@ TEME — PR=E
Car park 10
BEIS
Section E Properties held for sales — Shops 350
El@ FTEWE —BW
Section F Properties held for sales — Shops 11,100
Fl& TEME — &
Car park 89
(EER
Section G Properties held for sales under development 20,500
— Apartments and shops
G BRPGEDE — ABREH

The Group plans to sell Section C together with Section G as
these two sections are adjacent to each other and it is believed
that the synergy effect can bring a higher return to the Group.
Up to the date of this report, the discussions regarding any
potential sales remained preliminary and no formal proposal has
been put forward by any third party to the Group and no legally
binding agreement or contract relating to such business
cooperation has been entered into by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. The outcome of any discussion on such business
cooperation is not known as of the date of this report and in the
event that any agreement or contract regarding the possible
business cooperation with the aforementioned third party is
reached, the Company will comply with the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules.
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Up to the date of this report, the total contract sum from the
pre-sale of Section G properties amounted to approximately
RMB21 million (equivalent to approximately HK$25 million).

On 16 February 2012, the Group successfully won a bid for the
acquisition of land use right of a residential and commercial site
in the city of Kaifeng, the PRC, which has been developed into a
residential and commercial complex with an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 95,000 sq.m., known as “World Expo,
Kaifeng”. Up to the date of this report, this project has been
completed and achieved a total sales contract sum of
approximately RMB557 million.

The unsold area at the World Expo, Kaifeng consists of the
following:

BEEAREAR  GERVEESRANSTEY
A AR 21,000,0007T (FHE F#725,000,000
BIT) °
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I 2 A — BT R EEE495,000F 75
KZEERBERAER  2EA BHEHEE
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REtEESHARLERNBRENATEA

CURRENT USE AREA
EAAR [iE
(approximately sq.m.)
(BEA)F 75 K)
Commercial Section A Property, plant and equipment — Hotel 14,000
EAAR M - BENRE — BE
Commercial Section B Properties held for sales — Shops 8,900
& A B FTEWE —BE
Residential Blocks 1-3 Properties held for sales — Apartments 7,100
F=E1-31& TFEME — 0B
Car park 147
ZE5

During the year, the Group has reclassified the original animation
centre property from “property, plant and equipment” to
“completed properties held for sales”. The Group has terminated
the animation business and has been seeking potential buyer for
the original animation centre property together with the
remaining properties at World Expo, Kaifeng, the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In Mainland China, the pace of economic growth is likely to be
slower than in previous years due to factors including the Sino-US
trade conflict and the severe impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic.
However, it is expected that the PRC Government will provide
necessary fiscal stimulus and formulate accommodative monetary
policy to maintain stable economic growth. The Board remains
optimistic about the property market in Mainland China. With its
good experience in the property market of the PRC, the Group
may acquire additional land to enrich the Group’s land reserve,
specifically in the Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater
Bay Area, which is adjacent to Hong Kong. However, the Group
has no specific investment plan in relation to any particular
project as at the date of this report. The Board has been actively
seeking potential buyers for the remaining properties in the PRC.
In the event that any agreement or contract regarding the
possible business cooperation with any third party is reached, the
Group will comply with the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Formation of an investment company for the property
investment and/or redevelopment in Hong Kong

On 15 October 2018, the Group has entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Excel Castle
International Limited (“Excel Castle”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), pursuant to which the Group
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the subscription shares,
representing 6% of the enlarged issued share capital of Excel
Castle at a consideration of US$900,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.0 million) (“Subscription”). On the same
date, the Group, Excel Castle and Southern Victory Investments
Limited (“SVIL"), a company incorporated in the BVI, have
entered into a shareholders’ agreement (“Shareholders’
Agreement”) governing the affairs of Excel Castle and the
provision of the shareholder's loan with an amount up to
HK$62,980,000 by the Group, which has taken effect on the
completion date of the Subscription.

Excel Castle is an investment holding company to hold directly a
company incorporated in Hong Kong that is engaged in the
business of investment holding, property investment and/or
redevelopment in Hong Kong and which in turn holds eight other
wholly-owned subsidiaries (together with Excel Castle, collectively
referred to as the “Excel Castle Group”).
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Each of SVIL and the Group agreed to make available the
maximum contributions to Excel Castle of approximately HK$987
million and HK$63 million, respectively by way of shareholders’
loans in various instalments in such amounts in proportion to the
respective shareholdings on such dates as from time to time to be
determined by the board of directors of Excel Castle for the
purpose of financing the business of the Excel Castle Group and/
or the redevelopment project of the Excel Castle Group. The
transaction was completed on 9 November 2018.

On 4 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with SVIL to acquire a further 2% of the issued share
capital of Excel Castle from SVIL at a cash consideration of
HK$4,194,000. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group increased its shareholder’s loans to Excel Castle by
HK$24,160,000 according to the Group’s equity interest in Excel
Castle. On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with SVIL to acquire a further 2% of the
issued share capital of Excel Castle from SVIL at a cash
consideration of HK$3,969,000. Since then, the Group held 10%
issued share capital of Excel Castle. During the Reporting Period,
the Group also increased its shareholder’s loans to Excel Castle by
HK$1,968,000 according to the Group's equity interest in Excel
Castle. The Directors considered the acquisition provided the
Group with an opportunity to increase its investment in Excel
Castle with a view to being benefited from the long-term returns
from future revenue from the property development. On 31
March 2021, the Group also entered into a supplemental
shareholders’ agreement with SVIL to revise the maximum
contribution amounts by way of shareholders’ loans from both
shareholders to HK$80 million by the Group and HK$716 million
by SVIL.

As the Group does not have significant influence over Excel
Castle, the investment is classified as an equity investment at fair
value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2021, the total investment made by the Group
was approximately HK$80 million.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, Excel Castle Group has
one property redevelopment project in Tsim Sha Tsui (“TST
Property”). The old commercial building has been demolished
and the redevelopment works have commenced. The TST Property
will be developed into a modern commercial building with larger
saleable area. The whole redevelopment project is expected to be
completed in 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Excel Castle Group was approximately HK$51,050,000
(2020: HK$50,407,000).

Formation of companies for the property investment
and/or redevelopment in Shanghai

In 2019, the Group has invested in two property projects in
Shanghai, being the property redevelopment of residential
apartments at Wuyi Road, Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC
("Project Embassy”) and property redevelopment of offices and
carparks at West Huaihai Road, Changning District, Shanghai, the
PRC (“Project Stone”). The total cost of investments on these
two projects as at 31 March 2021 were approximately HK$21
million.

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate carrying amount of these
two projects was approximately HK$16,601,000 (2020:
HK$16,493,000).

Project Embassy is a low-rise building in Shanghai located next to
the Embassy of Belgium. The building contains eight apartments
with a total gross floor area of approximately 867 sq.m.. It is
co-invested with an independent third party through a company
registered in BVI in which the Group has 10% equity interest.
During the Reporting Period, 3 out of 8 units were sold. The
remaining 5 units were sold after the Reporting Period. It is
expected that the Group will realise this investment in the next
reporting period.

Project Stone is an office building, named Shanghai City Point. It
is located in a grade A mixed-use building in Changning District,
the PRC. Project Stone acquired four floors of the building with a
total gross floor area of approximately 6,668 sq.m.. This project is
co-invested with the same independent third party as Project
Embassy through a company registered in BVI in which the Group
has 5% equity interest. During the year, all the properties under
Project Stone were leased to third parties for rental income.

As the Group does not have significant influence over Project
Stone and Project Embassy, the investments are classified as
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss.
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The Group also co-invested with an independent third party in
the Starway Parkview South Station Hotel project (“Project
Parkview"), which is located in Xuhui West Bund area, adjacent
to Shanghai Botanical Garden. The Group has 30% equity
interest which is accounted for as an associate. The hotel was
built in 2003 with a total gross floor area of approximately 7,319
sg.m. and 56 rooms. The hotel was converted into 66-room
serviced apartments with plenty of shared common area
combined with mixed retail, catering, leisure and modern gym
and it was renamed as “Cohost West Bund”, a co-living serviced
apartment in Shanghai. Rental income from Project Parkview has
substantially increased as compared to the last reporting period.
The Group and its co-investor have been seeking potential buyers
for Project Parkview.

In anticipation of the uncertain and challenging economic
environment and volatility in the market ahead, the Group will
continue to adopt a cautious and proactive approach in
managing its core investments and to look for sound and stable
investment opportunities to produce sustainable returns for the
Company’s shareholders.

Participation in a real estate investment fund

On 23 April 2019, the Group has entered into a general-partner
shareholders’ agreement with Gusto Brave Limited, a representing
entity of Pamfleet Group (“Pamfleet”) (which is a member of
Schroders Capital), and Pamfleet China GP Il Limited (“Pamfleet
China”) to act as a general partner of a fund manager for
property investment.

The Group owns 30% equity interest in Pamfleet China. Pamfleet
is an independent and privately-owned real estate investment
advisor with offices in Hong Kong, Singapore and Shanghai.
Pamfleet's experienced team seeks to create long-term value
through knowledgeable deal sourcing, disciplined acquisitions,
active asset management, rebranding and refurbishment with an
emphasis on design, anticipating tenant and community
requirements and delivering good value for money. Members of
the management team of Pamfleet have been involved in the
selection and management of real estate investments throughout
Asia for over 20 years.

Pamfleet and the Group operate with a flat organisational
structure, which allows and encourages collaboration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Up to the end of the Reporting Period, the fund managed by
Pamfleet China is Pamfleet Shanghai Real Estate Fund I
("PSREFII”). The Group has also acted as a limited partner (holds
1.5%) of PSREFII. PSREFIl seeks to capitalise on Pamfleet's track
record of its successful investments in under-performing,
under-priced and distressed real estate with repositioning and
value-add potential in Shanghai and other tier-one cities in
Mainland China. The investment strategy of PSREFIl is to identify,
structure and execute successful asset repositioning investments in
Shanghai and other tier-one cities in Mainland China. Up to the
end of the Reporting Period, the total cost of investment made
by the Group was approximately HK$6.2 million.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of this investment in
the real estate investment fund was approximately HK$3,794,000
(2020: HK$3,992,000).

Up to the end of the Reporting Period, there was only one
project operated by PSREFII in Shanghai, namely Project Hub.

The property is located at the junction of Daning Road and
Gonghexin Road within Daning Commercial Area of Jing An
District, Shanghai. It has 4 blocks of office building with a total
gross floor area of approximately 37,547 sgq.m.. It is expected to
generate higher rental income after refurbishment.

Trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products

The increasing standard of living around the globe, especially in
Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC, and increasing health
awareness, in particular from high-income consumers living in
urban areas, together create additional demand for medical
equipment. Consequently, this segment is expected to continue to
be a worthwhile investment. In the coming reporting period, we
will expand our distribution channels and introduce a broader
range of products to boost sales growth.

In addition, with the improving standard of living and technology
in Hong Kong, major cities in the PRC and Southeast Asia, the
Group aims to provide a series of solutions to smart city
development for shopping malls, government facilities, border and
airport, etc..
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The Group has set up a new subsidiary for the trading of
wellness and pandemic prevention products. Due to the
COVID-19 Pandemic, the Group will increase the range of
products to fulfill the demand of the society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is the sole distributor in
Hong Kong for a medical-grade air purifier developed by a team
of Hong Kong air quality experts and medical professionals which
has passed the “AHAM" (United States) and “CNAS” (China)
standards, known as Perfect Particulates Purification (“PPP"). PPP
is equipped with patented PPP Kill Virus Blue High Efficiency
Particulate Air Filter Sterilisation Technologies to effectively kill the
coronavirus disease, SARS-COV-2 and human pneumonia viruses.
At present, several government departments have adopted the
abovementioned PPP air purifiers to provide a safe, comfortable,
clean and sterile environment for the public.

The Group will continue to adopt efficacious cost management
strategies and maintain tight credit control measures to cope with
challenges and to improve competitiveness within the volatile
operating environment. The Directors will continue to make every
effort to maximise the interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

Hotel operation

Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng is located in the city centre of
Kaifeng with a total gross floor area of approximately 14,000
sg.m.. It consists of 243 guest rooms, including 100 king bed
standard rooms, 106 single bed standard rooms, 18 king bed
superior rooms, 18 single bed superior rooms and 1 suite. There
are also 3 meeting rooms with a total gross floor area of
approximately 460 sqg.m..

The Group has signed an agreement with 7NEEEIE (L&)
BBR7AE] (@ member of IHG Hotels & Resort) to operate the hotel
under the name of “Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng City Center”.
Holiday Inn Express is one of the world-famous selected service
hotel brands. Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng was opened in January
2020.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

AEBCKY —MFHBAR  KEEHR
BERPEES - AE2019BMEZTZIE &~
EEBEFEERRY  RRHEEE -

RBEPEAN A EEEHESEREEE

REEXEBEABE LR ZEMPerfect
Particulates Purification ([ PPP ) B & 4 2= 7%
It EEBRNRER /H\ELL%I%«%
B35 P 15 & F1 P B R 0] B BR B R R T 2 o
PPPECEEFIPPPREE B S ’xﬁu»ﬁlﬁlﬂxf&/u
BT B8R SRS BEZMEFR
EEFRETMES2RMAEMASRS - ]
BB Z AR FTERA Lt fPPPZE RUF(L
B AARREZR2FENRZFERNERE

RER B 2 4 S PR EUR AR BN B IR SRR e A
FERNEERNERERXEHEEREDE
MPRE M IERE T ERHEBRNER
FTRE » RARBBRRFRKEDR

EE%E

AR EBBEAENERBEmAL - Q%
&4 514,000 5K - HE243MEE @ &
FE100RI B ANE ARMIZERERE - 106[M &
ANZEEM - 18EAEARSHEM - 18[
BEABLERKIBES - ;%@E?T %A 3/
FHE  BEREMBELN AL60F K

AL E S EMNBOEE RBE T RHEEE R
(L&) BRARIZER W% ATHRBBEEER
BAEE| 22 EZMABE - BEKRAEE
REFRMANBERKEERE 2 — - FH
BERBBEER_ZE_ZTF—AH%-




Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is taking all practicable measures to cope with the
challenges. The first priority is to deliver a sense of safety to our
guests. Therefore, we are putting in place strict sanitisation and
hygiene protocol to ensure guests returning to stay or dine in the
hotel will have complete peace of mind and full assurance in the
hotel’s products and services. Moreover, we are introducing
marketing and sales recovery strategies to target the domestic
market for staycation and food menu for takeaway, and at the
same time, taking decisive decision to reduce operating costs. The
Group will continue to improve the quality of its hotel services to
ensure the hotel guests having enjoyable experiences during their
stays in the hotel.

Objectives for the remaining 2021 are as follows: (1) we will
continue to improve our investment portfolio through the
acquisition of quality properties in Hong Kong at attractive price
and disposal of more mature properties in order to balance the
demands of short-term returns and long-term capital appreciation;
(2) we will review our management system and cost structure so
as to improve efficiency and reduce expenses where possible; (3)
we will consider gearing up our projects in a responsible manner
in order to increase our return on equity; and (4) we will further
develop the business of trading of medical equipment and more
variety of security products, as well as further explore new
trading business.

The Board will strive for new breakthroughs in terms of industry
and geographic coverage by improving the corporate governance
mechanism and on the condition of compliance of the Listing
Rules, increasing the risk control level, enhancing asset
management capability, further forging a professional and
high-quality talent team to seize the development opportunity
and actively develop new customers. The Group will also pay
attention to maintain the relationship with existing customers and
explore deeper cooperation with quality customers in order to
achieve steady and long-term development of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 184 employees, 123 of
whom were based in the PRC and the remaining employees were
based in Hong Kong. The total employee benefits expenses
including directors’ emoluments (before capitalisation) for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$36.9 million as
compared with approximately HK$30.0 million in last year. The
increase was because the Group had full-year operation of
Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng during the Reporting Period.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees
were reviewed and approved by the Directors. Apart from
pension funds, in order to attract and retain a high calibre of a
capable and motivated workforce, the Group offers discretionary
bonus and share options to staff based on individual performance
and the achievements of the Group’s targets.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries consist of (a) property
development and investment; (b) trading of medical equipment
and home security and automation products; and (c) operation of
a hotel.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 91 to 94.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2020: Nil). The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year (2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to provide a steady return to shareholders
and at the same time to maintain a strong financial position for
investment opportunities and sustainable development in the
future. Dividends proposed or declared, or not recommended, is
subject to financial performance, cash flows and future
investment opportunities of the Group.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as shareholders
of the Company to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM"), the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 25 August 2021 to 30 August 2021, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify as shareholders of the Company
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company are required to lodge all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on 24 August 2021.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page
47 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options
during the year, if any, are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the
financial statements, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no equity-
linked agreement entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 95 and 96 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
amounted to approximately HK$134,659,000. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption
reserve, in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$257,497,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions from its contributed surplus in
certain circumstances.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 is set out in the section headed ”“Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 26 of this Annual
Report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the
Directors”.
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This business review is made pursuant to paragraph 28(2)(d) of
Appendix 16 to the Main Board Listing Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which further analysis of
and discussion on the above principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) are made. In the opinion of the Directors, the
section headed “Chairman’s statement” and “Management
discussion and analysis” provide a comprehensive review of the
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 as
well as its future prospects.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following is a list of principal risks and uncertainties that are
considered to be of significance and have potential to affect the
Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial position.
However, this list is non-exhaustive as there may be other risks
and uncertainties which may arise as a result of changes in
economic and other conditions over time. The Group employs a
risk management and internal control framework to identify
current and foreseeable risks at different levels of the
organisation so as to take preventive actions to avoid or mitigate
their adverse impacts.

Risks relating to property development and
investment business segment

The property development and investment segment is one of the
major businesses of the Group, particularly in Mainland China.
Accordingly, this segment is subject to economic, political and
legal developments in Mainland China as well as in the
economies in the surrounding region. In recent years, the
property market movements in Mainland China have been
concurrently affected by the economic trend and government
policies, including but not limited to, the adoption of category-
based regulatory measures and the bilateral regulatory measures
for the real estate market, policy changes in mortgage levels and
ownership, interest rate changes, supply and demand conditions
as well as the overall economic volatility in Mainland China. The
Group’s property development and investment business segment
is expected to continue being exposed to these risks, which may
affect the Group’s investment strategy as well as its performance.
In this respect, the Group actively assesses the overall economic,
political and legal developments as well as the property markets
in other provinces in Mainland China in deciding viable
acquisitions and selling strategies. For each potential project,
detailed feasibility studies and stress tests in regard to all aspects
will be carried out before an acquisition to minimise the risks.
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Risks relating to financial conditions and results of
operation

(i)

(ii)
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The Group's finance costs fluctuate with changes in interest
rates. The Group’s borrowings also include amounts
denominated in RMB, in Mainland China. The People’s Bank
of China adjusts its benchmark lending rates from time to
time in response to domestic and global economic changes.
The Group may be affected by changes in the prevailing
interest rates of the global credit market. Any increase in
interest rates in connection with the currencies the Group
borrows will increase the Group’s finance costs and
customers’ mortgage interest rates and may adversely and
materially affect the Group’s businesses, financial position,
results of operations and growth prospects.

The Group is required to reassess the fair value of its
investment properties at the end of every reporting period
to which financial statements are made up. Pursuant to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, investment
properties are stated at their fair value, and the changes in
their valuation should be taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the financial period in which
it is incurred. Based on the valuation conducted by
independent external valuers, the Group recognises the
investment properties at fair value and the related deferred
tax in the consolidated statement of financial position, while
the changes in fair value and the related deferred tax of
investment properties are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Therefore, the assumptions
made in the valuation of investment properties would
change under changing market conditions. Notwithstanding
any variations in profit and loss, fair value gains and losses
are non-cash items and will not increase or decrease cash
and cash equivalents. The amount of revaluation adjustment
has been and will continuously be subject to changes in
market conditions. As such, there can be no assurance that
changes in market conditions will continue to generate
gains from fair value changes in investment properties at
similar level or at all, or there will be no decline in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties. If a property
market in the region where the Group operates slows
down, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
may decline.
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(iii)

Properties developed by the Group for sale in Mainland China
are subject to Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"). LAT is
calculated based on proceeds received from sale of
properties less deductible expenditures as provided in the
relevant tax laws. Pending settlement with the relevant tax
authorities, the Group makes provisions for the amount of
LAT in accordance with the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations from time to time. Provisions for LAT are made
on the Group’s own estimates based on, among other
things, its own apportionment of deductible expenses which
is subject to final confirmation by the relevant tax
authorities upon settlement of the LAT. The Group only
prepays a portion of such provisions each year as required
by the local tax authorities. The Group cannot assure that
the relevant tax authorities will agree with its calculation of
LAT, nor can it assure that the LAT provisions will be
sufficient to cover its LAT obligations in respect of its past
LAT liabilities in relation to its combined property business.
If the relevant tax authorities determine that its LAT exceeds
the LAT prepayments and provisions, and seek to collect
that excess amount, the Group’s cash flows, results of
operations and financial position may be materially and
adversely affected. As there are uncertainties as to when
the tax authorities will enforce the LAT collection and
whether it will apply the LAT collection retrospectively to
properties sold before the enforcement, any payment as a
result of the enforcement of LAT collection may significantly
restrict the Group’s cash flow position, its ability to finance
its land acquisitions and to execute its business plans.

(iii)
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Outbreak of COVID-19

During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 Pandemic in the PRC
including Hong Kong and Macau has affected many businesses to
different extents. During the assessment of the impact, although
there were certain delays in the resumption of work in certain
on-going property development projects, the works for all those
projects have been resumed and there was no material delay in
the timing of completion during the Reporting Period. Therefore,
the COVID-19 Pandemic had no material impact to the Group's
operation and the Group’s liquidity positions and working capital
sufficiency maintain in a sufficient level during the Reporting
Period. Based on the currently available information, barring
unforeseen circumstances, the Directors consider the COVID-19
Pandemic would not have a prolonged material impact to the
Group's operation given that the full resumption of works for on-
going projects. However, given the unpredictability associated
with the COVID-19 Pandemic and any further contingency
measures that may be implemented by the relevant governments
and corporate entities, the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic, if
any, on the Group’'s 2021 and 2022 operations could be
significantly different from the aforesaid expectation depending on
how the situation evolves. The Group will closely monitor in this
regard. To minimise the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic on the
uncertainties, the Group will continue to reinforce cost control
and monitor its cash flow, as well as further diversify the Group’s
business scope and source of income as a whole.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES, PERFORMANCE AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining sustainable working
practices and paying close attention to ensure that all resources
are efficiently utilised. The Group strives to become an
environmental-friendly corporation by saving electricity and
encouraging the recycling of office supplies and other materials.
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The Group and its business activities are subject to requirements
under various laws. The laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group include, among others, Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Environmental Impact Assessment
Ordinance (Chapter 499 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and Immigration
Ordinance (Chapter 115 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
has put in place in-house rules containing measures and work
procedures to ensure that the Group’s operation is in compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations.

The Group’s major business is property development in Mainland
China, which is a heavily-regulated industry. Property developers
must abide by various-laws and regulations, including rules
stipulated by the national and local governments. To engage in
property development, the Group must apply to relevant
government authorities to obtain and renew various licences,
permits, certificates and approvals, including but not limited to,
land use rights certificates, qualification certificates for property
developers, construction work commencement permits,
construction work planning permits, construction land planning
permits and pre-sale permits. Before the government authorities
issue or renew any certificate or permit, the Group must meet
the relevant requirements. Set out below is a summary of certain
aspects of Mainland China legal and regulatory provisions relating
to our property development and investment operations and
business. These include laws and regulations relating to:

o Establishment of a real estate development enterprise
o Qualification of a real estate developer

o Land for property development

o Sale of commodity properties

J Transfer of real estate
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J Mortgages of real estate
o Real estate management
o Measures on stabilising property prices

° PRC taxation
o Foreign currency exchange
o Labour protection

The Group is committed to complying with the above laws and
regulations and for the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no
reported case of material non-compliance.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a headcount of 184
employees (2020: 180). Salaries of employees are maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market as well as the minimum wages
guideline as prescribed by the local government from time to
time.

The Group awards discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based upon profit achievements of the Group and individual
performance. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme in order to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to align the interests of the employees with the Group’s
interests. Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are
reasonably remunerated and continues to improve and regularly
review and update its policies on remuneration and benefits,
training, and occupational health and safety.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers
and has on-going communication with the customers and
suppliers through various channels such as telephone, electronic
mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and
suggestions.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officers of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, sales to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately 32% (2020: 61%)
of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 14% (2020: 49%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 62% (2020: 37%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 32% (2020: 14%).

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any other shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the
year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. TJIA Boen Sien*®
(Managing Director and Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 25 August 2020)
Mr. WANG Jing Ning*®
Mr. TJIA Wai Yip, William
Mr. LU Quanzhang (resigned on 25 August 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond*#@

Ir SIU Man Po**#@

Mr. SIU Kam Chau**#@

* audit committee members
# remuneration committee members
@ nomination committee members
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Mr. Wang Jing Ning and Ir Siu Man Po will retire by rotation
according to the Company’'s Bye-Laws and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM to be
held on Monday, 30 August 2021.

The Company considers that Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, Ir Siu
Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are independent pursuant to the
criteria set out in the Listing Rules and that it has received
annual confirmations of independence from each of them.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company'’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. For
further details of the Directors’ emoluments, please refer to note
8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in paragraph headed “Continuing connected
transactions” and note 33 to the financial statements, no
Director, a connected entity of a Director nor a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and share options of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including the interests and short positions which he
would be deemed or taken to have under Section 344 and 345
of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROHE BFORESEME

Percentage
Directly Through of the
beneficially controlled Share Company'’s
owned corporation options issued share
Name of Directors BEENE (Note 3) (Note 3) (Note 1) Total capital
ERERER BAMESEEE R EARAEE B
(MF5E3) (MI=E3) (MF5E1) SFt TRABSL
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien HRE LA 86,001,600 (L) 349,935,000 (L) 800,000 436,736,600 44.66
(“Mr. Tjia") (Note 2) ([#EE]D
(Fft3E2)
Mr. Wang Jing Ning FRELE 26,429,400 (L) — 9,000,000 35,429,400 3.62
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William & # 2 5% & 2,400,000 (L) — 8,000,000 10,400,000 1.06
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, eERE L 727,500 (L) — 800,000 1,527,500 0.16
Raymond
Ir Siu Man Po O T2 R 920,000 (L) — 800,000 1,720,000 0.18
Mr. Siu Kam Chau mEEM A — — 800,000 800,000 0.08
Notes: B3 -
1. The share options were granted on 27 November 2020 with consideration of 1. HERERBAATN TN BRETE ] —

HK$1 under the Scheme (defined below in section headed (“Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company. The above share options could be
exercised from the date of grant to 26 November 2022 in accordance with
the rules of the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at an initial exercise price of HK$0.125 per share.

2. Sparta Assets Limited (“Sparta Assets”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, is beneficially interested
in 349,935,000 shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Tjia is deemed to
be interested in 349,935,000 shares of the Company held by Sparta Assets
by virtue of the SFO.

3. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant shares of
the Company.
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Long positions in ordinary shares of Sparta Assets:

M Sparta AssetsZBRNITFE -

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROHEE BORESEME

Percentage

Directly Through of the Sparta

beneficially controlled Assets issued

Name of Director EENA owned corporation Total share capital

{hSparta

EB TS AssetsT 1T

BEEERZES = E &5 BREAEIH

Mr. Tjia* o A 1,000 — 1,000 100.00
* Sparta Assets, a company incorporated in BVI and wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, — * Sparta Assets (— R R & R 2 B &7 iz

is beneficially interested in 349,935,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the section headed “Share
option scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above and note 28 to the financial statements,
none of the Directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES
The following is the change in the information of the Directors
since the interim report of the Company dated 23 November
2020, which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Siu Kam Chau

Resigned as an executive director of Power Financial Group
Limited (stock code: 397), a company with its shares listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, on 21 June 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and
“Share option scheme” below, and share option scheme
disclosures set out in note 28 to the financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, nor were any such rights exercised by them; nor was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme — TZI5F 2] T &9 8E IR HE RN F AR ETTIE
during the year:

Number of share options Price of the Company’s shares**
BREHE AR ARG ERE*
Granted Date of Exercise Exercise price of At grant date
Name or category At 1 April during At 31 March  grant of period of share options* of options
of participant 2020 the year 2021  share options  share options HKS per share ~ HK$ per share
R-B-EF R-B=-F BRETEE RERERHAHS
SEREHEZRER mA-A REARE ZA=+-0 BRERUAE BRECEHH BRRHER BRRHET
Directors:
Bz
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien — 800,000 800,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2022
BTl “T-EF ZZCZE+R
T+—A —tt+tBE
—++tH —E-—
+—-A=+xA
Mr. Wang Jing Ning - 9,000,000 9,000,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2022
IRELAE —ZE-TE —TZTF+—A
+—A iy S =
— AR ik Sk
+—A=FxA
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, — 8,000,000 8,000,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
William 2020 to 26 November
2022
MEEEE e k-5 ZZZE+-A
t—A “tt+tHE
—++tH -
T—AZ+RA
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, — 800,000 800,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
Raymond 2020 to 26 November
2022
MEREL e k-5 ZERZE+-A
t—A “t+tHZE
iy b i Sk
+—A=FxA
Ir Siu Man Po — 800,000 800,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2022
BIUK TI2E —ZCEF ZZIEE+-R
+—A “+tHZE
~ AR —R-CF
+—A=+xA
Mr. Siu Kam Chau — 800,000 800,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2022
B ELE e g 35 ZZCEE+-R
+—A “+tHZE
~ A —RoCF
+—A=+x~A

— 20,200,000 20,200,000
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Number of share options
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Price of the Company’s shares**

BREHE KRATROER**
Granted Date of Exercise Exercise price of At grant date
Name or category of At 1 April  during the At 31 March  grant of period of share options* of options
participant 2020 year 2021 share options  share options HKS per share ~ HK$ per share
RZBZZfF RZB=-% BRETEE RERESLAH
SHEERERER MA-H REARE ZA=+t-0 BREKLAH BRETEHH BRRHBET BRRHBET
Other employees, — 6,000,000 6,000,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
in aggregate 2020 to 26 November
HttEa &5t 2022
e ke 23 “ZZ2ET-R
+—A “t+tHZE
iy = e Sk -3
+—-A=t+xA
— 6,250,000 6,250,000 27 November 27 November 2020 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2021
ZZ-%HF ZEZE+-A
+—A Z++tAZE
iy = —E--F
+—RZ+<H
— 6,250,000 6,250,000 27 November 27 November 2021 0.125 0.113
2020 to 26 November
2022
ZECTHF ZEZ-5+-A
+—A Zt+tAZE
“ttH St -3
+—A=+x~A
— 18,500,000 18,500,000
Total — 38,700,000 38,700,000
at
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case = * AR SAT AR BT » SRR RIARZN 38 oAb K 2
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share BT BRETERER TREE -
capital.
o The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of grant of the — ** RERERLAMEENRRARNDERAERE

share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of grant of the options. The price of the
Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the exercise date of the
share options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing price
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised over all of
the exercises of options within the disclosure line.

Further details of the Scheme are included in note 28 to the
financial statements.

AR A EIRI 22 5 A MBS P (B » B3R
BAETTE A BB AR BRMD B - AAABA
THRENBRETESET  ZREUERETE
I H 5 22 P A P E UL B o

AEZE— DB BN B mRME28 -

HERREBREEGRAAF

TR FFR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or short
position in shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Division 2 and
3 of part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register of
interests of the Company required to be kept pursuant to Section

FERRREMALRRG REER
DHEERAR

R-B-—#=A=+—R HARAES
A THIAL BB (B ERARALES
BABBIN) RAR ARG RAARRG P -
BARBES RS A EXVEE2RES
BANARARE - B KBS R E DI
$3361 2 REARAARAREFLBRE
sz s

336 of the SFO:

Long positions: He:
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares the Company’s
held issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest (Note 3) capital
FEEEREE (LERATRBEIT
=t St RERME (Pfz£3) RAET D
Sparta Assets (Note 1) Beneficial owner 349,935,000 (L) 35.79
Sparta Assets (FfizE1) EmEAA
Granda Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner 173,698,740 (L) 17.76
(“Granda”) (Note 2)
Granda Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. BB A
(['Granda ) (Fff5E2)
Mr. Chen Huofa Interests of controlled corporation 173,698,740 (L) 17.76
BR KK S A RPEE W
Notes: B EE -
1. Sparta Assets, a company incorporated in BVI and wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, 1. Sparta Assets (— &7 58 JE L BF B i A 2 W B
is beneficially interested in 349,935,000 shares of the Company. Accordingly, HAEAE2ERABZAREXZBEEARA
Mr. Tjia is deemed to be interested in 349,935,000 shares of the Company 349,935,000 & 15 - E bt - RIBFFFH KB E K
held by Sparta Assets by virtue of the SFO. Bl - & 2 £ AR B Sparta Assets# B 2 A A &
349,935,000% i 1) B #E &5
2. Granda, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen 2. ERBRELHSEMR LY HRAETEREH
Huofa, is beneficially interested in 173,698,740 shares of the Company. A 2z Granda * B %5 # A 4N A 7)173,698,740 % f&
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Huofa is deemed to be interested in 173,698,740 7 o Bt - RBEFSRBEGERD - BRIOEEEBR
shares of the Company held by Granda by virtue of the SFO. A GrandatF B Z AN AE) 173,698,740 B A% {5 o
B o
3. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant shares of 3. [LIREZBEALTRARRRBEBEROOIETE -

the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company has
not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALES OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change of the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Leases of office premises in Hong Kong

On 20 April 2020, Grand On Enterprise Limited (“Grand On"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Fitness Concept
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, the Managing
Director and Chairman and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for the leasing of a property of the Group in Hong
Kong. The Tenancy Agreement was for a term of three years
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023, with a rental of
HK$25,500 per month payable in advance. On 1 May 2021, the
monthly rental was revised to HK$17,500. The annual rental fee
payable by Fitness Concept Limited to Grand On for the year
ended 31 March 2021 did not exceed HK$306,000.

The annual rental fee payable by Fitness Concept Limited to
Grand On for the financial years ending 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2023 are not expected to exceed HK$218,000 and
HK$210,000 respectively.
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B EAmAEREEN R_E - —F=A=1+—
B AQE YN EENE A EA AR F RN K
HERONWEMEBRIORE  MAREES
NEEGOIEXVERE2 RE3D MAMG AR
Al IRBEFS L ARRGIF 3362 RER
BAXRBGERZECA -

BE -BEHELTES

ARRHEEFMHBARARBE T - —F
“A=t—BHLFEYEREE BOxHLE
ARRRZEMETES -

BEXER
ARARRBE-_E-_—S=A=+—HI*

BEBER

D RMBAI B REE OISR E AR A
AR PR SR VE I e L ) B 45 T A 2 B S B
BRI -

BHBERR
AR RS HBEFERRIFERD AR
i) S5 4R g 2 BB RO

BFERERS

HEEBNREE
R-ZZT_ZTFMA—+H ARRIZ2EH
BARBZEXERAR([BE]) B HE/EE
BIZARAR (AARRERBLIEREFR
FERRHEEREHRS) RHAREBRLR
BEEZMETL—HHEERE([HEWH
) HEWMHEAY=F AT _T4FNQ
A—B&EZZT-_=%=A=+—HB -HA%E
FENM£255008 L - R=ZE-_—FHA—
H Af&EA17,5008 T HE2 -
Z—F=ZA=Z+—BLEFE RERZEER
NAEAEZE S N FEERS I EBE306,000
BT e

HE T - F-A=+—HRER-ZE_=%F
—A=+—HULEFHRFE BEAZERA
AEREETNNFERSTERD BT BB
218,0007%8 7T % 210,000/8 It °

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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Given that Mr. Tjia is the Managing Director and Chairman of the
Company and has an approximately 44.66% equity interest in the
Company at the time entering into the Tenancy Agreement, Mr.
Tjia is a connected person of the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules, the transaction therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios of the transaction
was less than 5% and the total considerations involved were less
than HK$3,000,000, pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions were exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements of the Listing Rules.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
The properties held for sale under development of the Group are
as follows:

ERHEEDNARBZEFTHREIERTFR
WA R] SLHE B W5 5% B 15 B AR R B] £944.66% X
BRELETRANZEE  HELEREARF
ZBEALT AURZXZBERARF—TAH

HRZR P ZBRERA D L EER% ©
5 N BRED13,000,000/8 7T 0 ARIFEETR
A 14A3316% - R ZEFRHR R LR A Z &
HFEEZ RERBIBRRIEZRE -

MEFE
AEEERDEENLENT -

Attributable Expected

interest of the Stage of completion Gross floor
Location Group completion date Expected use area
ith B FEEREGER THER  RBATHAH Bt AR EEEE
Section G 100% Construction 2021 Residential/ 20,500 sq.m.
1 Xi Da Jie stage commercial
Kaifeng City complex
Henan Province
PRC
REAEEFREM 100% ERER “EC-F EE/EEFE 20500FFK
FRE 5% HE
Gl
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The properties held for sale of the Group are as follows:

Attributable
interest of the
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AEEGEMEET -

Location Group Tenure Current use  Gross floor area
1th 26 rEEEGER F1 B Al A& BEERR
Phase | to IV of 100% The properties are held for Residential/ 87,647 sqg.m.
Asian Villas City Square a term of 70 years, commercial
Southern Area commencing on 13 May 1998 complex
Jinpen Industrial and expiring on 12 May 2068
Development Zone
Haikou
Hainan Province
PRC
& 100% ZEMEFH FE/ 87,647F 7 %
=1k B-AANERAT=BEF ®{EHFEEAR
/oM ZERANFRATZHIE
RIXHER REIT0%
&
EMNFIBH T ES
F—ZEH
Sections B to F 100% The properties are held for Residential/ 136,591 sg.m.
1 Xi Da lJie a term of 70 years, commercial
Kaifeng City commencing on 15 June 2005 complex
Henan Province and expiring on 15 June 2075
PRC
& 100% ZEMEFH FE/ 136,591F 75 K
A HBZETRFEAATHBEE BWELSEAR
FE™ ZEZERERATHRAL
PFAH 15 RET05
BEFER
MEEREREEARAT T -—FFH
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Attributable

interest of the
Location Group Tenure Current use  Gross floor area
1 B AEBELESR FH B Al A& BEEE
Commercial Zone A, B, C and D 100% The properties are held for Commercial 81,007 sg.m.
Core Lot No. 2012-1 a term of 40 years,
Zheng Kai Avenue commencing on 3 June 2013
Kaifeng City and expiring on 13 May 2053
Henan Province
PRC
5 100% RENEFH EES 81,007F 75 K
AEE HZE—=FH=HZE
sl ZTR=FRAT=HI"

BB K3E2012-195 R i
A-B CHDE%RE

AH40F
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The investment properties of the Group are as follows: REEREMENT -
Attributable

interest of the Gross floor
Location Group Tenure Lease term  Current use area
1th 2 AEEEGES F 5 R B Al A& EEEE
12 Haixiu Avenue 100% The properties are held for Long Commercial 22,803 sg.m.
Meilan District a term of 70 years,
Haikou commencing on 15 September
Hainan Province 2006 and expiring on 14
PRC September 2076
& 100% REMEEH =3:0 BmE  22803FHK
BEE H-_ZTRFAATREE
/Om “EERFAATEA L
xWE RERT05F
BEEI25
Section A 100%  The properties are held for a Long Commercial 53,624 sg.m.
1 Xi Da lie term of 70 years, commencing
Kaifeng City on 15 June 2005 and expiring
Henan Province on 15 June 2075
PRC
& 100% REMFEEH =31 BE  53,624FHK
AEE HZZTRFEAATHAZE
B ™ “EERFRATRAL
fipNERb REIT0F
AR
Phase | to IV of 100% The properties are held for Long Commercial 29,325 sg.m.
Asian Villas City Square a term of 70 years,
Southern Area commencing on 13 May 1998
Jinpen Industrial and expiring on 12 May 2068
Development Zone
Haikou
Hainan Province
PRC
o 100% REMEEH =3l BmE  29325FHK
BEE H-AANEREAT=ZRZE
FOm ZEANFERATZHL
TRTXEHER RET705E
CE il
£—EMH

MEEREREEARAT T -—FFH
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
accordance with the requirements of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021, and adequacy
of resources and qualifications of the Company’s accounting staff.
The audit committee comprises of three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau. Mr. Siu Kam
Chau is the Chairman of the committee.

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been reviewed by the audit committee members who
have provided advice and comments thereon.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM. There has been no change in the Company’s
auditor in any of the preceding three years.

Tjia Boen Sien
Managing Director and Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2021

E%ﬁ%#&%

REAATAAFEGZEHREERNE
#@ﬁ:i:—i_ﬁ_+ BILEFER -
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BEREES
ARBIZERRZBENIRELEEARERT
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X RARAREFABZERARUERE
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BIKEE - BBREERZEZEGLR -
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CEEXECHERZEGNEEN  &F
E?ﬁlﬁt*&{/\ ﬁﬁ&,m\ﬁ ©

7%

ZXEMEBAERERERRAFAE L
BREIUNEERRRTREBEEET - EH
BEZERERARRRAREE ZRBRER
EERRBEFASLREZ -RA=EFE
RRB SN BEEE

BB IEFTE
Epacd

B

—=—
= _

FRXAZTAAHE

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TJIA Boen Sien ("Mr. Tjia”), aged 77, is one of the co-founders
of the Group. He is the Managing Director and Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Tjia is a member of the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of the Board. Mr.
Tjia is well respected and has established connections in the PRC
construction industry through his extensive experience. He has
over 38 years of experience in the construction industry in the
PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Tjia is responsible for the overall
corporate strategy and the daily operations of the Group,
including business development and overall management.

He graduated from chemistry studies at the Huagiao University
(ZFEfBKE) in the PRC in July 1966. He was admitted as member
of The Chartered Institute of Building in November 1996 and is a
professional member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors since October 2002. Mr. Tjia previously served as the
vice chairman and honourable member of Zhan Tian You Civil
Engineering Science and Technology Development Fund
Management Committee (EXE T RIEMBERMERERERE

%Z89)

In the past three years, Mr. Tjia was the chairman and non-
executive director of Smart City Development Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8268), a company listed on the GEM of
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, for the period from 16
December 2014 to 29 July 2019.

Mr. Tjia is father of Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William (Executive Director
of the Company) and Ms. Tse Hoi Ying, Irene (senior
management of the Group).

WANG lJing Ning (“Mr. Wang”), aged 65, is an executive
Director of the Company and was appointed as a director of the
Company in September 1993. Mr. Wang is a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board. He is also a director of various main
operating subsidiaries of the Group, among others, Deson
Ventures (HK) Limited, Winsome Properties Limited and Honour
Advance Limited. Mr. Wang has over 41 years of experience in
hotel management and construction engineering in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. He is responsible for managing the
Group's projects in Mainland China.

BITES

HXB(HEE]D RELTEE BEAE
BMAERAMHAZ— ABARBEZALE
REIER BT REFEFMHEESNES
ZEEKEB HMEARPEZEZEEEBRE
RS BRENALTES  HEPEHEEE
RARRY HRTEREERZEXEH
ZSTNAAEER -#MEEREAKTEEER
AIRBEAERS BRAKEZEZBER

HRERAE T o

SRIE R

AEER—NAARFLARERTEERBK
BIEBR - FWR—ANARNF+ - ERA/RE
BEr2Esees Y _FTT_F+A
EREBERFFISMBSEXSE -
EAEBEAEREIATIENBRMERE

eEEZEQRTIFEIEELRE -

WEERBE=F - £E=FT—WF+ A+~
AZ-Z-AE+tA-t+HABHE S ETFE
WEREREBRAR  (FIEHEEREEREE
BAERAA)(BMHBREE :8268) - —EREE
B A ZHFGEM ET 2 AR)) 2 F & R IEBMTT
S

MEERARBDRTEEHEELERAE
EERERABWERNDEZR -
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TJIA Wai Yip, William (“Mr. William Tjia”), aged 45, is an
executive Director of the Company since January 2015. Mr.
William Tjia joined the Group in February 2000. He is a director
of Deson Innovative Limited since July 2005, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 21 years of experience
in business management. He is responsible for intelligent building
and security systems business of the Group and the Group's
development including business development and overall
management. He graduated from the City University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Information
Systems in 1998. He is the son of Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, the
Managing Director and Chairman of the Group and the younger
brother of Ms. Tse Hoi Ying, Irene, the senior management of the
Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HO Chung-Tai, Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J., JP,
aged 82, independent non-executive Director of the
Company and was appointed as a director of the Company in
September 1993.

is an

Dr. Ho has 58 years’ experience in the fields of civil, structural,
energy, environmental and geotechnical engineering and direct
project management of many mega size engineering projects
including 48 years in Hong Kong and 10 years in the United
Kingdom. He has direct management responsibility in the HK$3.0
billion (cost at the time) project of Electrification and
Modernisation of Kowloon-Canton Railway (now called “The East
Rail”) from the mid-70’s till early 80’s; and all the government-
funded infrastructure works for Shatin New Town and Tseung
Kwan O New Town from early 80's till the end of 1993,
experience including construction of tunnels, bridges, flyovers,
roads, dockyards, wharves, jetties, hospitals, hotels, incinerators,
high-rise  commercial/residential buildings, slopes, reclamation,
chimneys, Ocean park, environmental studies and environmental
protection projects.

Dr. Ho holds a doctorate degree in civil engineering from the City
University of London, United Kingdom; Honourary Doctor of
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong;
Honourary Doctor of Laws from University of Manchester, United
Kingdom; a postgraduate diploma in geotechnical engineering
from Manchester University, United Kingdom; and a bachelor
degree in civil engineering from the University of Hong Kong; and
was awarded Honourary University Fellow of The University of
Hong Kong and Honourary University Fellow of The University of
Central Lancashire, United Kingdom.
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Dr. Ho was formerly a partner and senior director of Maunsell
Consultants Asia Limited from January 1976 to August 1993. Dr.
Ho was formerly Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th terms of
National People’s Congress of the PRC, member of the 1st, 2nd,
3rd & 4th terms of Legislative Council (Engineering Functional
Constituency) (1998-2012), member of the Provisional Legislative
Council (1996-1998), President of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (1987/1988), Member of the Former Basic Law
Consultation Committee, Founding Council Chairman of the City
University of Hong Kong, Council Chairman of the former City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong, Chairman of Hong Kong Technology
Committee of the Industry & Technology Development Council
(ITDC) and member of ITDC, Chairman of the Transport Advisory
Committee, Hong Kong Affairs Adviser, Chairman of the
Infrastructure Development Services Advisory Committee of the
HKTDC, board member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority
(2008-2014), member of the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong, member of the Chinese Medicine Consultative
Committee of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong
Baptist University, member of Consultative Committee on the New
Airport and Related Projects, and member of the Gas Safety
Advisory Committee. Currently, Dr. Ho is Honorary Chairman and
Past Chairman of Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant, LingAo
Nuclear Plant Safety Consultative Committee and Professional
Advisor (Architecture, Engineering and Surveying) to the
Ombudsman of HKSAR.

Dr. Ho currently is also a director of the following companies
which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

An independent non-executive director

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800)
ChinLink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997)
AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code: 1496)

Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 2263)
Superland Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 368)

Dr. Ho was an independent non-executive director of China State
Construction International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3311) for
the period from June 2005 to 3 June 2019, and was the
chairman of non-executive director of SCUD Group Limited (stock
code: 1399) for the period from 27 September 2018 to 16 June
2020, both are companies listed on the Stock Exchange in the
past three years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBEAEZEE

SIU Man-po (“Ir Siu”), is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company since September 2001. Ir Siu is a member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee, and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board.

Ir Siu was awarded the MEDAL OF HONOUR (MH) by the Chief
Executive of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (HKSAR) in July 2004 for his dedication and
meritorious services to the development of engineering profession
in Hong Kong.

Ir Siu, aged 83, obtained his Master of Science in Civil
Engineering in 1963 from Auburn University in Auburn, Alabama,
U.S.A.

Ir Siu has extensive experience in construction field including the
construction of Tsing Yi Power Station in 1966-1977, MTR
stations in 1977-1987, and Hong Kong Baptist University campus
development in 1989-1999. Ir Siu was the Managing Director of
Ho Wang Siu Mak Management Ltd. (an engineering consultancy
company) from 2008 to 2019.

Ir Siu is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and the American Society of Civil Engineers.

SIU Kam Chau (“Mr. Siu”), aged 56, joined the Company in
March 2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Siu is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Siu graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy. He is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
Certified Public Accountant (practising) in Hong Kong. Mr. Siu has
over 31 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
company secretarial and corporate finance. Mr. Siu was an
executive director of Power Financial Group Limited (stock code:
397) from 29 April 2020 to 21 June 2021, and is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wang On Group Limited
(stock code: 1222) both of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TSE Hoi Ying, Irene (“Ms. Tse"), aged 49, joined the Group in
August 1999. She was appointed as the Director of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Medical Technologies Limited and Allied Health
Elements Company Limited in September 2002 and September
2019, respectively. Ms. Tse is responsible for trading of medical
equipment, health products and related consulting business of the
Group, and has over 19 years of experience in rehabilitation and
medical equipment. Ms. Tse has been invited to join as a
professional consultant for different esteemed medical groups. She
graduated from the University of British Columbia (Canada) with
a Bachelor of Arts (Psychology) in May 1995. She is the daughter
of Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, the Managing Director and Chairman of
the Group and the elder sister of Mr. William Tija, an Executive
Director of the Company.

LAM Wing Wai, Angus (“Mr. Lam"), aged 45, joined the Group
in September 2005. He is the Company Secretary and the
Financial Controller of the Group. He is responsible for
monitoring all the Group’s accounting, finance, listing compliance
and company secretarial functions. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Before joining the
Group, he had several years’ experience with an international
accounting firm.

In the past three years, Mr. Lam was the company secretary and
financial controller of Smart City Development Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8268), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, for the period from 8 January 2015 to 29 July
2019.

KWOK Chun Fai (“Mr. Kwok"), aged 77, joined the Group in
February 1991. He is the project manager of the Group and is
responsible for the Group’s construction projects in Mainland
China. He has over 47 years’ experience in the industry. He
graduated from Fujian Overseas Chinese University in Mainland
China in Civil Industrial and Civil Building. He obtained the
International Engineering and Professional Manager Qualification
Certificate and is a Member of Architectural Society of Chinese.
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EERERRS

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in enhancing the
confidence of shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and
business partners and also the growth of its business. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The
Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021 save for the deviation
from the Code Provision A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of which are
explained below. The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices in order to meet the rising expectations of
stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate
governance.

Summary of deviations from the CG Code:

Code Provision A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of Chairman and
chief executive (or in the context of the Company, the Managing
Director) should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Tjia is the Chairman of the Board and is holding the office of
Managing Director of the Company. Having considered the
existing structure and composition of the Board and operations of
the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman and managing director in
Mr. Tjia facilitates the effective implementation and execution of
its business strategies by, and ensure a consistent leadership for,
the Group. Further, a balance of power and authority between
the Board and management can be ensured by the operation of
the Board, whose members (including the three independent
non-executive directors) are individuals of high calibre with ample
experience, such that the interests of shareholders can be
safeqguarded. The Company will continue to review the structure
and composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that a
balance of power and authority between the Board and
management is appropriately maintained for the Group.
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Code Provision A.4.1
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific term. However, all independent non-executive directors
are subject to the retirement and rotation once every three years
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are comparable
with those in the CG Code.

THE KEY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
AND PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board of
Directors (“Board”) in providing effective leadership and direction
of the Company towards its objectives and ensuring transparency
and accountability of all operations. The key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the Board
and delegated to the management. The Board provides leadership
and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to enhance
shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Company are delegated to the management with proper
supervision from the Board. The Board reserves for its decisions
on all major matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, corporate
governance, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
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The Board is responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirement;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board after being reported on by
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant decisions being made or significant transactions
or commitments being entered into by the abovementioned
officers, who cannot exceed any authority given to them by
resolutions of the Board or the Company.

The Board has the full support of the Managing Director and the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the Board and to indemnify its
directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six members,
consisting of three executive Directors, and three independent
non-executive Directors.

The Company had adopted a Board diversity policy aims to set
out the approach to achieve the diversity of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Board has in its composition a balance of skills, expertise,
qualifications, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary
for independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
made upon possible contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien (Managing Director and Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 25 August 2020)
(Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Wang Jing Ning (Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William

Mr. Lu Quanzhang (Chairman) (resigned on 25 August 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond
(Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Ir Siu Man Po (Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, Chairman of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, member of Nomination Committee)
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Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Chairman of
the Company and the other Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 49 to 53 of this annual report. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Save for Mr. Tjia Boen Sien and Mr. Tjia Wai Yip,
William, who are father and son, none of the members of the
Board are related to one another or have any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships with each other.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all times
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors brings independent
judgement on issues of strategies direction, policies, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board Meetings.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors will scrutinise the
performance of the Company in achieving corporate goals and
objectives and monitor performance reporting. By doing so, they
are able to contribute positively to the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed
comments at Board and committee meetings.

The Board values the contribution of the independent non-
executive Directors, and strives to ensure constructive relations
between them and the executive Directors. All Directors are
encouraged to contribute their views during Board meetings.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures
for the appointment and succession planning of Directors.
Directors to be appointed will receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment. Any Board member is entitled to recommend
suitable candidate that meet the requirements of the Listing Rules
for consideration by the Board.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. In
accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Although the independent non-executive Directors do not have a
specific term of appointment, all Directors of the Company retire
by rotation once every three years. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are comparable with
those in the CG Code.

Training for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
induction to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the business and his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors regularly
updated and appraised with any new regulations and guideline,
as well as any amendments thereto issued by the Stock
Exchange, particularly the effects of such new or amended
regulations and guidelines on directors specifically. On an ongoing
basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all matters
relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.

The Company is aware of the requirement to regularly review and
agrees with each Director their training needs. The continuing
professional training programme of the Company for Directors
will be reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Nomination
Committee. During the year ended 31 March 2021, all Directors
have individually attended seminars and training courses
conducted by qualified professionals on accounting, taxation and
Listing Rules.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever
necessary.
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
Secretary of the Company has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

Board Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that the Company should hold at
least four regular Board meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
Directors, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication.

Regular Board meetings were held during the year for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

During the year under review, six Board meetings and one
general meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien SRR
(Managing Director and Chairman) (EBHACTEF T E)

Mr. Wang Jing Ning FTRESE

Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William HHEE T

Mr. Lu Quanzhang
(resigned on 25 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fAERIE L

Ir Siu Man Po BRSO TRZAD
Mr. Siu Kam Chau RIBN L&

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting so as to ensure that
there is timely access to relevant information. All Directors can
give notice to the Chairman of the Board or the Company
Secretary if they intend to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. The Board and the senior management are also
obligated to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary in a timely manner.

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision in advance of each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary, who is an employee of the Company, is
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, which record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. At
Board meetings, all Directors have ample opportunities to express
their respective views, voice any concerns and discuss the matters
under consideration, and the results of voting at Board meetings
fairly reflects the consensus of the Board. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection. Directors are entitled to have access to
board papers and queries will be responded fully. According to
current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. Such Director must abstain from voting
and will not be counted as quorum.

Directors’ commitments

Each Director has confirmed that he can give sufficient time and
attention to the Group’s affairs, and has regularly provided
information on the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments,
including the identity of such companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company held the annual general meeting (2020 AGM") on
17 August 2020. Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William, the executive
Director, was elected as the chairman of 2020 AGM to ensure
effective communication with shareholders of the Company at the
meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Although the roles of Chairman and Managing Director, who
performs similar role as Chief Executive Officer, are both
performed by the same individual, in view of the existing
structure and composition of the board and operations of the
Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the board believes
that this can facilitate the effective implementation and execution
of its business strategies by, and ensure a consistent leadership
for, the Group. Further, a balance of power and authority
between the board and management can be ensured by the
operation of the board, whose members (including the three
independent non-executive directors) are individuals of high
calibre with ample experience, such that the interests of
shareholders can be safeguarded. The Company will continue to
review the structure and composition of the board from time to
time to ensure that a balance of power and authority between
the board and management is appropriately maintained for the
Group.

The Chairman provides leadership for the board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role including taking the primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established and ensuring appropriate
steps are taken to provide effective communications with
shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board
In his capacity as managing director, he provides
planning and implementation with the support of management.

as a whole.

The Chairman ensures that all directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the board in a timely manner. Board
meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to give all
directors an opportunity to attend, and are structured to
encourage open discussion especially between non-executive and
executive directors. All board members are encouraged to update
their knowledge of and familiarity with the Group through active
participation at board meetings.
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The Chairman settles the agenda for each individual board
meeting, taking into account any additional items arising from
current operating issues, as well as such other matters as may be
raised by the other directors with him, who can include them on
the agenda. The agenda and accompanying board papers are sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner and, where possible, at
least three days before the time appointed for the meeting.

It is also the Chairman’s responsibility to control board meetings,
to lead discussions to clear conclusions, and to satisfy himself that
the secretary of the meeting has understood each conclusion
reached. The Company Secretary and Financial Controller attend
the meetings and advise, where appropriate, on corporate
governance and accounting and financial matters.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting and open
for inspection by any director. Draft and final versions of minutes
of board meetings are sent to all directors for their comments
and records respectively.

The Chairman has held a meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors without the executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Group's
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees have complied with the Code Provisions
and are available on the Stock Exchange website
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website www.deson.com
and are available to shareholders upon request. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses. These Board committees will report back
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, Mr. Wang Jing Ning, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are the members
of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Siu Kam Chau is the
chairman of the committee. The primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations on
and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the
executives after consultation with the Chairman/Managing
Director and access to professional advice, at the Group’s
expense, when necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Group as
well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration
Committee normally meets towards the end of each year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and senior management and
other related matters. The Group’s remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive remuneration packages based on
business needs and market practice. Factors such as market rate,
an individual's qualification, experience, performance and time
commitment are taken into account during the remuneration
package determination process. The Remuneration Committee
met once during the year ended 31 March 2021 and reviewed
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors, independent
non-executive Directors and senior management for the year
under review. Recommendations have been made to the Board.
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Details of the attendance record of members of the ¥MZE&@kBHBLHHBUT
Remuneration Committee are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
Name of Members REHR REHFERE
Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman) B E (£E) 1/1
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien HER K& 11
Mr. Wang Jing Ning FTRELE 11
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fAEFRIE L 11
Ir Siu Man Po 78 SO A2 AD 11
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Nomination Committee

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, Mr. Wang Jing Ning, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are the members
of the Nomination Committee and Ir Siu Man Po is the chairman
of the committee. The primary objectives of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition and
identifying and nominating candidates for appointment to the
Board such that it has the relevant blend of skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural, educational background, professional
experience and diversity of perspectives. The Nomination
Committee also assesses the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. Candidates for appointment as Directors
may be sourced internally or externally through various channels
such as using the services of specialist executive search firms. The
aim is to appoint individuals of the highest caliber in their area of
expertise and experience. The Nomination Committee met once
during the year ended 31 March 2021 and reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board for the year under
review.

Details of the attendance record of members of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

Name of Members MEHEA

Ir Siu Man Po (Chairman) BRI
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien HRER &
Mr. Wang Jing Ning TRERSE
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fAERE LT
Mr. Siu Kam Chau BRI E

The following policies have been adopted by the Nomination
Committee to assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities as
provided in its terms of reference. The policies may be amended
from time to time by the committee as provided therein.
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Recommended candidates

The committee shall consider any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any director or
shareholder; provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such recommendations comply with all
applicable notice requirements set forth in the Company’s Bye-
laws, the procedures for a shareholder's nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting, and the Listing Rules.
The committee may also consider, in its sole discretion, any and
all candidates recommended as nominees for directors to it by
any source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high
integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgement, to provide the commitment to enhancing shareholder
value, practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates will
also be assessed in the context of the then-current composition
of the board, the operating requirements of the Company and
the long-term interests of all shareholders. In conducting this
assessment, the committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider diversity
(including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience and
skills) and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the
then-current and anticipated future needs of the board and the
Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the board. The committee
may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The above
diversity perspectives, taking into account the Company’s business
model and needs, are set out in a board diversity policy which
has been established by the Company to see that diversity on the
board can be achieved.
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Independence

The committee shall ensure that at least one-third of the board
members (or such other number of the members of the board as
prescribed by the Listing Rules from time to time) meet the
definition of independent non-executive director. The committee
shall annually assess each nominee for independent non-executive
director by reviewing any potential conflicts of interest that he or
she and their immediate family members (as defined in the Listing
Rules) may have, based on the criteria for independence set forth
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. A retiring independent non-
executive director who has served the board for a period of nine
consecutive years or more is eligible for nomination by the board
to stand for re-election at a general meeting provided that he or
she is still considered independent by the board.

The following information has been set out in the Company’s
circular to shareholders for the proposed resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director at the AGM:

1. the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why the Board considers the individual to be
independent;

2. if the proposed independent non-executive director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

3. the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

4. how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.
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Nominee evaluation process

The committee will consider as a candidate any director who has
indicated his or her willingness to stand for re-election and any
other person who is recommended by any shareholder. The
committee may also undertake its own search process for
candidates and may retain the services of professional firms or
other third parties to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
The committee may use any process it deems
appropriate for the purpose of evaluating candidates which is
consistent with those set forth in its terms of reference, the
Company’s Bye-laws, the corporate governance policy and the
policy described herein; provided that the process used for
evaluating a nominee for each election or appointment of director
shall be substantially similar and under no circumstances shall the
committee evaluate nominees recommended by a shareholder
pursuant to a process that is substantially different than that used
for other nominees for the same election or appointment of
director.

nominees.

Nomination procedures

1. The secretary of the committee shall call a meeting of the
committee, and invite nominations of candidates from board
members, if any, for consideration by the committee prior
to its meeting. The committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by board members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the committee shall make
recommendations for the board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at
a general meeting, the committee shall make nominations
to the board for its consideration and recommendation.

3. Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by
the board to stand for election at the general meeting.

4. In order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the board to stand for election at a general meeting, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set out
the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), and any other information, as required
pursuant to applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates.
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5. A shareholder can serve a notice to the board of directors
or the company secretary within the lodgement period of its
intention to propose a resolution to elect certain person as
a director in accordance with the relevant procedures
posted on the Company’s website. The particulars of the
candidates so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular.

6. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his or her candidature
at any time before the general meeting by serving a notice
in writing to the board of directors or the company
secretary.

7. The board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

8. Shareholder proposed resolutions shall take the same form
as the resolutions proposed for the candidates
recommended by the board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the board
composition and independence of independent non-executive
directors, and considered the suitability of those retiring directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting as
well as the need for a director succession plan. The committee
also reviewed the nomination policy and the board diversity policy
and discussed the objectives set for implementing the latter, and
noted that those objectives had been achieved. The committee
concluded that the board composition should continue
unchanged.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors (including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Siu Kam Chau
is the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer (if any) or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees,
terms of engagement and independence, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor;

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
financial reporting system, and risk management system,
internal control system and associated procedures; and

(d) to review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting staff, their training programme, and budget.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2021 to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, and discussed
matters concerning the effectiveness of internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditor. Minutes of Audit
Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft and final version of the minutes of meetings are
sent to all committee members for comments within a reasonable
time after the meeting. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Sufficient
resources are provided by the Company for the Audit Committee
to perform its duties.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.
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TEERRE
Details of the attendance record of members of the Audit BiZEEe@KELERHEIEBELOT
Committee are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
Name of Members REHR REHERE
Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman) BRI E () 2/2
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond A& RIE L 2/2
Ir Siu Man Po BRSO TAZAD 2/2

COMPANY SECRETARY

Please refer to section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on page 53 of the Annual
Report for biographical details of the Company Secretary.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior management are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (“ESG REPORT")

The Company will issue a separate ESG Report no later than
three months after the publication date of this Annual Report in
compliance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy on 1 January 2019.
The Company’s dividend policy allows the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy, in
addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare interim
dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

(i)  the Group’s general financial condition;

(i) the Group’s working capital and debt level;

(iii)  the Group's liquidity position;
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(iv)  retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(v)  future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

(vi) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(vii) the general market conditions;

(viii) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda, the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time
by the Board and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had engaged the
Group's external auditor, Ernst & Young, to provide the following
services and their respective fees charged are set out below:

Fee charged for the year ended 31 March 2021:
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72 Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



INSIDE INFORMATION

The board is responsible for ensuring the Group’s compliance
with its disclosure obligations regarding inside information, and
has appointed a disclosure group with specific designated duties
to assist it in, among other things, overseeing and co-ordinating
the disclosure of inside information. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
are given in the policy (the “PSI Policy”) adopted by the
Company to ensure that it is able to meet relevant obligations
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the “SFO"). The PSI Policy applies to the directors, officers
and employees of the Group. Under the PSI Policy, the Company
must disclose inside information to the public by way of an
announcement as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours described under
the SFO. Any director, officer or employee who becomes aware
of a matter, development or event that he or she considers to be,
or potentially to be, inside information shall report it promptly to
the disclosure group. Before the relevant information is fully
disclosed to the public, the disclosure group should take
reasonable precautions to ensure that the information is kept
strictly confidential. Where it is believed that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the information should be disclosed
immediately to the public. If the disclosure group needs time to
clarify the details of, and the impact arising from, an event or a
set of circumstances before it is in a position to issue a full
announcement to properly inform the public, the disclosure group
should consider issuing a “holding announcement” which details
as much ascertainable information of the subject matter as
possible and sets out the reasons why a fuller announcement
cannot be made. Following a holding announcement, the
disclosure group should ensure that a full announcement is made
as soon as reasonably practicable. In the event that confidentiality
has not been maintained and it is not able to make a full
announcement or a holding announcement, the disclosure group
should consider applying for a suspension of trading in the
Company’s securities, subject to approval of the board, until
disclosure can be made. All inside information related
announcements must be properly approved by the board before
publication, and all unpublished inside information must be kept
in strict confidence until a formal announcement is made. The
disclosure group must further ensure that access to unpublished
inside information is given only to employees on a “need-to-
know" basis for discharging their duties. Apart from reporting to
the disclosure group, every director, officer or employee who
possesses or has been given access to unpublished inside
information must not disclose, discuss or share such information
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to or with any other parties within or outside the Group. The PSI
Policy also sets out the criteria for advance disclosure of inside
information to certain categories of people as may be necessary
in the circumstances. In this case, the disclosure group should
monitor the situation so that disclosure may be made as soon as
reasonably practicable if there is any leakage of information.
Directors, officers and employees must refrain from dealing in the
shares of the Company at any time when they are in possession
of unpublished inside information. Securities dealings are
governed by the securities codes applicable to directors and
relevant employees (within the meaning of the CG Code), as
described in the section below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2021. The Company has adopted the same
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of
the Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the
Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high
standard of probity, openness, and accountability. A
Whistleblowing Policy is in place to create a system for the
employees and other stakeholders of the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties. The identity
of each whistleblower and all information provided in connection
with a whistleblowing report will be treated with the strictest
confidence.
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Continuous Disclosure Policy

A Continuous Disclosure Policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information as defined in the SFO is identified and
confidentiality of such information is maintained until timely and
appropriate disclosure is made in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The policy regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information, which includes:

o Roles and responsibilities of the divisions/departments of the
Company in identifying and escalating any potential inside
information within the Company; and

o Procedures for determining the necessity, means and/or
extent of disclosure of such information.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial
period with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the financial year. Management of the
Company has provided such explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval including monthly updates. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Listing
Rules, the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Group has selected appropriate
accounting policies and has applied them consistently based on
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates.

The Directors endeavour to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s position and
prospect in the annual reports, interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021. The statement of the external auditor of the Group about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent auditor’s report” on pages 81 to 90.
Management of the Group is obligated to provide sufficient
explanation and information to the Board so that it can make
informed assessment of relevant matters.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING
Risk Management and Internal Control

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of
such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the
risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in year ended 31
March 2021, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the
Group;

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying

and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed;
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Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out;

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements the inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in year ended 31
March 2021, no significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as
Certified Public Accountant). The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s reviews,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and the
Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (ii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its review and the reviews made by IA
function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that
the resources, staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff
were adequate and the training programme and budget provided
were sufficient.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining an open and effective
investor relations policy and to updating investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings with institutional
investors and analysts are conducted from time to time. The
Company also replied to any enquiries from shareholders in a
timely manner. The Directors host the annual general meeting
each year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The corporate website of the Company at www.deson.com
provides a communication platform via which the public and
investor community can access up-to-date information regarding
the Group.
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The Company’s 2020 AGM was held on 17 August 2020. The
notice of the 2020 AGM, the annual report and the circular
containing relevant information of the proposed resolutions were
sent to shareholders more than 20 clear business days before the
2020 AGM. All Board members, except Mr. Lu Quanzhang,
together with the key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2020 AGM. The executive Director explained the
poll voting procedures at the 2020 AGM. Separate resolutions for
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of
individual Directors, were proposed at the 2020 AGM. All the
resolutions at the 2020 AGM were dealt with by poll. The poll
results of the 2020 AGM are available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Shareholders may also send any enquiries, suggestions or
concerns to the Board at any time through the Company
Secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Address The Company Secretary

Deson Development International
Holdings Limited

11th Floor, Nanyang Plaza,

57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
deson@deson.com

(852) 2570 1118

(852) 3184 3402

Email
Telephone no.
Fax no.

The Company Secretary will forward such communications to the
Board, the relevant Board committees and/or the Chief Executive
Officer, as appropriate.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of the
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual
general meeting. Voting at the forthcoming annual general
meeting will be by way of a poll. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be provided to shareholders
at the commencement of the annual general meeting to ensure
that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.
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Poll results will be counted by Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited and will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange on the day the annual
general meeting held. The general meetings of the Company
provide an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well
as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions
at the annual general meetings. The Company will also arrange
for the external auditor to attend the annual general meetings to
answer relevant questions if necessary.

Separate resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

In addition to regular Board meetings, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, may convene a
special general meeting to address specific issues of the Company
within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice to the
Company Secretary, at the Company’s head office at 11th Floor,
Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionist(s). Shareholders may also
use this same method to put forward proposals for the next
general meeting.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow the
shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.

CONCLUSION

In the opinion of the Board, good governance was maintained
throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report.
The Company shall keep its governance practices under review to
ensure that they are in step with the latest developments.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EY::

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Deson Development International
Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 226, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B, A

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

RROER
HMPEREEESHMASEMN(EESE
EAD(TEBBFER ) ETES - HPIEZX
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FHRA M MR AENET] Mo PIEE—
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BPIEE BRPIAESHRBEETE R
EEWRRPINET B RIRMHER -
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S ETFEISRBERFNEXZAE  RA
BAHG AR BREANEARABEENTH
EUFEREHE M BRREBETE
YWHEKREBRNOER TETREN  HATY
ELEREREFNER - RAY TAE—
FHERFTTRNAEBHNELBALSE

BAPCEET T ABE 2B B RAR
BRRAAENET]IHOBANEE - B
BUE LR RES FHAMNE T - AR
BHINBRF TERERNTREYFENERS
B TS ¥R R B K HE AR RO L T BR AT O B AT AR
FreBRPMITEARFNER  BREHT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEESEER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BET R E

AR EEE (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEESTRNAEHD

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMLE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value amounted to
HK$1,041,350,000 with an aggregate gain arising
from the changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss of HK$24,950,000 for the
year then ended. The valuation process is inherently
subjective, and dependent on a number of estimates.
To support management’'s determination of the fair
value, the Group has engaged an independent
professionally qualified valuer to perform the valuation
of investment properties.
RZEZ—F=ZA=+—H ' BEEMFANEKRED
X AT EFE/1,041,350,0008 7 BEE R IEF
EREGXANERBRATEEIMEENBRRR
24,950,000 7T - (HERFAE LBEH - RIUARE
Tt - R EREEEATE ESXEEIZES
VW FRFEEERNGEMEREYEETHEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements.

HERBEHRMERERMEIR4 -

Our audit procedures included the evaluation of the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuer,
and assessment of their valuation methodology. We
examined the data used as inputs for the valuation,
which included making reference to the market unit
selling prices of comparable properties nearby used in the
valuation and performing market value benchmarking
against comparable properties. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
key assumptions and methodologies for the valuation of
the investment properties held by the Group.
BPNEFRFEREEEMNETEL - BUMEREE
FHBERHE - WAHEERANGERE - ROIZERER
ERBANEE  BE2ZHERANONEAELERY
FOTHHEER WERAELBMENTISELT
HESFRF - KT BEABEEZRBE KA
7 BEEEFENREVMEGLESIEANBRERR
JI& e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% BET R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
B ETEE

RRETEE (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T 15 B 5 D R 0 B B

Net realisable value assessment on properties held for sale under development and properties held for

sale

BREPGENERGENE TR FETMGE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties held for
sale under development and properties held for sale
amounted to HK$196,299,000 and HK$563,971,000,
respectively. Properties held for sale under
development and properties held for sale were stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net
realisable value of these properties was assessed by
management and was heavily influenced by
developments in the property market in Mainland
China and economic considerations. To assist
management’'s determination of the net realisable
value, the Group has engaged an independent
professionally qualified valuer to perform the valuation
of certain of these properties.
RZEBEZ—F=A=+—H  EEEASENERES
TEMERGEMWED A /196,299,000 7T &
563,971,000/87C - HERPHFEMELFEMRLEA
HA R FECHNREEZY - ZEWENFEHR
FEAERETEL X PBEAMEY)ETISREE
BANERTE - SHHEEEEEUZRFE &
SEEZEBUNVHEXERNGEEMYE TZEY
FETHE-
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Our audit procedures included the understanding and
reviewing of management’s assessment process and
assumptions adopted; referring to externally available
industry and market data; and considering actual sales
transactions of the Group’s properties during the year
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

B ESAEFERERRENEEBNTEBRERA
RNHRER 2RI ERNITERTSEHIE  REE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
B EBE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BET R E

AR EEE (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEER TR A

Net realisable value assessment on properties held for sale under development and properties held for

sale (Continued)

BRRTSEVERGEVER TR R FENMG ()

The assessment was significant to our audit,
considering the complexity of the estimation process
where construction budgeting is involved; the
estimation of sales proceeds and the assumptions used
in the estimates; and the degree of judgement
involved.

ZRE P MEERE L HEEMSFRALESTAA
MR - URFEHIZE - SIBERTIEFEE - A5
FEMFGEHEMNETFTER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 18 to
the financial statements.

R EEN M B HRERMEIRI8 -

Where external valuation was performed by the valuer
and considered by management to assist their net
realisable value assessment, we evaluated the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the valuer, and performed
assessment on their valuation methodology. We
discussed with and obtained an understanding from
management of how they would apply the valuation in
their net realisable value assessment and the rationale.
We examined the data used as inputs for the valuation,
which included making reference to the market unit
selling price of comparable properties nearby used in the
valuation and performing market value benchmarking
against comparable properties. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
key assumptions and methodologies for the valuation of
the properties subject to such valuation.
EEERMETIHISGE AREEEHE TAZENUDR
BV 5 1T ] IR FERT LR - AR A A ER S ZF#
BT REREMS - REHEMGETRETAE o A
HERE i wmREREEEN AR FEN LR NEE
FASNER (L R AR TR - BAMIZEREMERRANEEE
BE2EZHERBOMAATELBRYENTISIHEEE -
WERAIELBYENTISEETEESDTIEZF - B
NEABEEERBHHRMFIEREBEES  WEML
ENBEREBRRLTE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B, A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
B ETEE

RRETEE (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T 15 B 5 D R 0 B B

Valuation of unlisted equity investments

HFELTRERENGE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s unlisted equity
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to HK$125,224,000, which were
measured at fair value and categorised as Level 3
within the fair value hierarchy with significant
unobservable inputs. The Group has engaged an
independent professionally qualified valuer to perform
the valuation of these investments. The external valuer
has applied valuation techniques to determine the fair
value of these unlisted investments that were not
qguoted in active markets. These valuation techniques,
in particular those including significant unobservable
inputs, involved subjective judgements and
assumptions. Changes in the key inputs and
assumptions on which the fair value of these unlisted
equity investments is based could have a material
impact on the valuation of these unlisted investments
as at the end of the reporting period and could
significantly affect the change in fair value being
recognised for the reporting period.
RZZEZ—F=A=+—0  BE£ERQATFETAE
= B I E T ARIE IR & 125,224,000/ 7T - IR AFE
AETSBERARATFEEBRTEBEATAERGE AR
BHNE=ERK - EXBECZEBYEXSERMGER
‘;TEZ%&%‘t?ﬂETE SMERRE RN E FE R R E R &

ERERBERMBREZIELITREATE - ZF
1315&([] LEZEBRRERTABREAZBLN G
B - B REEHE KRR - ZFIFLHRERER
FEMRENERBABBEMRENEDSHZEIHE
Lm&ﬁﬁ’\#&iﬂﬂﬂiﬁﬂé@?iék%% W HE
HEBERNATESHELETATE -
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 16 and
35 to the financial statements.

B EH N SRR LS - 16 %35 °

Our audit procedures included the evaluation of the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuer,
and assessment of their valuation methodology. We
reviewed and tested the inputs and assumptions used for
the valuation of the unlisted equity investments. We also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the key assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the unlisted equity investments of the
Group, such as market comparables, discount rates and
volatility through comparison with the valuation
methodologies that were commonly used in the market,
and checking various inputs used against available
market information.

BANEAEFERYHEMNTEN BYMREE
AFAERHE - WRHEERAGET R - RAFARIEL
MR ERE G ENEA B RBREETH G B - &
PMmEABEEER BB RMATE EXRESFANEL
MREREHERAERNBRERRMIDE  flmER
LeEm 5 ?:i?Fﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁiuﬂam%Ttt?éﬂ B
RERRE  WHRABINHSEERAREZ HEA
2R -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B % B, A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

resulting

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— A = N2
?-f/]h‘ SE&mE '13«%
Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-Z-_—F=A=1+—HBLEFE

2021 2020
—BE-—F —TFTHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE FET FET
REVENUE A 5 103,799 351,614
Cost of sales $HE P AR (57,344) (267,766)
Gross profit EH 46,455 83,848
Other income and gains H U A KU = 5 10,314 9,393
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment & &W¥ 2 N FEKZ
properties, net (E518) F58 24,950 (22,758)
Administrative expenses 1T (83,966) (73,498)
Other operating expenses, net Hi & &MY - 558 (11,262) (20,664)
Finance costs B E A 7 (20,771) (9,544)
Share of profits and losses DIREEE R R REBE
of associates 2,037 (1,790)
LOSS BEFORE TAX B %4 Al 5 18 6 (32,243) (35,013)
Income tax expense FriS#i 5 X2 10 (6,659) (2,523)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR NFE BB (38,902) (37,536)
Attributable to: AR FEAE -
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE Z SN (36,738) (35,296)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR 42 2 (2,164) (2,240)
(38,902) (37,536)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE RATEBRAFFE AR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EERER
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic AR (3.76) (3.61)
cents Bl cents &1l
Diluted HE (3.76) (3.61)
cents &1L cents FAL
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEZHEKBER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_ZT-_—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —F-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FTET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEE (38,902) (37,536)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HEfh 2 EW A/ (E518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that — F A& BifE Al fEE T 48
may be reclassified to profit or loss in  ZEiEzE 2z EM 2 EUK
subsequent periods: A (EB#E) :
Exchange differences: ME N ZER
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HBREGINEFRFAEL 2
foreign operations PE W =5 96,041 (82,060)
Share of other comprehensive income/  D{hEt& R Al H b2 M
(loss) of associates WA (&) 3,842 (2,763)
Reclassification adjustment of exchange  AFE HER 2 N7 ZE
differences of associates disposed of HERENHDBERAE
during the year — (726)
Reclassification adjustment of exchange 74 JZ ff Ak — ] B A 7
differences of a subsidiary dissolved ZENEHEERDE
during the year T — (1,184)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) A LAR BRI #S AT BEEFT 7
that may be reclassified to profit or HEEm s HihE2mEK
loss in subsequent periods A (E518) F58 99,883 (86,733)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ RAREES T € EH D
will not be reclassified to profit or loss =Bz Htb2 MUK
in subsequent periods: @/ (E518)
Equity investment designated at fair value §EIZAFETAELME
through other comprehensive income: H s 2 RIERE -
Changes in fair value N EEE — 7,550
Income tax effect PR 2 26 — (537)
Leasehold land and buildings: e+ REF
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BHAE% (B 13 5,129 (7,218)
Income tax effect kA 26 (465) 1,446
Net other comprehensive income that will R UABHIR S ~E 55D
not be reclassified to profit or loss in HEEmHM2EK
subsequent periods )R8 4,664 1,241
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ALOSS) AFEHMEEK A
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B518) - BRI 104,547 (85,492)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AFEZ2EUA(FE)
FOR THE YEAR BB 65,645 (123,028)
Attributable to: AT BB -
Owners of the Company KARIER AN 67,721 (120,788)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R (2,076) (2,240)
65,645 (123,028)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e 8RR R

31 March 2021
R-E-—F=HF=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB ME&E 13 315,696 352,089
Investment properties WEYE 14 1,041,350 947,100
Investments in associates REtERNa 28 E 15 27,606 22,476
Equity investments at fair value through IZAF(EFTABZEREY
profit or loss xR & 16 125,224 124,931
Total non-current assets EMEBEELE 1,509,876 1,446,596
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from associates JE Uk ’9‘%%’& =iE 15 3,220 5,242
Due from related companies JE 5 B8 3 R B FRIR 17 — 1,291
Properties held for sale under ERPEFE %%&
development and properties held HEWE
for sale 18 760,270 638,191
Inventories FE 19 11,120 12,729
Accounts receivable JE W BR T8 20 22,536 34,442
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRE - ZE Rk
receivables Hh fE R IE 21 32,852 43,030
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] 7 1B 24,260 22,108
Pledged deposits [V R ES N 22 2,500 3,500
Restricted cash PR %R & 22 4,033 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMkRE&EEHER 22 20,372 20,099
Total current assets RBEERE 881,163 780,632
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Accounts payable FETERIR 23 5,824 8,160
Other payables and accruals EI@JEH%IE&J%EJFE% 24 83,630 71,260
Due to associates JESTEE & N R FRIB 15 3,069 8,280
Due to a related company JET— R B E R R 58 17 13,054 —
Tax payable JE T 5 18 21,787 19,715
Interest-bearing bank and other STERITREMEE
borrowings 25 266,572 191,423
Total current liabilities BB AR 393,936 298,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 487,227 481,794
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEZER B EE 1,997,103 1,928,390
HEREREBEEFRAA T —FFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a0l RRR

31 March 2021
R-ZEZZ—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —EFTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE FET FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other FAFERITREMEE
borrowings 25 218,890 231,550
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 26 191,791 181,164
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 410,681 412,714
Net assets BEFE 1,586,422 1,515,676
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AABEEAEMGES
of the Company
Issued capital BT 27 97,788 97,788
Reserves f# 29 1,491,613 1,422,917
1,589,401 1,520,705
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,979) (5,029)
Total equity B 1,586,422 1,515,676

Tjia Boen Sien
i SR
Director

EF
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Wang Jing Ning

FTrE
Director
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Note

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERGBHR

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-Z-_—F=A=1+—HBLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALREE AR
Share Property Capital ~ Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Contributed Other  revaluation  Fair value Capital redemption fluctuation ~ Reserve  Retained controlling Total
apital account  suplus  reseve  reserve  resenve  reseve reseie reserve funds profits Totdl  interests equity

BETRA BREEE REER  EMBE EGRE AVERE 44BE HORBE RBRE BEE:  RIEM & keREE  EReE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKEO00  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEn TAT  TEn  TEn  TET  TAr TEr  TEn  TER TEr  TEnr  TEx TR TEx

At 1 April 2019

RZF-NEMA-A

97,788 243,040 15,262 23061 136720 (2,184 (9240) 14457 m 9

=

1130997 1651273 (3932) 164734

Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - - - - — (3529 (529 (22400 (37.530)
Other comprehensive incomefloss) FEEEREENE/
for the year: (E%8):
Defictt on revaluation of leasehold land and ~ EfSRETHRIEF2
buidings, net of tax B BesE - - - - ) - - - - - | - )
Share of other comprehensive loss of AMBERAL
associates 2EER - - - - - - - - ey - - ) - 8
Changes in fair value of equity investment — EERATET ALk
designated at fair value through other 2EkEnRE
comprehensive income, net of tax FELTERY.
s - - - - - 10 - - - - -1 -
Exchange differences on translation of BEENEBAELL
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - - —  (82,060) - — (82,060 - (82,060)
Reclassfication adjustment of exchange RERLERENTZ
differences of associates disposed of ER2BENR
during the year #E - - - - - - - - (726) - - (726) - (126)
Reclassfication adjustment of exchange REREY-FNE
differences of a subsidiary dissolved RAZEXEEE
during the year HaEEE - - - - - - - - (1,184) - - (1,184) - (1,189
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEE2EBRER - - - - 6 7013 - - (86733) — (3529 (120788 (2400 (123028)
Release of revaluation reserve El1:04{E! - - - - (5,405) - - - - - 5405 — - -
Release of reserve funds of a subsidiary REERY BB
dissolved during the year MAfEREL
&e - - - - - - - - - (961) 961 - - -
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the HERFRATETA
disposal of an equity investment Lh2EkEY
designated at fair value through other RiEREaREE
comprehensive income NFERE - - - - - 489 - - - - 4829 - - -
Final 2019 dividend paid BRZE-NERH
%) - - - - - - - - - - (4,890) (4,890) - (4,890
Special 2019 dividend paid BRZE-NERI
%) il - - - - - - - - - - (4,890) (4,890) - (4,890
Contributions from non-controling interests KA FZRERELE - - - - - - - - - - - - 1143 1143
At 31 March 2020 RZF-FF=R
=t-8 97,788 243040%  15262¢  23061F  125543* —* (9,240 14457 (86,322)* —* 1,097,116 1,520,705 (5,029) 1,515,676

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREEgER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_Z-_—F=F=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERFAREARE
Share Property Capital ~ Exchange Share Non-
Issued  premium Contributed Other luati Capital redemption ~fluctuation option  Retained controlling Total
Capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
nE Bx Ex

BRARE ROEER EHBE  AERE  EfER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEn FER TER TER TER

BrfifE  WERE RDER BBEERE REER i FEREE  REAR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEn FEn FER TER TER TER FEn FEn

At 1 Apri 2020 RZZ-Z£MA-H 97,788 243,040 15,262 23,061 125,543

Loss for the year TERER - - - - -
Other comprehensive incomelloss) for the  AFEEM2ENE/(HE) :

year:
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land and ~ EfsHE LR

(9,240) 14,451 (86,322) — 1,097,116 1,520,705 (5029) 1,515,676

- - - - (36,738)  (36,738) (2164) (38902

buildings, net of tax BRBE HEFE - - - - 4,664 - - - - - 4,664 - 4,664
Share of other comprehensive income of AEBERAEN2ALE

associates — - — - - - — 3802 — - 380 - 3842
Exchange differences on translation of BERNERAEL RS

foreign operations — - — - - - — 95,953 — - 95,953 88 96,041
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERENEEE 4,664 99,795 (36,738) 67,721 (2,076) 65,645
Release of revaluation reserve EfRBZER - - - - (5,185) - - - - 5185 - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangement HRESEBRERH 975 975 975
Contributions from non-controlling interests ~ REFEERERMNTE — — — — — — — — — — — 4126 4126

At 31 March 2021 R-B--%ZA=1-A 97,788 243,040* 15,262* 2,061 125002

(9,240 14457 13473+ 975 1,065,563 1,589,401 (2979) 1,586,422

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,491,613,000 (2020: HK$1,422,917,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess of the
nominal value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’'s shares issued in exchange
thereof, pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on 21 May
1997.

In the prior year, the reserve funds of the Group included
statutory reserves required to be appropriated from the profits
after tax of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China under
the laws and regulations of The People’s Republic of China
("PRC”). The amount of the appropriation was at the discretion
of these subsidiaries’ boards of directors.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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AT ©

AEEZBERBHERBER -ANEFHA
“tT-BAKBEEEMBANBERARRN Z
E{E® 3T AR FR D Z AR B RO
EEZER -

EF AKREZRBESERARFRTE
Nz M BRARREFEARKME(TH
B )RR R MOIZBREBRTRREN 0B 2k
ERE YAZEHNBRARZESEHRER

EDEEHE -




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHETRER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-Z-_—F=A=1+—HBLEFE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBMSRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax R B Bl 5 18 (32,243) (35,013)
Adjustments for: FTINIEEREH A
Finance costs ﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁﬁ 20,771 9,544
Share of profits and losses of DR A R R N &
associates &8 (2,037) 1,790
Interest income B U A (168) (130)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment KEWE 2 NV EE
properties, net B (k) #ME (24,950) 22,758
Dividend income from equity BAFEFABREEZ
investments at fair value through IR iR E 2 IR E WA
profit or loss (1,300) (1,900)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - WEREE
plant and equipment 5B E5E 17 131
Loss on disposal of associates HEBENF 2 EE — 493
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEREEL
equipment e 13,968 8,931
Provision/(reversal of provision) for net &Y% 2 Al &0 FE
realisable value of properties held for BiE (BERE)
sale, net FE (2,300) 4,430
Provision/(reversal of provision) for FEEE(BERR)
inventories 1,449 (360)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of  FEURBRERE, CRlE
accounts receivable, net o) FE 2,822 (81)
Impairment of other receivables b fE YR IB R E 4,849 142
Fair value loss on equity investments at R AFEFABIEEREZ
fair value through profit or loss, net BHERE 2 A FE
&R 5,880 14,806
Equity-settled share option expense VA PB 1 5 B R AR A B <2 975 —
(12,267) 25,541
Movement in balances with related BENEEHRE T
companies 14,345 2,946
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for ZEEFPFEDERFEY
sale under development and properties 2354 (& 4N
held for sale (15,101) 154,271
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 242 (904)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts JiE U B T8 R D (8 h)
receivable 10,073 (14,279)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and  FBIFIE - e M EME
other receivables W IE R 7,529 1,629
Increase in restricted cash BRI 38 & 38 AN (4,033) —
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable JEH@ET/J‘ i/ Cri ) (2,642) 1,733
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and Hfth g1t Z IE& BB
accruals 0, Gl > 8,981 (215,167)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #&%%fiﬁﬁ 3/ (FrA)
7,127 (44,230)
Interest paid Eh‘ﬂ (32,581) (27,963)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B & FIER (73) —
Overseas taxes paid B EINRTE (1,156) (5,633)
Net cash flows used in operating REXBRARQRE
activities R (26,683) (77,826)
HEFREREEARLAR T —FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

Year ended 31 March 2021

HE-T-_—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EFF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % FTEx T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBGHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 UFE 168 130
Dividend received from equity Bl i A A Jr)\TE'
investments at fair value through profit 2 IR &I &
or loss 1,300 1,900
Purchases of equity investments at fair B EIZAFEF AER
value through profit or loss ZRRERE (6,173) (34,357)
Purchases of items of property, plant and A  BE MR 1E
equipment 18 H 13 (11,653) (1,356)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  HERERHBE
property, plant and equipment B FriS50R — 4
Proceeds from disposal of an equity HEE ?E’D\quﬁ‘Jr)\Ei\
investment designated at fair value b 2 E a2 IRIERE
through other comprehensive income FriS 50R — 16,950
Proceeds from disposal of associates, net W B N T RS 2B
of directly attributable transaction costs ~ FIBR EEEfEIH T %)ﬂiﬁ — 66,837
Repayment from/(advances to) associates, & A\ RIE @ FIE,
net Bl INGIEZINE N
18) - YRZA (3,189) 2,376
Investment in an associate REE QN EHIRE (250) —
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits ETEET FERoR L,/ (1) 1,000 (500)
Dividend income from associates REBE AT EREMA 1,080 —
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & E%HE,/(FTH) R
activities TmEFRR (17.717) 51,984
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMEXBRERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings Mg SRITREMEE 197,916 134,849
Repayment of bank and other ERRITEEMEE
borrowings (152,514) (125,751)
Contributions to subsidiaries from non-  JF#2E A 42 25 A T /B8 A 7
controlling interests AE 4,126 1,143
Dividends paid ERE — (9,780)
Net cash flows from financing activities BIEEBHABRERE
HE 49,528 461
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND & KIR & EEIEE 18
CASH EQUIVALENTS m/ ) F58 5,128 (25,381)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RE¥ZREMREEE
of year I8 B 2,187 28,130
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EREH) 2 2 - 558
net 847 (562)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END MEEZHeMESEE
OF YEAR BH 8,162 2,187
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND & RIRG¢ S EIR A &8
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHE 22 20,372 20,099
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 25 (12,210) (17,912)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in  RIEE&RERIZ
the statement of cash flows BeNIReEEEE 8,162 2,187
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
Deson Development International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 11th Floor, Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the operation of a hotel has become one
of the Group’s principal activities and the Group was
involved in the following principal activities:

o property development and investment;

o trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products; and

o operation of a hotel.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of the

Bt %5 R R Y EE

31 March 2021

—ZE-—F=A=+—H

RAREEEHR

HREERERSEARA

mA([&27])

E—HAREREEMRIL2BEREER
Ale RARZ TBERMEREBILE
BEREEST R ES11E -

FR - BELERAAEETRER 2
— AEBEZIBXBWOT

s PMEBRIKE

e EBEBEERRBARERZLED

ES: R
o HE—REE -

FENELANESR

RBEHRARBEBMBARMFE

end of the reporting period are as follows: wmr
Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered Class of attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
BRITEE/ ERRELES
28 AR ERRE LY HEMRA FAsROER BAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE G
Advancost Assets Limited British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
("BVI")YHong Kong 157 ERR REER
EBRTES
(XBEZBB]) /T4
Allied Health Elements Company Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 Ordinary - 90  Selling of wellness and
BAEEREERAR & 3,000,000 L@ pandemic
prevention
products
HERERDRER
Blocks Success International Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
RERLEE/BE 1XT BBk REER
Century Logistics Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
RBRAES/FE 1ET EBK REER
Deson Commercial City Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
BEAZRAERAF 30 BT BBk REER
Deson Development Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$200 Ordinary 100 — Investment holding
HEEREEBRAT EKBRIES/BA 200E7T LBk REER
Deson Dynasty Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
BERARE (FE)ERARA 30 BT EEkR REER
Deson Innovative Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
HEERRBERERAF BE BT EBR REER

HERREBREEGRAAF

TR FFR
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31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

Issued ordinary/

RAREEESR (&)

FHRNBELARANESR (&)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered Class of attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
BRITEE/ ARAREGER
L SRR EMREE LY HEMBRE  FFROE5 BAk TEXR
Direct Indirect
BEE B
Deson Innovative Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Ordinary - 100  Selling, distribution
HEBEERERAA G 1,000,000% T LiER and marketing of
home security and
automation
products
HE DHREER
ERZRE#
Em
Deson Medical Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
RRRRES/FH 12T BBk REER
Deson (Ningbo) Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
HE (BR)REBRLA ERELES/BH 100X @K REER
Deson Property Development (Kaifeng) Co., Ltd. (a) PRC/Mainland China HK$311,880,000 N/A — 100  Investment holding
HEEXRRE (FHH)FRAAE PE/HERL 311,880,000 FEH REER
Deson Ventures (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
BEEX(FR)ARAR &k BT EBR REER
Deson Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
HEREBRRAA RERTES/BA 12T BBk REER
Gosford Technology Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
ERELES/BH 1=r EEk REER
Grand On Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary — 100  Property holding
BRBEFERRA BB BT EBRK NEER
Honour Advance Ltd. Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
PRAY1YNG &k 2ET LER REER
Medical Technologies Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100  Trading of medical
HEEREEERERAR A% 10,0007 L@k equipment
MTL Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary - 100  Installation and
BEERRRETIRERAA &k 28T LHER maintenance of
medical equipment
and health care
products
RERGBERESR
RRRER
New Perfect Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
RRRAES/ B 127 BBk REER
Often Reach Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
ERELES/BH 1=r EEk REER




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued ordinary/

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

RAREEER (&
FRNELRANESR (&)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered Class of attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
BRITEE/ ARRELED
A8 FMAL/ EMREELY AMBRAE  FAERGER BAl TEEH
Direct  Indirect
H# B
Peaceful Elite Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
ERELES/BE 1%n EEk REER
Super Sight Investments Inc. BVI/Mainland China US$1  Ordinary - 100  Property development
ERELES/RENL 1%n EEk NEBR
Universal Focus Developments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 Ordinary — 80 Investment holding
RBRUEE/BE 50,000%7T E@HE REZR
Win Glory Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100 Human resources
RIUEEXERNAA BB 10,000& 7T E@ER ANER
Winsome Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
REEXERAA BB 2B LER REER
Wonderful Hope Limited BVI/Mainland China US$1  Ordinary — 100  Property development
ERELES/RENL 1%n EEk NEBR
Woodmont Profits Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
ERELES/BE 1%n EEk REER
Yan Man Developments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
ERELES/BE 1%n EEk REER
IHEX (B ARRA) PRC/Mainland China HK$12,000,000 N/A — 100 Property holding
TE/HERL 12,000,000 7 @A nEER
BETREZERAA () PRC/Mainland China RMB17,043,000 N/A — 100 Property investment
hE/ R E R AR TER MERE
17,043,0007C
Note: B 5
(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law (a) BERBEERFMAIIEGBE DS

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

ERANERESAREHAREARSF
ERXEBREIBEZEIBRATEEE
FEEERDZARRMBAR - EF
RASMGHMBIER R ZFBIL - &
EARMGEBNITE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 3% 3R 3R MY &

31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for leasehold land and buildings
classified as property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

LA

WEMBHRRDBREBZT LGNS
(BEREFMAE ) MEMZ EEN
HEE((BEBMBREEND(BE
FRAEEEMBHREER - BEGER
(IBBgstER]) k2E)  FEAR
ST ERRERB R ARSI 2 R EM
B o W FEH MR TIIRIFE L KA ME
PiEs HESLHREFT (DERY
X BMEIERE) BREVDERBER
BIME AT EFERIBRSN o B BIEH
S - WK TIAE T (BT 2
) TBEBERAEEREROIZTUH
(FBT) -

RER%E
RAMBRREBRAREREMNB AR
(R AEBDEE_T - —F=H
=t HUEFEZMBHRE - HEXF
BEARBEEIEAERZEINER (8
RERLEER) WAKERZ2ERR
BREBMmMYEAZRREERRELFS
H - BBRENITEERIRETNEN
TERALOR(NARETAKREES
BWIRE T EEABNE N S) - A
AEBERZ BB -

AR ERAERRER PNVRIRE S
REFREESBLUER - RIFHER
NREAYRRETREHERIE - KK
EeZEMmARBEELER 8% :

(a) HEZWRETEMBEEHEEA
ZERRH

(o) REEMENOLHEMESZEN
)53

(O AEENRZERBERSI®-




2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKAS 16 Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1 April
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)
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Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on 1 April 2020, and the amendment did
not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to
HKFRS 17
Amendments to

HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 20212

Insurance Contracts*
Insurance Contracts*’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction*

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 413
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

7 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if
the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign
currencies based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
as at 31 March 2021. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the
Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings when the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying
the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that the exemption does
not apply and that companies are required to recognise
deferred tax on such transactions. The aim of the
amendments is to reduce diversity in the reporting of
deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the
amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment
of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its leasehold land and buildings
classified as property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and equity investments designated at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, leasehold lands and buildings classified as
property, plant and equipment, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a party, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Land and buildings, classified as right-of-use assets and
owned assets, are measured at fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of
property, plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the property revaluation reserve. If the total of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer
from the property revaluation reserve to retained profits is
made for the difference between the depreciation based on
the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the property
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

24 FESHHREE (F)

ME - BERRBURTE

WME - BFE MR A S ER R

WEREMREBEARK - WX BE
BB EREBAERIKZE

ERAREBARR K B B E & P

BEESXNZER -

ME - BEMREBERABERAEEZ
X WEERREES  —REEH
EEZHEANR BRI - HENE
RIGH  EAREZAXAREER
EETAERCERRE - WYX - B
EhEHEzZEIZHNFOHEHR - K&
BemRRnERHAEREERFHL
ERIEE SXHEIFHERTE -

DEAERAEEERABEENLTHR
BFRAFERERRITE KR EE

EEHE -

AEERFETHENRREREEZ
AHEREEEETNGAEAEE - Y
X BEEREZEEZIIENEER
BRI - REREEESE It
2 BB RIABHEA - AEBEE
M BERE RN - RREAEGE
Bt ABE R MUBENR ZEBEAR
R-EREELEMRAEITERE
REZBEERRRAZFEZZEE
- BFEMYEELREERERE
WA e HE—HBHEER  RUAER
BERZMFRERRFRBIBRBDIE
ARERHN - ERFHEEHZESEE -




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis to write off the cost or valuation
amount of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining lease terms

Leasehold Over the remaining lease terms
improvements

Furniture and 15% on the reducing balance basis
fixtures

Office and other 15% on the reducing balance basis
equipment

Tools and 15% on the reducing balance basis
equipment

Motor vehicles 15% on the reducing balance basis

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation amount of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to properties
held for sale, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
The Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owner-occupied property up to the date
of change in use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, except for land which is measured
at fair value, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease

terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land held as inventories, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with the Group's policy
for “inventories”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in
investment properties. The corresponding right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
and rewards incidental to of ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit
or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

24

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—E—%=A=+—H

TEEHHEREE (&)

TREERE
AEEBLPIA L IFA /IR AFERTA
BEak @B TARRBEHEERKX
((AHMEEEX]) &E - BHERRERX
DEREAOIMZANEERELR
SEEMBERMZAEREREZME
MER  BRORGERN KBRS
e BHRSREMBRLEMFER
Rz B2 REIBR A OIRRTEH
DZEMEEERIER

—REH

BHEERAD MERRER - B8 ¥
SATERIASRAE B EL R I B A MR IR 102 {5
ERRmE  BAHREEBRKXDIRHAER
ARR1EREE ZBOEMHERZE
ERKAFRBEB2EAEHEER
K)o ENBERAREERREL
RIEENZZEEERRTS - FEM
RERFISERA 2 BHREERLR
BRRE MAWENRKE(2HEY
EEEX) -

REREEH AREFEERTAZ
EERER B IR R AKRE S AEE
e BEL A AR AEBLL KSR
TARHEAHES ZENRBRER T
AR IAELEENZR
o WEBELEBESHAK T TA
BzAERAEREER BEELE
RIRE L& K -

BANMNAR0AR FEEeRE
MEEEQ - AM - EETHERT B
MEP SN D E R BRR A SR E T A AT BE

FEAREERE 2 EMEEERE A
BB ARBEENTER  AEH
MAREEREMEERY - WAL BETE
BHREEMNRERE - MISMHESR

ERREBREEEGRAA —T-—FFH

129



130

Notes to Financial Statements
B 3% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk

has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at

the reporting date (but that are not

purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 1

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables, certain accruals, amounts due to associates
and a related company, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Properties held for sale under development and
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended for sale
are included in properties held for sale under development
and properties held for sale and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, which is estimated by the
directors based on the prevailing market conditions. Costs
include all costs directly incurred in the properties under
development, including development expenditure, borrowing
costs and other direct costs.

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all development
expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices on
an individual property basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and a joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when the purchasers obtained the
physical possession of the completed property, and
the Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

(b) Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the assets is
transferred to customers, generally on delivery of
products.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(c) Hotel operations
Revenue from the provision of hotel operations is
recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

customer

Revenue from food and beverage operations of a
hotel is recognised at the point in time when the
control of food and beverage products is transferred
to the customer, generally upon purchase of the food
and beverage items by the customer.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfer control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note
28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/loss
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who were eligible to participate. The ORSO
Scheme operated in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee left the ORSO Scheme
before his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group were reduced by the relevant amount
of the forfeited contributions. With effect from 1 December
2000, the Group has operated both schemes and those
employees who are not eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate of 2.5% (2020: 4.8%) has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of contracts
related to sale of properties

The Group determined that the sales contract with
customers requires the Group to complete the development
of property before transferring the legal title of the relevant
property to customers. The Group also determined that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment from
customers for performance completed to date before the
transfer of legal title of the relevant property to customers.
Consequently, the Group concluded that the timing of
transfer of properties is at the point in time when the
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property.

Impairment of non-current assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value does not exist; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections, including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards of
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out on and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@)  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March
2021 was HK$1,041,350,000 (2020: HK$947,100,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in
note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of net realisable value of properties
held for sale under development and properties
held for sale

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including recent prices of similar properties in the same
location and condition, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the dates of
transactions that occurred at those prices. Particulars of the
properties held for sale under development and properties
held for sale of the Group are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on land appreciation tax
("LAT”) implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties in
Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994 are
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures,
including the amortisation of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to LAT,
which have been included in income tax. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various
Mainland China cities and the Group has not finalised its
LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. When the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the
income tax and provisions for LAT in the period in which
such determination is made.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimates regarding the realisability of deferred
tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair values of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
market-based valuation techniques as detailed in note 35 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group
to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and
select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair values of these
investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note
16 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three (2020: three (restated)) reportable operating segments
as follows:

(@) the property development and investment business
segment is engaged in property development of
residential and commercial properties and the holding
of investment properties;

(b)  the trading business segment is engaged in the trading
of medical equipment and home security and
automation products; and

() the "others” segment comprises,
operation of a hotel.

principally, the
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

In the prior year, the Group had two reportable segments
which were the property development and investment
business segment and the “others” segment. The trading
business was previously included in the “others” segment in
the prior years. As a result of the increased transaction
volume of the Group’s trading activities during the vyear,
management has reassessed the Group’s segment reporting
and decided that for financial reporting purposes, the
trading business is set aside in a separate reportable
operating segment as the resources allocation, performance
assessment and decision making of the trading business
segment are considered separately. In addition, the “others”
segment includes, principally, the operation of a hotel which
is located in Mainland China in the current year. The
Group’s comparative reportable segment information s
restated as if the Group had been operating under the
three segments for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of profit/loss before
tax. The profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/loss before tax that interest and dividend
income, fair value changes on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss, finance costs, share of profits
and losses of associates, loss on disposal of associates as
well as unallocated head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESFER (EF)

150

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE-_ZS-_—-F=A=+—AHL#HE
E

Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Others Total
MEBRRR
REEK BREK Hith et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT FBT FBT
Segment revenue (note 5) XU A (HizES5)
Sales to external customers HETINEER 45,300 49,104 9,395 103,799
Other income and gains H U A R k2= 8,612 165 69 8,846
53,912 49,269 9,464 112,645
Segment results DEEE
Operating profit/(loss) mgEEF (BE) 13,375 988 (5.339) 9,024
Reconciliation: HER -
Bank interest income |ATFLE WA 168
Dividend income from equity  EAFETAETE
investments at fair value iR 2 IR REIR E AR
through profit or loss BIA 1,300
Fair value loss on equity BRATFEFAER
investments at fair value MRz RERE 2
through profit or loss, net N EEE (5,880)
Finance costs W% 8 R (20,771)
Share of profits and losses of 71k B 4 X 5] 3% F
associates K& 2,037
Unallocated expenses ROBLFHZ (18,121)
Loss before tax PR RIS 1B (32,243)
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)
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ReEsBEER (&)

BE-_ZE-_—S=A=+—H1LtHF
E (4&)

Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Others Total
NEBRR
REXK BEREK Hith Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T F#& T F#& T F#& T
Segment assets PEEE 1,988,968 31,258 158,951 2,179,177
Reconciliation: HER -
Investments in associates REEREINRE 27,606
Corporate and other NElREMARD
unallocated assets BE 184,256
Total assets EEBE 2,391,039
Segment liabilities PEAEE 372,486 10,837 20,129 403,452
Reconciliation: HER
Corporate and other NAREAMKRDE
unallocated liabilities af& 401,165
Total liabilities ABEESE 804,617
Other segment information: HttHEEH :
Fair value gain on investment & WE QA FERK
properties, net w3 E (24,950) — — (24,950)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and BEEAERE
equipment — 17 — 17
Impairment of accounts FE W AR TE R E)F A
receivable, net 642 2,180 — 2,822
Impairment of other receivables % b & 4t 5% B (B 3,663 1,144 42 4,849
Provision for inventories FERE — 1,449 — 1,449
Reversal of provision for net BIEHEWE A
realisable value of properties %35 (& & & &
held for sale, net B (E (2,300) — — (2,300)
Depreciation of property, W WERZE
plant and equipment e 8,402 341 5,225 13,968
Capital expenditure* BEARFEZ* 13 5,733 5,907 11,653
* Capital expenditure represents additions of property, plant and * BRRZIERBEWME  BERRE -

equipment.

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH

151



Notes to Financial Statements
B 3% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESEER (E)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020 (restated) BE-_Z-_FEF=A=+—HL#HF
E(RE5)
Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Others Total
MEFERER
BE B RS Hith #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T

Segment revenue (note 5) WA (KFEES5)

Sales to external customers HETINEER 302,170 49,444 — 351,614
Other income and gains H U A R k2= 6,474 178 711 7,363
308,644 49,622 711 358,977

Segment results DEEE
Operating profit/(loss) mwEEF (BE) 5,069 6,438 (5,715) 5,792
Reconciliation: 5 -
Bank interest income WATFE WA 130
Dividend income from equity — EAFETAER

investments at fair value iR RIERE R

through profit or loss BUA 1,900
Fair value loss on equity BRATFEFAER

investments at fair value R IRIERE 2

through profit or loss, net N EEE (14,806)
Finance costs i8R (9,544)
Share of profits and losses of 7 1& B 4 X &) 3% T

associates L EE (1,790)
Loss on disposal of associates & Bt & A &) E1E (493)
Unallocated expenses ROBLF (16,202)
Loss before tax BrBiRIE 1R (35,013)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
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REesHER (&)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020 (restated) (Continued) BE-—ZE-EF=A=+—HLHF
E(RES) (&)
Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Others Total
MEFERER
REXT CEES Eh 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Segment assets PEEE 1,844,120 33,893 115,815 1,993,828
Reconciliation: HER -
Investments in associates REEE R B 2 RE 22,476
Corporate and other NElREMARD
unallocated assets BE 210,924
Total assets BERAE 2,227,228
Segment liabilities PEAEE 403,456 9,600 2,522 415,578
Reconciliation: HER
Corporate and other NAREAMKRDE
unallocated liabilities af& 295,974
Total liabilities BERTE 711,552
Other segment information: HttHEEH :
Fair value loss on investment A WME QX FEES
properties, net BFE 22,758 — — 22,758
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and BEEAERE
equipment 131 — — 131
Reversal of impairment of JE W AR TE R (B 4 1
accounts receivable, net FAE (81) — — (81)
Impairment of other receivables £ fth & U 5% 18 &l & — — 142 142
Reversal of provision for FEREEED
inventories — (360) — (360)
Provision for net realisable FELEmE 2T
value of properties held for BN FERE
sale 4,430 — — 4,430
Depreciation of property, plant #12% - & M & &
and equipment e 8,665 113 153 8,931
Capital expenditure* BEARFEZ* 6 263 1,087 1,356
* Capital expenditure represents additions of property, plant and * BRRZIERBEWME  BERRE -

equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong
R
2021 2020
—EB--F _F_FF
HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FET

ReEsBEER (&)
i@ & #
(a) BNEFZWA
Mainland China Consolidated
HER e
2021 2020 2021 2020

—®--%F —T-TF —¥-—F “T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET  FART  TER TR

Segment revenue: SEWPA -
Sales to external customers HE TFINBRS 35,732 30,428

68,067 321,186 103,799 351,614

The revenue information above is based on locations
of the operations.

(b) Non-current assets

F U AN E R T E S HE R IR s
EEH -

(b) ¥REBEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHET

Hong Kong 5 142,944 139,342
Mainland China el 1,214,102 1,159,847
1,357,046 1,299,189

The non-current assets information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes investments
in associates and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

Information about a major customer

During the year, revenue of approximately HK$14,586,000
(2020: HK$170,667,000) was derived from gross rental
income (2020: sales of properties) by the property
development and investment business segment from a
single customer.
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—ZE-—F=A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Hitl AR
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADTET -
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue from contracts BEFAHWA :
with customers:
Income from property development — #¥EZE RITE XK 2 WA
and investment business 24,454 282,301
Income from trading of medical BEBERBELRERT K
equipment and home security and BBLER KA
automation products 49,104 49,444
Hotel operations B JE & 9,395 —
Revenue from other sources: Habyg AR :
Gross rental income WA 20,846 19,869
103,799 351,614

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended 31 March 2021

() ZHFBAER

PoE-—fF=ZH=+—H

LEFE
Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Others Total
MEBRRR
REXEW BREK Hit HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHET FHET
Geographical markets: EHE
Hong Kong BE — 35,732 — 35,732
Mainland China B A 24,454 13,372 9,395 47,221
Total revenue from contracts with R —FRI2EH#R
customers recognised at a point BEAKBMAEEE
in time 24,454 49,104 9,395 82,953

ERREBREEERAQF
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hiblr AR Wz (&)
(Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFBAER(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 (restated) P oE_EF-H=+—H
IEFE(BREZ)
Property
development
and
investment Trading
business business Total
MR R
WEEH B 5% e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Geographical markets: WEMHEG -
Hong Kong B — 30,428 30,428
Mainland China B i 282,301 19,016 301,317
Total revenue from contracts PRE — R B g
with customers recognised at REF A K
a point in time NL 282,301 49,444 331,745
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREJNFARSHYENE
recognised in the current reporting period that were & WHAREBHHEBRNKA
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of B

the reporting period:

2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue recognised that was ~ RBREHITAANEGEN
included in contract liabilities ~— ERERUWA :
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sale of properties HEME 2,264 218,280
Sale of goods HEEm 1,030 1,031
3,294 219,311

156 Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report




5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s
obligations is summarised below:

performance

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property is obtained by the purchaser.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements because all
the remaining performance obligations in relation to
the income from property development and
investment business are a part of contracts that have
an original expected duration of one year or less.

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
90 days from delivery.

Hotel operations

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are
normally required before rendering the services.

The performance obligation of food and beverage
operations of the hotel is satisfied when the control
of the food and beverage products is transferred,
being at the point when the customer purchases the
food and beverage items at the food and beverage
operations. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately at the point when the customer
purchases the food and beverage items.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

5. WA~ Hitblr AR WK (&)

(ii)

HERREBREEGRAAF

BREE
AEENBENETERBANT :

BHOREDIRERDBERTY
ENERBEBESORTEMBER
STRK °

ERATRENE  DEEFHR
BHEE(CREREED REK)
MR ZEM TSNP B RRME
TRE ASEYMEERNERE
EBBABBOAARNGREOE
EDNRERAFEHRHR A —FHAT
KB KB —#n -

#HEE i
BHEEIRERXNERNSRT
X T ERFGR F AR TR 90K
RER RN

JEEEE
BHEENIREREETH - B
RERBSA —REERI(EH
R o

BENERLERNETINR®
KSR i an IR il e R (RS
BEREREHZMBERM

RanIA B ) TR © R BN RN EE
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ Ef A R Wz ()

H WA RKEDHFAT

2021 2020
—E-—fF TE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other income and gains Hi A & Wz
Bank interest income AT AL E A 168 130
Dividend income from equity BAFEFABREZ
investments at fair value through AR IS B AR B U A
profit or loss 1,300 1,900
Gross rental income L WA 5,874 6,184
Government grants* IR AT 47 B * 1,834 —
Others Hh 1,138 1,179
10,314 9,393
* The government grants were granted under the Employment Support * 468 Bh THAR IR B B e 1T IR RS TR 3t

Scheme of the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to retain employment and combat covid-19. As at the end of
the reporting period, there were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.
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LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIERE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ ANEBBRFATEE TSR (GEA) T
(crediting): HIFIA -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZT-FTF
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
F 5 TEx FHET
Cost of properties sold EEMELAR 18,738 233,881
Cost of inventories sold and services EEFERDRERE
provided DN 38,606 33,885
Provision/(reversal of provision) for FERE (BRI
inventories, included in cost of ) sT AN EFEE
inventories sold and services provided FERERERS
above KR 1,449 (360)
Auditor’s remuneration wHEmME R 1,769 1,650
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB REETE
equipment R 13 13,968 8,931
Direct operating expenses (including repairs FRERH & 2 & W) ¥ &=
and maintenance) arising on rental- ErBEEER
earning investment properties (BFRMEENMRE) 2,729 2,563
Lease payments not included in the FEHEEERIES
measurement of lease liabilities AZHEHIA 598 497
Rental income on investment properties & &Y 2 & WA
less direct operating expenses of BEEEERX
HK$2,729,000 (2020: HK$2,563,000) 2,729,000/ T (=
ToTE
2,563,000/ 1) (18,117) (17,306)
Rental income on other properties less HinEH e WARE
direct operating expenses of ¥ 23E 7 2 519,000
HK$519,000 (2020: HK$569,000) BT(ZZE_TF:
569,000/ 7T ) (5,355) (5,615)
Employee benefit expense (including BERNAX (BIEE
directors’ and chief executive’s =R EBITHAEH
remuneration (note 8)): © (fzE8))
Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances  T& - & * 1E41 %
= 35,237 29,501
Pension scheme contributions* BABET B 676 524
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 1 45 B R ik e
X 28 975 —
Less: Amount capitalised W BAEFRIA (1,388) (1,646)
35,500 28,379
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment WEME N ERES
properties, net (Wzs) - =80 14 (24,950) 22,758
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BREREE
plant and equipment/ 18 B R B8 17 131
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of JE W BR TR B, OB B
accounts receivable, netA o) - EEA 20 2,822 (81)
Impairment of other receivables” H A i Y R IR R E A 21 4,849 142
Fair value loss on equity investments at fair & A {Ear Az 2 %
value through profit or loss, net? EREANTEERF
B o 5,880 14,806
Provision/(reversal of provision) for net FEMER BIR ) FEE
realisable value of properties held for B (BERm)  F
sale, net? ‘A (2,300) 4,430
Loss on disposal of associates” HERE R a2 EiEA — 493
Foreign exchange differences, net? E W R - JFEEA (6) 743
* At 31 March 2021, there were no forfeited contributions available to * RZZEZ—F=A=+—H A5ELE
the Group to reduce contributions to the pension schemes in future VR W B AT R SRR B R D R R @ 5T
years (2020: Nil). R (=T =TF : |,) -
A These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the A I EFRBEYAGLEIBERRAZ [HMEER
consolidated statement of profit or loss. = FFE] e
HEFREREEARLAR T —FFH
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. HMBEBEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERSITET :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans and RITERLEMEEZFE
other borrowings 32,581 27,963
Less: Interest capitalised B BBz AE (11,810) (18,419)
20,771 9,544
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITETHAEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, B EmRBI BB Qa6 5383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), @~ b)) OROBEARDF (HEES
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and FzmBE)ARME2E  EENEBITHR
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about ABEFREFMBEELOT
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees we 600 600
Other emoluments: B
Salaries, bonuses and allowances & o B4 BOERL 9,526 8,104
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS 4 45 & B AT AE 5 % 606 —
Pension scheme contributions RS FTEIMHR 106 77
10,238 8,181
10,838 8,781
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERIEMTHAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the vyear, certain directors were granted share FR - REARGBRESE  BTE
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the FAHERANEEREHRORBERER
share option scheme of the Company, further details of W E— DB EN M B RERNEE28 .
which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. HEBRENATEEREBHRRNER
The fair value of such options, which was recognised in the mERNER - Mk A FEDREL B
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was EE Mat ARFREVBHRERANESEE
determined as at the date of grant and the amount HREMEERFETHABTHHEE
included in the financial statements for the current year is A o

included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYFBTES

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expense remuneration
URELEE
e WA RERA X &5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR FET FTET
2021 —E-—F
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond {ajé&& B+ 240 24 264
Ir Siu Man Po R OK TA2Rm 240 24 264
Mr. Siu Kam Chau ARk LE 120 24 144
600 72 672
Fees
e
HK$'000
FAT
2020 —E-EF
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fsERIE LT 240
Ir Siu Man Po 7RSO TR2AD 240
Mr. Siu Kam Chau L Eikia 120
600
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to FABED B IEBTT
independent non-executive directors during the year EE7HMHME(ZT_FF:
(2020: Nil). &) o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEBERFETHAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) BITEERITHAR
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
bonuses and  share option scheme Total
allowances expense contributions remuneration
e DREEE R E
TEAL R IERE BIREMX sTEIMR MeBE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TFE T FHET FET
2021 —Eo—f
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien (“Mr. Tjia”)*  #iSCE %4 ([#EE]) 4,275 24 — 4,299
Mr. Wang Jing Ning FRELE 3,200 270 18 3,488
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William Bl e 1,926 240 88 2,254
Mr. Lu Quanzhang* EERESLLEY 125 — — 125
9,526 534 106 10,166
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
bonuses and share option scheme Total
allowances expense contributions remuneration
E2c A DREEE Bk
TEALRIER B IR AR X2 sTEMHR MemaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
2020 —z-3f
Mr. Lu Quanzhang ERERE 300 — — 300
Mr. Tjia* Fo 3,420 — — 3,420
Mr. Wang Jing Ning TRESLAE 2,920 — 18 2,938
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William il 1,464 — 59 1,523
8,104 — 77 8,181
There was no arrangement under which a director REEAMBESHEXRER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EEAe 2 (T _ZF
the year (2020: Nil). ).
* Mr. Tjia is also the chief executive of the Group as defined in * EETRAREBEOITHRER (E
the Listing Rules. HER WAL -
# On 25 August 2020, Mr. Lu Quanzhang resigned as an # E2ELAER=_FT=_FFNA
executive director of the Company. Z+RABEERRARMITES -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR 9.

MANAGEMENT

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2020: three) directors including the chief executive,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
two (2020: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

IEREHREERSREEAS

AEEZRHERSHEERRE=2(=
TTHE =R EBEF(BRIBTHRA
8) FRENS ZF B2 &8RN XM
H8 - FHMAFEHSBMA(ZZE T
FoMB)REFESMIEARAERIT
BABZ &EFHEEZMEFBEHSIA
™

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A ROERL 2,367 2,071
Equity-settled share option expense  DAPS#E 45 B BE fL #E 5 2 226 —
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFHEIME R 36 36
2,629 2,107

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FMETIBE ZRFEEMIETEIT
BABZE&Z=#HREREABNT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2 1,000,000/8 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;& 7L £ 1,500,000
BT 2 2
2 2
During the year and in prior years, share options were RAFERBREFE G —BREE

granted to a non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employee in respect of his services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

HERREBREEGRAAF

EMFEETBABZEHEBRE
AEEMEERLBERE  E—FFE
BN MR 28V MBS - BRI
BENDFENEBHRERDRE
R AL AMEE  NFEMHR
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10.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR 9. TR REHFESRSREEAES
MANAGEMENT (Continued) (%)
Other than the directors’ remuneration and five highest paid BRTUEREC EEME R AU ESH
employees disclosed above, the amounts paid to senior BB ZINTIEEREREEAER
management as disclosed in the “Biographical details of ZBE| —SMBERERs aREREABZ
directors and senior management’ section are as e
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFTF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e AL KERL 381 407
Pension scheme contributions IRREETEIHER 19 19
400 426
INCOME TAX 10. FriE Bt

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax regime effective from the year of
assessment 2018/2019, and the first HK$2,000,000 (2020:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are
taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

RAFE  BEFNSHEILDEREBESE
ZAEFTERBER BB E16.5% (=
T-FF 1 165%) IR EAEE®
—HERBRAaAE T NF /T
—NERBRFEREINFIEHERRS
HTHAEBERERRIN MMBAR
52,000,000 (=% =& F
2,000,000/ 7)) B FE 22 1k F12 8.25%
(ZE T 1 825%)HF - MerTJE
REEMAIZI65% (ZE T F
16.5% ) 8%t o H [ 2 fE 2R i i )
MECEASEBEBMEZ SRR
WITHEFTE -




10.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

LAT in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditure, including the amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

10.
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Frig st (&)

A st i S E LR i BB T R
230% ZE60% 2 i B K B4 - i 18
BB 45 4 3 P15 SRR .4 it i
FIEMLY  BEKARFENERRS
oz MBS -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current — Hong Kong REE — BE

Charge for the year REEZ N 67 —

Current — Elsewhere REE — Htbh[E
Charge for the year REEZZH 2,055 2,712
LAT in Mainland China AR b 2 £ R E (193) 4,499
Deferred (note 26) JRIE (BI7E26) 4,730 (4,688)
Total tax charge for the year RNERRIBEX HEE 6,659 2,523

HERRBEREEERAR —T-—FFH
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

10. FrB% (&)
EANERARR RERIHWE AR
i el =R 2 B E B R E 2 BREL AT
EEIZHERARERERRETE R

to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as follows: ERZHERNT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHExT FHEIT
Loss before tax B A E 18 (32,243) (35,013)
Tax at the applicable statutory tax BEAEAEMEFE ZHIE
rates (4,503) (4,905)
Lower tax rate enacted by local 75 4 B8 7 A6 B BUER B R
authority (86) —
Profits and losses attributable to B N Al e m N B 1R
associates (336) 295
Income not subject to tax TREW 2 BA (3.620) (4,316)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAIHUR A B 2 X 10,142 3,238
Effect of withholding tax at 10% or AEERFEZHEAGZ
5% on the distributable profits of A4 3 R A1 0% 3%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 5% A 2 & (576) 1,434
Tax losses utilised from previous BT 2 BIEEE
periods (313) (1,004)
Tax losses and temporary differences KR 2 I8 E 18 & B
not recognised =8 5,132 2,530
LAT + g (E (193) 4,499
Others Hitb 1,012 752
Tax charge at the Group's effective  RAKBEEREH%-20.7%
rate of —20.7% (2020: -7.2%) —ETF 1 -7.2%) 5
B2 HRIBRX 6,659 2,523

The share of tax charge attributable to associates
amounting to HK$101,000 (2020: HK$159,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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DIVIDEND 1. RE
2021 2020
—E- % —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Special — Nil (2020: HKO.5 cent Bol — \(CT-FF:
per ordinary share) BRI BAR0.5 1) — 4,890
In the prior year, a special dividend of HKO0.5 cent per EF  FRHRESREBROSEME
ordinary share was approved at a special general meeting RZZE-RFERAT—ARTHRER
on 11 June 2019. RIRE DS -
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. XRABEBRAFAEARGER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 977,880,400 (2020: 977,880,400) in
issue during the year.

]

BREREEDREARQ R LB AR
EAEEFABELEFNDRITZER
A% AN F 15 8(977,880,400 8 (ZE=F
£ : 977,880,400% ) 51 & -

HERRBEREEERAR —T-—FFH
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
amounts attributable to the owners of the Company is

ARAEE
&R (&)

BRAFEAREER

ARRIEBANBIESRERNREETER
TRE T BIERH

168

based on the following data:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-T4F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET T
Loss EiE
Loss attributable to ordinary equity —~ ERRERRESEIBTEM
holders of the Company, used in RAZ AR A EBRAR
the basic and diluted loss per share & A JE{H &8
calculation (36,738) (35,296)
2021 2020
—E-—f —T_TF
Shares i gni)
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt E &I EAERE 2 A
shares in issue during the year used — FE D EHITEBRINEF
in the basic loss per share HEk
calculation 977,880,400 977,880,400
Effect of dilution — weighted average #BF £ — LB INEF
number of ordinary shares: e
Share options* R AR~ — —
977,880,400 977,880,400
* No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts * BEg—EgEmuBz_T_—F=A1

presented for the year ended 31 March 2021 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of share options had an anti-dilutive effect on the

basic loss per share amounts presented.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt R R M

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

2 A
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BERRE
Right-of-
use assets Owned assets
ERREE BEEE
Furniture Office and
Leasehold Leasehold and other Tools and Motor
land Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total Total
WAZRH
HAEL &3 HELEE BARKE RE TERRE RE ot ot
HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
31 March 2021 -2
=A=t+-8
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020: R-_E_ZT
Cost or valuation 139,354 210,426 6,151 564 2,454 123 1591 221,309 360,663
Accumulated depreciation - - (5611) (436) (1,432) (35) (1,060) (8,574) (8,574)
Net carrying amount BRHEFE 139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 88 531 212,735 352,089
At 1 April 2020, net of accumulated RZTEZZTF
depreciation mA—R -
MR RIE 139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 83 531 212,735 352,089
Additions BR — 5,907 122 — 5,624 — — 11,653 11,653
Disposals & - - - - (17) - - (17) (17)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BHEAK (B 14,169 (9,040) — — — — — (9,040) 5,129
Depreciation provided during the year FRFRINE (4,972) (8,224) (240) (14) (431) (20) (67) (8,996)  (13,968)
Transfer to properties held for sale EREHFEWE
(note 18) (Ft3E18) (20,650) (32,922) — — — — — (32922 (53572)
Exchange realignment [E 5 % 2,736 11,388 36 9 201 5 7 11,646 14,382
At 31 March 2021 RZT——F
=A=+—A8 130,637 177,535 458 123 6,399 73 471 185,059 315,696
At 31 March 2021: RoZ——fF
=A=+—H
Cost or valuation FRAN Sk k(A 130,637 177,535 6,724 604 8,242 129 1,655 194,889 325,526
Accumulated depreciation Rt E — — (6,266) (481) (1,843) (56) (1,184) (9,830) (9,830)
Net carrying amount BREFE 130,637 177,535 458 123 6,399 73 471 185,059 315,696

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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Bt R R M

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥1% - BEKZE ()

(Continued)
Right-of-
use assets Owned assets
EREEE BEEE
Furniture Office and
Leasehold Leasehold and other Tools and Motor
land Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total Total
BAER
HELH [ £ HEXE KAREE EtRF IARRE RE #E #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
31 March 2020 —E-%F
=A=+-~8
At 1 April 2019: RZT—NF
MA—8 :
Cost or valuation Ak Ak 1B 135,456 91,449 6,357 957 1,984 40 1939 102,726 238,182
Accumulated depreciation BEHiTE - - (5,780) (834) (1,686) (26) (1,294) (9,620) (9,620)
Net carrying amount FREFE 135,456 91,449 577 123 298 14 645 93,106 228,562
At 1 April 2019, net of accumulated RZE—NF
depreciation mA—R"
kR Rty e 135,456 91,449 577 123 298 14 645 93,106 228,562
Additions R — — 178 69 1,022 87 — 1,356 1,356
Disposals & (43) (64) (28) (135) (135)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation sHAK (B (7,858) 640 — — — — 640 (7,218)
Depreciation provided during the year FAHEITE (4,644) (3,791) (181) (15) (210) (12) (78) (4,287) (8,931)
Transfers from properties held for sale BERPEEME
under development FEEc 17,920 124,127 124,127 142,047
Exchange realignment [k (1,520) (1,999) (34) (6) (24) (1) (8) (2,072) (3,592)
At 31 March 2020 WZE-_ZTF
=HA=+-—8” 139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 88 531 212,735 352,089
At 31 March 2020: N-T-—ZE
=A=+-—8
Cost or valuation KA E 139,354 210,426 6,151 564 2,454 123 1591 221,309 360,663
Accumulated depreciation 2t E — — (5,611) (436) (1,432) (35) (1,060) (8,574) (8,574)
Net carrying amount FREFE 139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 88 531 212,735 352,089
Note: The Group's right-of-use assets represent prepaid land lease payments M : AEBEZEREEERRATEFEZRE
which are measured at fair value. The leasehold land, together with HrEEFRE HELHBERBBHET

the owned buildings, are held for own use. The land leases are
expiring between 2047 and 2053.

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were revalued
individually at the end of the reporting period by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at an aggregate open market value of
HK$308,172,000 (2020: HK$349,780,000) based on their

existing use.
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

A revaluation surplus of HK$5,129,000 (2020: deficit of
HK$7,218,000) resulting from the revaluation has been
credited (2020: charged) to other comprehensive income.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would
have been approximately HK$165,896,000 (2020:
HK$198,218,000).

As at 31 March 2021, certain leasehold land and buildings
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$291,180,000 (2020: HK$281,800,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
25).

The Group appointed an external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuation of the Group’s properties held for
own use and had discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s properties held for own use:

13.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
T-_—F=A=+—8

Y% - BER&RE (FE)

ShEL ZBHA5,129,00008 T (=
T -TF : E47,218,0008 ) ERHE
HEEREFTA(ZEZF - k) °

i 5% & 1 3 M2 IR 52 Ak A R I
E78  HEMEK# 5165,896,000
T (B - F4F 198,218,000/ 7T) ©

R-E-_—F=A=+—8H" EEE% 118
291,180,000 T (=& - T 4 :

281,800,000 T) 2 AEEH ﬁ"ﬂ?‘fi
WREFHE FEE - (EAREBER
BETIRITEE ZER (FiE25) °

AEBZREIBHEEMEEEAEERR
TFERMZYMFREITINGEE - LRHF
[E B R e AT (E RS - B (E R REE
BERZE L AEERETIW

AT EER
TERMAAEER S RN EATET
EER:

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2021 using

R-ZB-Z-F=ZA=+-BAVEHE &£
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RIE R EATEE EBEATUHEE
miEZRE BARE WARE et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(R Bl—) (A=) (A=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FHET FTHET FTHET
Recurring fair value BIATIEBETT
measurement for: NS
BitE :
Hotel property* B JE W)+ — — 148,680 148,680
Commercial properties — FIZEMEMIEE
and car park spaces** fL** — — 159,492 159,492
Properties held for own i {EE A%
use — — 308,172 308,172
MEEREREEARAT T -—FFH
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31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BEKRKE (E)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEER (&)

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2020 using
R-F-FF=A=+-AATENE A

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RiERTS s BAUERE EATITHE
wmE N ¢ W ABE st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(&5B1—) (HBI=) (HBRBI=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET FHET
Recurring fair value BIATIER#ET
measurement for: ZIEEM AT
B
Hotel property* B 4 5 * — — 143,000 143,000
Commercial properties EEMER
and car park spaces** {FEEL** — — 206,780 206,780
Properties held for own  #5{EE ¥
use — — 349,780 349,780
* Included leasehold land of HK$22,774,000 (2020: HK$18,040,000) * BIEFAEEETWHEE 122,774,000
under right-of-use assets B (ZZT =T : 18,040,000 7T) °
% Included leasehold land of HK$107,863,000 (2020: HK$121,314,000) *x BEEAEEETMEEL107,863,000
under right-of-use assets BT (ZT 24 1 121,314,000/ L) °
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - BRI —BERR = 2 B /AT
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BRfEcER  TEEESSIEREAR
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). M=(=ZZB=_FTF : &) o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

Y% - BER&RE (FE)
DVPEEER(E)

DBER/ANFEFERBN=AZ2FET
EZHEK:

2021 2020
—BC-—F —F-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Carrying amount at beginning of year R F#ZREE 349,780 226,905
Additions IR 5,907 —
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation REMEERZEANERZ
recognised in other comprehensive shAH(BAL)
income 5,129 (7,218)
Depreciation e (13,196) (8,435)
Transfers from properties held for sale 3 %% fh 15 & 1) 2 88 43¢
under development — 142,047
Transfer to properties held for sale HREHFEME (53,572) —
Exchange realignment ME W SR 14,124 (3,519)
Carrying amount at end of year RERZREE 308,172 349,780

HERRBEREEERAR —T-—FFH
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31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BENRRZE (&)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEER (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and FIEERMEREMAZHERTG RE
the key inputs to the valuation of properties held for own T ABBRMET
use:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range/weighted average
RERI EAFAEEEAHE BEMEFIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-FF

Properties held for own use:

BHIEEBRME
Hotel property Investment method  Estimated rental value RMB48 RMB50
B 5 W) % "EE (per square metre AR#48T AR50
per month)
ERR A
(BFAAEAR)
Term yield 4.00% 3.75%
FHIM A K
Reversionary yield 5.75% 5.75%
Commercial Direct comparison Market unit selling price HK$1,475 to HK$1,408 to
properties approach (per square foot) HK$6,737 HK$6,560
BEME HELBOXR M EMEE 14758 T E 1,408 &
(BFHR) 6,737 T 6,560/ 7T
Car park spaces Direct comparison Market unit selling price RMB300,000 RMB300,000
EEAL approach M5 EMEE AR ¥300,000t AR¥300,0007T

BERLLEOE
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is estimated on the
basis of capitalisation of existing rent receivable from the
existing tenancies and the potential reversionary market rent
of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
properties held for own use, which included the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the estimated rental value
and reversionary yield, while it takes into account the rental
value generated from the existing lease term to arrive at the
term vyield.

The key inputs were the estimated rental value, term yield
and reversionary vyield, where a significant increase/
(decrease) in these inputs would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the properties held
for own use.

The direct comparison approach

Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is
estimated by the direct comparison method on the
assumption of the sale of the property interest with the
benefit of vacant possession and by referring to comparable
sales transactions as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
properties held for own use, which included the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the market price per square
foot and each car park space.

The key input was the market price per square foot and
each car park space, where a significant increase/(decrease)
in the market price would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the properties held for own
use.

13.

HERREBREEAFRAF —F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
T-_—F=A=+—8

Y% - BER&RE (FE)

R EER(E)

REE

RBREE  RHEDBZENEER
EHEZRYCRAHEE RNEBERERMS
MEFTURENEZ EEMMGE -

EITHERSRREEEREEAME
o BREGE  mRE Bk 28-
BE ZRENEREMEZ  UBHMH
AHEEERERKREE  RAKEEA
BEMBPEL R EE  WEHFEH
W= o

TEHABBLGAESEE  FHK
X RERREE  ZEFBABEAE
EF(TRRO B @E8BRERRTE
NFERELA(FE)

EEREE

BIBEZLEE  AFEDUERLER
o BREERSIRGTHELLESE
BTG EB 2 AL REER S MIE
{5t -

EITHERSERERFIFEAMEZ
i BRUE - BR - BIR- S8
BE BERENREMGER  UBEE
FHREZFEMOTIGERS -

TBHABBREFHREEFEMN
M5 ER - TISERAE LA (TE)
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31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

14.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY%E
2021 2020
—E-—fF T FTF
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET T T
Carrying amount at beginning of year WFE#ZEREE 947,100 1,031,589
Net gain/(loss) from fair value NFEEAE 2 W (6
adjustment (note 6) 18) %5 (fisEe) 24,950 (22,758)
Exchange realignment P& 5 % 69,300 (61,731)
Carrying amount at end of year RERZEEE 1,041,350 947,100
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on RZEZ—F=A=+—H8 A&EEZ

31 March 2021 based on a valuation performed by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at HK$1,041,350,000 (2020:
HK$947,100,000).

As at 31 March 2021, certain investment properties of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$573,480,000 (2020: HK$539,000,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
25).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties are hotel properties, commercial
properties and car park spaces, based on the nature,
characteristics and risk of the properties. Each year, the
Group appoints an external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group’s properties and has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included
on page 47.

WEYELHBLEESRERGHEMS
BIFEERARIEMMITHEEZGA
1,041,350,0008 T (= = F :
947,100,000/ 7T) °

RZTE-_—F=A=+—H  K"EBK
418 &573,480,0008 T (ZE =&
£ 1 539,000,000/ 70) W& TRHEME
W EAAEEERSETRITIEER
PR (FF5E25) °

BERELEHESREMELETE=
B BEHE-—TSHEHFNYERERN
5F31

REMEOEE - BHREAR - AAF]
EXECHREREMERBENE  BE
MERISEEN - NEEBFZR IR
BB BHAREYRETIMNBMGEE
YRHFRPBREETHER - pb
ERZ&EESREGEMETH®

AEBERENMEZFBHNFITA -




14.
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

14.

REME (&)

DNEEER

R

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2021 using
R-E-—-§=A=+—-HATHEHE £H

TREAAEEREMEAFEHES

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RIER BEXRA EAFAEE
MEZHRE BEGAZE LN ¢ st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(& A-) (A=) (/A=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAET FAERT FTHET FTHER
Recurring fair value MATIEE#ETZ
measurement for: N ]
e
Hotel properties B IS — — 188,682 188,682
Commercial properties EEMER
and car park spaces EEN — — 852,668 852,668
— — 1,041,350 1,041,350
Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2020 using
W=Z-FF=A=1+-BAFEHE M
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
i EAR] ERTAHE
MEZHRE BERAZE W A SR aEt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(BR—) (BAI=) (BA=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET THET TET
Recurring fair value HATIERETZ
measurement for: mEEATE
E
Hotel properties BIEYE — — 167,640 167,640
Commercial properties ~ EEMEN
and car park spaces BE — — 779,460 779,460
— — 947,100 947,100
HEFREREEARLAR T —FFH
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31 March 2021
—E—%f=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REW=E (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEER (&)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - B —BRR = 2 B /AT
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no EfEvEE TEERZEEAR
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). F=(ZFE=FF ) -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within DER/RRNVESFSHRN =Rz A EE
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: B HEK:

Commercial
Hotel properties and
properties car park spaces

BEMER
EIEY % FEN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAIT T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RZE-NFHEA—BZ
REE 203,229 828,360
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value KECHERAAFEARZ
adjustment recognised Wz, (B518) F%5 (23,430) 672
Exchange realignment [ER IS (12,159) (49,572)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 R-ZF_ZF=H
and 1 April 2020 =t+—HRZEZZF
MA—HZREE 167,640 779,460
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REEHERAFERFHEZ
recognised et 58 8,850 16,100
Exchange realignment PE 5 % 12,192 57,108
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 R-ZT-—F=#
=t+—BZKEE 188,682 852,668
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

REME (&)
RFEER(E)
BREMEGEMAZEERTLTRERE
ABUERE RN -

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range/weighted average
RERI BEARAEHEEASIE EE, MEFIH
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
Hotel properties and Investment method Estimated rental value RMB37 to RMB37 to RMB64
commercial "EE (per square metre RMB68 ARMEI7TLE
properties per month) AR¥E3ITE AR 647
BIEYE R EE hEtHEEE ARH¥68T
(8F77kEA)
Term yield 2.00% to 6.25% 2.00% to 6.25%
G ER U

Reversionary yield

ER

Car park spaces Direct comparison

FEAL approach price
HEELBOE MHEBEMNEE

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is estimated on the
basis of capitalisation of existing rent receivable from the
existing tenancies and the potential reversionary market rent
of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which included the location, size,
shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the estimated rental value
and reversionary yield, while it takes into account the rental
value generated from the existing lease term to arrive at the
term vyield.

The key inputs were the estimated rental value, term yield
and reversionary vyield, where a significant increase/
(decrease) in these inputs would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Market unit selling

2.00% %#6.25%  2.00%%£6.25%

5.50% to 7.25% 5.50% to 7.25%

5.50%%7.25% 5.50%%7.25%
RMB160,000 RMB160,000
AE#160,000t A R#160,0007C

REZE

BIERER A FENEZSEWESR
FHEZERUBEHENEEESRMS
e TFUBRE 2 EEMMGE -

ETHERSRBERREMEZR
oBRMLE HE TR 588
B BRFOHREMAR GG
HEeBERERREEX AKEEER
FHHEL 2 HEEE  UEHFHK

9
HE -

TEHABBAGEAESEER  FHK
DX RERREE  ZFRABIEAR
ERCT) B @EBREMERF
EXRE LT (TR °

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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14.

15.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REYX (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEER (&)
The direct comparison approach BB L
Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is BEEELEE A TVEDUEELER
estimated by the direct comparison method on the ZE o BRERMEREETRGHELLLE
assumption of the sale of the property interest with the BEEMSAESZALREEZT S MmE
benefit of vacant possession and by referring to comparable R
sales transactions as available in the market.
The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the ETHENSEEBERREME LR
investment properties, which included the location, size, oBEELE EE TR 28 E
shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other B ENEHREMER - UFHEE
factors collectively, to arrive at the market price of each car BUMHSER -
park space.
The key input was the market price of each car park space, FEWMARBRZIFELNTIHER
where a significant increase/(decrease) in the market price EMIBERAELEA (THE g8
would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair BINEMELNFERNE LA (T -
value of the investment properties.
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. RBEQFAZRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Share of net assets EIEBEEFHE 13,384 8,254
Loan to an associate H—RHE AFELS
=P 14,222 14,222
27,606 22,476
Amounts due from associates JRE W B & N B R IE 3,220 5,242
Amounts due to associates FETHSE & N A FRIA (3,069) (8,280)

The loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, this
loan is considered as part of the Group’s net investments in
associates.

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

BB ERAIHFLNERSERA

SBRAREREE - EERA - K
iR A R B 2 R —
#5 -

BB DT 2 B ARIER 8 RE
BEREE -




15.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Place of
Issued ordinary/ incorporation/

registered share

registration and

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
——%=A=+—H

Z*ﬁﬁ (lnﬂ)
AlLZ BT

VB D ]
BB ERA

x

Percentage of

ownership attributable

Name capital business to the Group Principal activities
SEM AR LR R
£18 RITEE MR XD AEBEGEEEAOL TEXK
2021 2020
—B=—-F _—_ZT_IZTF
Axxonsoft Hong Kong Limited HK$500,000 Hong Kong 50 50 Investment holding and
500,0007% 7T, aE software licensing
B R M R
Deson Metals Company Limited HK$5,000,000 Hong Kong/Mainland 40 40 Trading of construction
HMERSEMARAR 5,000,000 7T China materials
i/ REAM BEMHES
Hua Sheng International Real US$12,900,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 30 Property investment
Estate Development (Shanghai) 12,900,0003% T R B A LIES g
Co., Ltd. (a)
EBERREXME(LE)
BRRF()
New Leaves Limited Us$100 BVI/Hong Kong 30 30 Investment holding
100 7T KBRS /B REER
SecurePlus Limited HK$500,000 Hong Kong 50 — Investment holding,
500,000 7T B trading of intelligent

Us$11,700,000
11,700,000 7T

Yew Siang Limited BVI/Hong Kong

Note:

(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held
through subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of certain associates because it exceeded the Group's
interests in these associates and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The Group’s aggregate
unrecognised share of losses for the current year and share
of accumulated losses of these associates amounted to
HK$2,558,000 (2020: HK$82,000) and HK$4,093,000
(2020: HK$1,535,000), respectively.

RBELHE/ BE

HERREBREEGRAAF

security system

equment
REZK  HERR
,%%mxﬁaa
30 30 Investment holding
REZR
B E
(a) RIFFEER  ZEREMRIBEED
ES
ERFAIIEREZRRSHAEE AT

f%iﬂﬁﬁig%%‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ BmEE

FEEERRNZAKEBRERR B
RASIGH AR E R B 2 FBIL - &
EARMEBNITE

AEBRBE AR ZBREBBAR
WEBRRHE -

AEBEEKIEEREELIHEE QR
ZEE THRREBaAERRZEY
BARZEm BEAEBUESTRES
ZEE c REBERAFTE R RERZIE
HEBAEREGZERE AR 2 25T
B85 Bl A&2,558,0008 L (- F
F 1 82,0007 JT) &4,093,00058 7T (=
T - F4F 1,535,000/ 7T) °

=z —=

TR FFR

181



182

Notes to Financial Statements
B 3% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

15. RBEQ T 2RE (F)

TRINRASEE 2 B & R 7] 2 I IFE B

information of the Group’'s associates that are not BEZZAGHBER
individually material:
2021 2020
=F=—F —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for & A &) 4F M@ Fl,~
the year (518) 2,037 (1,790)
Share of the associates’ other DG E A E H A2 EIR
comprehensive income/(loss) =/ (F18) 3,842 (2,763)
Share of the associates’ total DMEBE R R EEME
comprehensive income/(loss) (518) 4a%8 5,879 (4,553)
Dividend received B B (1,000) (80)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AN BB = A FHE RIS
Group’s investments in the associates BEAZEEZEEE
that are not individually material 458 27,606 22,476

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report




16.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

16. BAFEFTAERRNORERSE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Equity investments at fair value RAFEFABREREDN
through profit or loss BRERE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3F M R#EIRE © #%
nNHE
Century Rosy Limited Century Rosy Limited 13,172 11,359
Deson Development International HEEREREE
Holdings Investment Limited KEFR AR
("DDIHIL") (IDDIHIL]) 53,779 54,039
Excel Castle International Limited HREBEER AR 51,050 50,407
Pamfleet Shanghai Real Estate Fund II, Pamfleet Shanghai Real
L.P. Estate Fund II, L.P. 3,794 3,992
Sky Fox Limited Sky Fox Limited 3,429 5,134
125,224 124,931

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has not
elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through
other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received
dividend in the amount of HK$1,300,000 (2020:
HK$1,900,000) from DDIHIL.

RN B SR F R AR 2E
Was AP ERSEREE - it R
IR E B TR IR E R A FER
AB#HE -

REBEE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLHF

- N&EE A DDIHILU R 21,300,000
T (22 —F4F 1 1,900,000/ 7T) °
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17. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 17. EHEEQANEER
The balances with related companies are unsecured, HEERRNERARER 2R KA
interest-free and repayable on demand. BREREE -
The particulars of amounts due from related companies are EW R E A FIRIBENFELOT
as follows:
Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding 31 March outstanding
31 March  during the 2020 and 1 during the 1 April
2021 year  April 2020 year 2019
n
—E-FEF
=A
—E-—F =+t—HE
=ZH FAKBR ZZBZTF FR&KE ZT-AF
=+-8 Re®E WA-HB REe®mE WA—AB

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T TETT T TETT TETT

Excel Win Limited Excel Win Limited — 1,308 1,128 6,369 4,013
Fitness Concept Limited ~ BREEAIZER A A
("FCL") (TR EEAIZ]D — 8 1 70 51
B8 B Yy Hs A R JEEE B AR
BRAF] ARAF] — 162 162 173 173
— 1,291 4,237
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18. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE UNDER

19.

DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

18. BRPHENRREGENE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Completed properties held for sale BRI EE 563,971 493,153
Properties held for sale under BRPFEME
development 196,299 145,038
760,270 638,191
Properties held for sale under BRPFEME
development
— expected to be recovered: — FREART A LA TN AR
e -
Within one year —F A 196,299 145,038

During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain items of the
Group's property, plant and equipment with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$53,572,000 (2020: Nil) (note 13) were
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 March 2021, certain properties held for sale under
development and properties held for sale of the Group with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$167,796,000 (2020:
HK$151,470,000) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 25).

Particulars of the Group’s properties held for sale under
development and properties held for sale are included on
pages 44 to 46.

REZE_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HL1LHF
/g - BRE 4 {E A53,572,0008 L (= &
ZEF EIZAEEVE - BERE
HETETHEE (MF13) EEAD &K
HEWE -

MR-ZZE-_—F=A=+—H  REALE
167,796,000 Tt (22 & F ¢
151,470,000/ 7T) c AEEE TEHREF
HFEMERSEMHEDER - EEEE
BEERETRTEERE 2ER M
25) °

AEBERPEEVERGEDEZF
ISENEL44T 468 -

INVENTORIES 19. F&
2021 2020
—E-_—F —ETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trading goods R5Em 11,120 12,729
HEFREREEARLAR T —FFH
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20.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

20. BWERE

2021 2020

—EZ—F T FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Accounts receivable JiE Ug BR 18 27,094 36,134
Impairment B (4,558) (1,692)
22,536 34,442

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 90 days for the sale of
trading goods and up to 180 days for the sale of
completed properties held for sale. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its accounts receivable balances.
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEBEEUREFAEBETFIVE
PER - RHERHEEFEEH KA
H MEERAEEMEZEESAEZ A
180R - BEEFPHEREHESEER
B o NEBBSRE KRB E 2 RIRERIE 4
BHERETE sfEEEerHEa
BRI AE R 1B » BB A BB i AR5
ERWERERASRZ 2 ZTTLRFA
B AT ESAEREERE - A&
] 7 48 kL R U AR TE R FE 4 A (TR IR 4
mEREMEAEERE - BREEAR

B o
T

RBEHER - HEF ARG EE
BEBRFE BB RE 2 REE DT 0
™

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 90 days 90HRW 13,620 24,594
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 5,565 4,202
181 to 360 days 181HZE360H 1,227 3,444
Over 360 days #360H 2,124 2,202
22,536 34,442




20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

FE W AR TR (%)
EWRAE 2 REBRREZSHMT

2021 2020

=F=—-F i

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year REH] 1,692 1,815
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) REBECRERBEE

losses, net (note 6) @) - 5 (MisEe) 2,822 (81)

Exchange realignment PE X 73 % 44 (42)

At end of year REFER 4,558 1,692

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region and product type). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

An analysis of accounts receivable by operating segment is
as follows:

REHRE AR ABEREETRE
DI A EFRREERK - BEERT)
ERARERRUEBEERN (A iRinE
BEMEMBR)NZETF DA ET
DHMABIE B HETE - &t HRR
ERTMEER EREBERNEEH
HIRISMARBEEE - AR &R
KEBEARRBRNEIERAIFEER - —
AR S - {280 H R i — F Ko 30 4 m] 5
MIT/RE) - H M sH U AR

BREENRRWERESNNT

2021 2020
—E-_—F —ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = THET T

Property development and MEBERRIZEED (i)
investment business 12,400 19,272
Trading business BH5%E (if) 14,694 16,862
27,094 36,134

ERREBREEEGRAA —T-—FFH
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20.

Notes:
(i) Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
accounts receivable related to the property development and

investment business using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2021

FE W AR TE ()

(i) AT # 5B REEMEREEMENBRYER
ERBEEEBHRYGRENEERR -

R-B--%=A=+—-AH

Past due
mH
Less than 3to6 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
DR =Z +tz +=@A
= =8 A ~MEA  +=M@A Bk HEE
Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEAX — — — — 24.9% 5.2%
Gross carrying amount REREE(TAET)
(HK$'000) 7,414 2,408 — — 2,578 12,400
Expected credit losses EHEEEL
(HK$'000) (FA&T) — — — — 642 642
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZHX=A=+—-H
Past due
Less than 3to6 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
DR =F +& +=M@A
=5 =& A ANEA +=@A Ak 4azs
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEAX — — — — — —
Gross carrying amount HEmE (TET)
(HK$'000) 14,588 2,341 — 1,003 1,340 19,272
Expected credit losses TEHfEEEX
(HK$'000) (FHET) — — — — — —

As at 31 March 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. EWAR™E (&)
Notes: (Continued) Mgk (&)
(ii) Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the (ii) LTEVERFERREERENBHEESE
accounts receivable related to the trading business using a provision HEBERENEERR
matrix:
As at 31 March 2021 R-—Z-_—-f=A=+—H
Past due
B
Less than 3to6 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
DR =z +tz +=@A
=] ={8 A A<EA  +=M@A 0k “wE
Expected credit loss rate FEHfEEIEAX 2.3% 10.3% 31.4% 76.2% 96.5% 26.7%
Gross carrying amount RERHEE (TET)
(HK$'000) 6,212 3,157 1,943 2,108 1,274 14,694
Expected credit losses TEHfEEEK
(HK$'000) (FHExT) 145 325 610 1,606 1,230 3,916
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-BF=ZA=+—H
Past due
pag:
Less than 3to6 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
LPR=@ ==XE +£E+= +=fEA
=5 A A @A LA E 4%
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEAX 1.8% 9.6% 11.0% 12.5% 79.6% 10.0%
Gross carrying amount WRRmEE (THET)
(HK$'000) 10,186 2,058 3,444 — 1,174 16,862
Expected credit losses FEEfEEEX
(HK$'000) (F#ET) 180 197 380 — 935 1,692

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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21.
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

21.

RANRE - ZE R EMERFIR

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHE T

Prepayments TERT IR 14,241 15,556
Deposits e 214 214
Other receivables H b e U SR8 41,706 44,397
Impairment AE (23,309) (17,137)
18,397 27,260

32,852 43,030

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied
to other receivables of HK$23,309,000 (2020:
HK$17,137,000) relating to debtors that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in payments as at 31 March
2021 was 100% (2020: 100%).

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
related to receivables for which there is no recent history of
default.

AREERSERERLXERAEENESL
BRESERBAREREETRED T
BARESEHFAE  URBERERM
RRGEEARTER(NEE) - R T
——F=ZA=+—H ' $23,309,000/%
T (ZZ -4 17,137,000 7T) 2 &
KRB RAZBREAR100% (=ZF
ZTF 1 100%) - H B R B 7 R £ ok
NHREREH2EBAGE -

R ARRE 2 12 & N EL A MR R 508 e R
AT IR K 2 i) MR IR o
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22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

BT - B RS
IlE
HitpEWRIBZ REREZSIT

2021 2020

—E-—fF —T-THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAEIT

At beginning of year REY] 17,137 20,179
Impairment losses (note 6) JREE K (ffiEe) 4,849 142
Amount written off as uncollectible W AE AW E 2 FIE — (1,984)
Exchange realignment PE X F3% 1,323 (1,200)
At end of year RER 23,309 17,137

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individual other receivables
where the repayments were defaulted and these receivables
were not expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

it A FEMOR 2 B E B R B R
B 2 B R B s kIR 2 B - B
FRWFARTAR TR @ » AELBE AR
AR EESRTEEMNERRSREMER
@i o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 22. BERBEELEEHEE  SEHFRE
DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH REZREES
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE 24,405 20,099
Time deposits TEHF S 2,500 3,500
26,905 23,599
Less: Pledged deposits for banking B RITEEZEHER
facilities (note 25) TR (FfizE25) (2,500) (3,500)
Restricted cash for a legal dispute BEREUD 2
(note) SRHEES (M) (4,033) —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEFEHEER 20,372 20,099

Note: As of 31 March 2021, the restricted cash was temporarily restricted
from use according to a court order on a legal dispute with a
creditor in Mainland China. The restriction was released subsequent
to the end of the reporting period upon the settlement of the legal

dispute.

M : HEZZ-—F=FA=+—8 ZRHK
SRREBETBE NG - L ERNEEMD
BHZERG S EALERIRHMR
T ARREIRERAGDBIRE  NRE
BIRISEIRRER -
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22,

23.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate cash and
bank balances and deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$14,122,000 (2020:
approximately HK$10,706,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

22.

23.

BekBEEESEHER  cEA R
REZRERE (A

RBERER  NREBUAARBHEZR
e RBITEHRNTRAELN A
14,122,000 L (ZZE = F :+ 4
10,706,000 7T) - AR TR A K
WAEMER - SAMIRIEF B A IMNE
ERIGED RERE - SEERNESER
T AEEW AT S BEREETTINE
EBZRTBARBEIBRAEMER -

ROTRSBEFHRTHEINEL TS
MEREE - EHERFR—R—BE=
BARE  BRFAREHNERSH
SKMGE - W% 8 5 HE 7 5 R B
BRI S o RTTAE R S B R TE SR A7 DR
AT HANE # 5 K0 ER 2 (BB RIFRVERTT ©

FE S BRIE
REHER - B RERER A
BZEREDTMT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 90 days 90HRW 1,391 3,679
91 to 180 days 91THZE180H 584 624
181 to 360 days 181HZE360H 191 276
Over 360 days #360H 3,658 3,581
5,824 8,160

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally ERNEREBEA®RL  —MREMNI0A RN

settled on 30-day terms. Ho




24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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24, BEENSRERESER

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Deposits received Bz e 6,641 4,920
Other payables E {th B~ FRIE 41,269 36,979
Contract liabilities (note a) A48 E (MHiEa) 8,217 7,270
Accruals FEETE R 11,616 7,230
Due to non-controlling shareholders JRE A< 3F 122 B AR R SR I8

(note b) (P ED) 15,887 14,861
83,630 71,260

Notes: B 5E -

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

(@ AHAEHBHT:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
—EC-—F —E-TF —T—-NF
=H=+—H =A=+—H MmA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FHTT T T
Short-term advances EHREFHNEHRER
received from
customers
Sale of properties HEME 4,584 5,299 244,502
Sale of trading goods HEXSHEM 3,633 1,971 1,648
8,217 7,270 246,150

Contract liabilities included short-term advances received to transfer
property interests and to deliver trading goods to customers. The
increase in contract liabilities in the current year was mainly due to
the increase in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of trading goods at the end of the year.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

SHBEBERRERINERBTAERY X
B URINRGERETP - AFE
ENAEENEIEHRFREERZER
BB UWRE S R BB RSN -

(b)  ENFERREFRASEER  RERA
RERIEE -
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25.
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—#=R=+—H~

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. FFERBRTREMEER
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) per (%) per
annum Maturity HK$°000 annum Maturity HK$'000
ERERE AREFERE
(%) Rz FET (%) F| 8 A FET
Current Bl 59
Bank loans — RITER — BHE 2.4 to 6.8 2021 149,200 3.6 t0 7.5 2020 143,700
secured biit 24%68 Z—B-—%f 36%75 _—E-TF
Bank loans — RITER — AL 6.3 On demand 17,679 6.3  On demand 20,875
secured 1 BRER REK
Bank loans — RITER — EE 23 2022 6,000 — — —
unsecured # —Eg=-=
Bank overdrafts RITEX Best lending On demand 12,210  Best lending  On demand 17,912
rate - 0.5 BRER rate — 0.5 REK
to 1.5 or or Hong Kong
Hong Kong Inter-bank
Inter-bank Offered Rate
Offered Rate + 1.0
+ 1.0 REBEE
BRESHEE FFE — 0.55¢
FE - 052 BEBIRIT
150 E B B35\
RITEEFE + 1.0
+ 1.0
Trust receipt loans  {ErEdIEE & 2.4 to 2.5 2021 3,423 2.0 to 3.9 2020 8,936
24%25 Z—EB-—fF 20%39 C—ZT-THF
Other borrowings HifEE 7.0 to 12.0 2021 to 2022 78,060 — — —
— unsecured — EEM 7.0£12.0 —ZE=-—FZ%F
—E-fF
266,572 191,423
Non-current JEBNHER
Bank loans RITE R 6.4 2022 to 2026 132,750 6.4 2021 to 2026 151,250
— secured — HIEHE —E--FZ —TE=—FZ
—EoXRE ZTTRF
Other borrowings HiEE 9.5 2022 86,140 9.5 2022 80,300
— unsecured — I —E-CF —E-C
218,890 231,550
485,462 422,973

2021 Annual Report




INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)
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FFRRITREMEE (&)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Analysed into: DA

Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITTER :
Within one year or on demand —FRAHIZEK 188,512 191,423
In the second year E_fF 29,500 27,500
In the third to fifth years F=FZRF 88,500 82,500
Beyond five years RAEF 14,750 41,250
321,262 342,673

Other borrowings, repayable: JEEEHMEE
Within one year or on demand —FARILEK 78,060 —
In the second year £ 86,140 —
In the third to fifth years EF=ZFERHF — 80,300
164,200 80,300
485,462 422,973

Except for secured bank loans of HK$227,129,000 (2020:
HK$245,825,000) and unsecured other borrowings of
HK$133,199,000 (2020: HK$80,300,000) which are
denominated in RMB, and trust receipt loans of
HK$2,423,000 which are denominated in USD (2020:
HK$3,464,000 and HK$1,252,000 denominated in USD and
EUR, respectively), all remaining borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

HERREBREEGRAAF

BEEIFRITE 227,129,000/ T (=
T~ T4 : 245,825,00058 7T ) K 4 1 4
H £ #133,199,000 T (Z T =&
£ 180,300,000 7T) LA A REEHE -
MAETHENGELEREER
2,423,0008 c (=2 =T & :
3,464,000/%8 7T % 1,252,000 7T 5 Bl A
ETLRBMTAHE) 2 TERTEE
BB TTEHE -

TR FFR
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25.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's banking facilities are secured by:

(i)

(iii)

In addition,

the pledge of certain of the Group's leasehold land
and buildings situated in Hong Kong and the PRC of
HK$291,180,000 (2020: HK$281,800,000) (note 13);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s investment
properties situated in the PRC of HK$573,480,000
(2020: HK$539,000,000) (note 14);

the pledge of certain of the Group's properties held
for sale under development and properties held for
sale situated in the PRC of HK$167,796,000 (2020:
HK$151,470,000) (note 18);

the assignment of rental income from the leases of
certain of the Group’s properties; and

the pledge of the Group’s time deposits of
HK$2,500,000 (2020: HK$3,500,000) (note 22).

certain banking facilities are secured by

corporate guarantees executed by the Company as at
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. One of the Group's
other borrowings is secured by a personal guarantee
executed by a director of the Company as at 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil).

25.
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26. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt R R M

26. EERIE

31 March 2021

—ZE-—F=A=+—H

FARCEEHRBEBEIEEHMT

as follows:
2021
—E-—F
Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
Revaluation Withholding taxable
of properties taxes profits Total
] i 4 85
EMYE B =R E R et
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At beginning of year REH 160,149 21,015 — 181,164
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRRIBEEERI
the statement of profit or loss B (Gt A)
during the year (note 10) ZIRERIE
(Mi3E10) 6,237 (630) (877) 4,730
Deferred tax charged to the FAREEM
statement of comprehensive RNk Z &
income during the year ERIE 465 — — 465
Exchange realignment M H AR 5,432 — — 5,432
At end of year RER 172,283 20,385 (877) 191,791
MEEREREEARAT T -—FFH
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26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

26. EIEFIE ()

2020
—E-FF
Revaluation Withholding

of properties taxes Tota

EREIES TR #BEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FHET T

At beginning of year REA) 172,062 19,476 191,538
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the HFRRIEZEEINR,
statement of profit or loss during (Gt AN) 2 iBEERIE

the year (note 10) (Pff5E10) (5,690) 1,002 (4,688)

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRREEKEFERINEL,

statement of comprehensive (BT A) ZIRERTE

income during the year (1,446) 537 (909)

Exchange realignment PE 55 A (4,777) — (4,777)

At end of year RER 160,149 21,015 181,164

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$107,727,000 (2020: approximately
HK$109,477,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately HK$46,881,000 (2020:
HK$34,571,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. In addition, the
Group has temporary differences arising from provision for
inventories, accounts receivable and other receivables of
approximately HK$23,777,000 (2020: approximately
HK$17,492,000) in aggregate as at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$149,293,000 (2020: approximately
HK$144,048,000) and the above temporary differences have
not been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and in the opinions
of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against the tax losses can be
utilised.
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26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

26.
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EERE ()
RIFRBRDEMERE - RPB A
T ZNERECERIINHREEESTIRRK
BABKI0%TENR - WIREA-ZTZ
NFE—A—HEEN WEAR_-ZZ
tE T+ A=+ —HEZEF - fHPEH
A EINR I EE 2 REER A R AR
BRI IE4 A E AR EA BN
RomAREEMS  BAMEA5%K
10% ° AL - $%IETE%#$HW
WK 2 ZENB RN _EENF—
A— Ei?imﬁﬂ% oIk B B% B 8
FEFOF o

ARBHNBE T ERRALREAEHE
REE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Shares & 4
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Authorised: EERRA
1,500,000,000 (2020: 1,500,000,000) 1,500,000, OOOHQ
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —EEF
1,500,000,000 0% )
EREEI10B L
B 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: EREITRARKAE
977,880,400 (2020: 977,880,400) 977,880 4OOH§
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ZEZFTF
977,880,400 %)
GARMEE0.108 T2
A 97,788 97,788

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in note
28 to the financial statements.

HERREBREEAFRAF —F

ARRLZ BT 8 RRIBA 81T 2
BREFBTENM B RRME28 -

—FER
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28.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 August 2012, the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 14 August 2002 ceased to operate
and a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 15 August 2012 to comply with the
requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules regarding
share option schemes of a company. There was no
outstanding share option under the old scheme upon its
cessation.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, the
Company'’s shareholders and other employees of the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 15 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Group at the adoption date of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

28.
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An
option may be exercised under the Scheme at any time
during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date when
the option is granted and will expire on the last date of
such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

28.
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31 March 2021
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fBRESTE (F)
ARATREHEREEN 2 Bist
SHAREAREAR AR E BT
MBI A - ERR AR R A B AT R
AR IR I o 12 T BIB 1 4F HARR (T
RATHE - MR AEORE - B8
Hi o

BEREZTEERESEE TS
ROARRBENRIFHEREZOZH
REE R FTPT R 2 W 8 ¢ (i) AR E R
REZELH R BRI RER S BRBR A
Pk < P U E ¢ K(iii) BB EE
NEmmERE) -

BERETERTHAEAZTAREINK
RAGLREZHER -

FRFTEIE TR A T B R ARITE

2021

—_E-—F
Number of
Exercise price options
TEE BRERE
HK$ ‘000
BT T4
At beginning of year REY] — -
Granted during the year FAEEE 0.125 38,700
At end of year RER 0.125 38,700

No share options were exercised nor expired during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

RBE-FT-_—F=ZA=1T—HLLF
B rEEREETEXEAR(CT
:EEE‘E B /ﬂ]\{\) o

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. BRHESHE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share RS AR M ARIT R IRE R I TR E &
options outstanding as at the end of reporting period are as ITEERE ST -
follows:
2021 —E-—fF
Number of
options  Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE* TEH
‘000 HK$
¥ 14 & T
6,250 0.125 27 November 2020 to 26 November 2021
TEZEF+—-—A=ZttHEZBE=—H+—-A=tXH
6,250 0.125 27 November 2021 to 26 November 2022
B+ —A=Zt++tHE=-E=-=f+—-—HA=+7H
26,200 0.125 27 November 2020 to 26 November 2022

—E-Ef+-HA=-+tAE=-B=-—F+—-H=+XxA

38,700

No share options were outstanding under the Scheme as at NZBE_TF=A=+—H0 & TIE
31 March 2020. ERARITERA B

The fair value of the share options granted during the year FARENBREAFELAR
was approximately HK$1,067,000 (HK$0.0276 each) (2020: 1,067, ooo,%n(tf‘ﬁ% B% #0.02767%5
Nil), of which the Group recognised a share option expense TNZZE_ZF &) EFEAEER
of HK$975,000 (2020: Nil) (note 6) during the year ended ﬁi_gi—i A=+— ElJtﬁF*ﬁE
31 March 2021. 2 i AR # B £ 975,0005% 7T (=

F o E)(MEEe) ©
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
Binomial Option Pricing Model taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
—E—%=A=+—H

BRRESE (&)
RERRL 2 AR EEBREN AT
B EA-ANEEERARKL A
HEETTAE  EREREROBRED
fER TR R M5 o TR DI P AR M ¥
ABE

2021
—E-—F
Dividend yield (%) % B (%) 0.00%

Historical volatility (%) & 52K 18 (%) 54.35%-66.14%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 3 B K K (%) 0.09%-0.14%
Expected life of options (year) & AR R TE HA EARR (4F) 2

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
38,700,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 38,700,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$3,870,000 and
share premium of HK$967,500 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 38,700,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 3.96% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

I B0 B A% (B & TT)

HERREBREEGRAAF

0.125

BREERSRIABE =ZFHE L IR
RER  HAERHBANTEREASN—E
B o JEHTR IR [ BRI SE R 08 ¥R
KEZABEFRENRR BT —E/E
BRAER o

WIRE B BB BEAAL
FEEES -

RBEBHBR - ARARFTETAH
38,700,000 B ARITEEREIE - LA R
AIERTMERZEET  BEITEMARIT
165 S A% 48 16 B B35 77 38,700,000 B AR &
AIFE SN E B Ax - FB AN AN 73,870,000
T 0 MR R (E A967,500/8 7T (k%
BITRISZAI) ©

RIEUFHEHRER AH - RRBRG

21~ 745 38,700,00017 i AR 1718 BE AR AE
HRZBARRREEITRDA)3.96% °

TR FFR
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29. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 95
and 96 of the financial statements.

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

29.

30.

(ER]

RAFRERBEFE  ARERETHE
REZFHERNM B RAFEISKIH
AR BHRANZET -

MERERERWE
METHELENEEES

Interest-bearing
bank and other

borrowings

(excluding bank

overdrafts)

FTESRTR

HEE

(FafFE

SRITEX)

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFNHA—H 417,917

Changes from financing cash flows BRERSRES 9,098

Foreign exchange movement HMNEE 2 & (21,954)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZEZZEF=HA=+—HEK

—E-ETFOMA—H 405,061

Changes from financing cash flows BMEREREE 45,402

Foreign exchange movement SNEE B E) 22,789

At 31 March 2021 R-_E_—F=A=+—H 473,252
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31.

32.

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leased certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to twenty years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

31.
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31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

iRk

REBEEHHEA
AEEREELEHOLZHEEETY
X BEHOR/M—FE_THFTF-
BEAN - FAVER — R ESKIEP R E
& YHERRBERMRLERHBR
4 o

RZTE-_—FE=A=+—8 K£ER
BEHAPI M REEERY &
ARFEHRERBWFBEBN WO T B EHE
2

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAETT

Within one year —F R 28,216 24,440
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERF

(BREEEMT) 81,020 85,114

After five years hF & 106,038 115,667

215,274 225,221

No contingent rental receivable was recognised by the
Group during the year (2020: Nil).

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

32.

ARENAFEYBEIALANERES
—E-TE ) o

—= =

Z3
AEEP|RE R U T AR

2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Contracted, but not provided for: BEl 4B KRB
Capital contributions payable to equity — FEfHZ A F(EF AIES
investments at fair value through Rz E 2 ER
profit or loss & 4,592 5,837
Leasehold improvements HEEE 4,771 7,274
9,363 13,111
HEFREBREEARAR —T-—FFH
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

In

addition to the transactions and balances detailed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following material transactions with related
parties during the year:

33. MEALXRS

R FMBHREREME T FLZ
R REHRIN > THRFRARE
BEEEATETZIEARS

2021 2020
—E=-—F —TTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT T
Management fee income RE—EEEARZ
from a related company ERBIWA (i) 265 55
Management fee income RE—EEE AR
from an associate ERBIWA 0) 280 474
Management fee to an ) — B E AT A
associate ERE (ii) — 21
Rental income from a related KB —[EREEARZ
company Eae WA (iii) 306 306
Rental income from an RKE—FHEERRZ
associate HEa WA (iv) — 543
Notes: B3

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The management fee was charged by reference to actual costs
incurred for the services provided by the Group.

In the prior year, the management fee was charged by
reference to actual costs incurred for the services provided by
an associate.

During the vyear, rental income was charged to FCL at
HK$26,000 (2020: HK$26,000) per month. Mr. Tjia is a
director of and has beneficial interests in the Company and
FCL, while Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William is a director of the
Company and FCL.

In the prior year, rental income was charged to an associate
at HK$209,000 per month as mutually agreed between the
parties.

(i) ERBETSRAEBIRMEZ R
EEZEBERAMUEE

(ii) REF EBBN2BR—EEER
AR 2 RS FTE &£ 2 BERA AN
L ER ©

(i) AFEAWRREEESAES
AA26,0008 T (Z T T F :
26,0007 7T) - ML EABE QAR
BEAEZESTHE TSR
[EE - VNG )53 ¥-F=3
ZES-

vy RE-FE LITHNETHE W
—fEEEARRERESEAE A
209,0007% 7T ©




33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

The

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group's balances with associates as at
the end of the reporting period are included in note
15 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s balances with related
companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 17 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s balances with non-controlling
shareholders as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 24(b) to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors and the chief executive of the Company.
Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8
to the financial statements.

related party transactions above also constituted

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes to Financial Statements
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33. BEALRF (BA)

(b)

BB ALTHARGEE 2 HE8R

R¥RE IR - NEE RS R F
2 RER BRI R AR MRS

RIBEHR - NEEREREQF
P e N e e A WA

REREHIR - A B B IR
R BEHFBENMBERKRME
24(b) °

AEBTEEBABZHM

AEBET2EEABR/RARAZ

EENREFRTHRAE - HEHS
HIER SRR ESARKE

EXH R 2 BN LR ZEIEK TR
AIFVAAEREZFHERERS -

HERREBREEGRAAF

TR FFR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34. REHEASTZEMT A

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T~
follows:

2021 —B-—F
Financial assets TREE

Financial
assets at fair
value through

RBEHR ZEERITAREEN

profit or
loss —
designated as Financial
such upon assets at
initial amortised
recognition cost Total
BOFETA
BRENERE
EE — RY
MEREEE REHRAG
AUER EzeBMEE HMER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBT FET FET
Equity investments at fair value X AF(ETABZEE
through profit or loss 2 RERE 125,224 — 125,224
Due from associates JE W Bt i A &) — 3,220 3,220
Accounts receivable JE Y BR IR — 22,536 22,536
Financial assets included in FTATERUA -
prepayments, deposits and e REAM KK
other receivables (note 21) EHH 2 REE
(B3E21) — 18,611 18,611
Pledged deposits [RELEURER N — 2,500 2,500
Restricted cash PR HI3E & — 4,033 4,033
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEESEZBEIEAR — 20,372 20,372
125,224 71,272 196,496
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34, BEHE sz A (F)
(Continued)
2021 (Continued) ZEZ -5 (&)
Financial liabilities o= =
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHEBATE
ZEmasE
HK$'000
FET
Accounts payable FETBRIE 5,824
Financial liabilities included in other payables AAHMENRERESERD
and accruals THREE 67,166
Due to associates FETEE & N A 3,069
Due to a related company FEf — IR A A 13,054
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREMEER 485,462
574,575

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. REFHESzESR I A (8)
(Continued)
2020 —EC-EHF
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss —
designated as
such upon Financial assets
initial at amortised
recognition cost Total
BAFERA
BEaEErN 2
BE — R
IRFERIIEE 1R RS
RBULER =EremEE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAIT FH T
Equity investments at fair value IZRAF(EFFAEZEE
through profit or loss Z IR E 124,931 — 124,931
Due from associates JiE Y B 28 1 A — 5,242 5,242
Due from related companies JiE Y A 1 A — 1,291 1,291
Accounts receivable JiE g BR T8 — 34,442 34,442
Financial assets included in FTATE A
prepayments, deposits and e KA M EWGK
other receivables (note 21) ENSREE
(M$3E21) — 27,474 27,474
Pledged deposits [REEREE- — 3,500 3,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReEHEER — 20,099 20,099
124,931 92,048 216,979
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35.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. BERE S 2@ T A (F)
(Continued)
2020 (Continued) —EZF ()
Financial liabilities eWmas
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HHEHEN AT =
ZeBAasE
HK$'000
AT
Accounts payable FETERIR 8,160
Financial liabilities included in other payables and &t A E At fE {718 N B s+ B A R
accruals cRBE 57,338
Due to associates JE {5 & N | 8,280
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMEE 422,973
496,751
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. €@ T A AFERLFERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's AEE 2RI A(TEERRESE
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HAERAFENEHRIA) MEREER
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as NFENT
follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values

IREE AFE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—F--% ZT-THF —B--F ZTTF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT AT FHT AT
Financial assets cREE

Equity investments at fair 1R AF(EFFABRE
value through profit or 2 RIERE
loss 125,224 124,931 125,224 124,931

Financial liabilities E =R
Interest-bearing bank and &t BIRITREMES
other borrowings (with (& FERIEAEED)
non-current portion) 248,390 259,050 248,390 259,050

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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35.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to
the directors of the Company. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the directors of the Company.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts
due from/to associates and related companies, and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings classified as
current liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

35.

TMTAZAFERDFERT
(%)
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been
estimated using market-based valuation techniques based on
assumptions that are supported by observable market prices
or rates. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, certain unlisted
equity investments carry out property redevelopment
projects and the fair values of the properties under these
projects are considered in the fair value assessment by the
directors; while an unlisted investment carries a listed equity
investment and its quoted market price is also considered in
the fair value assessment by the directors. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and
strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple for
each comparable company identified. The multiple s
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then adjusted for considerations such as
illiquidity and size differences between the comparable
companies based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. A discount for lack of marketability
("DLOM") is applied in the fair value assessment,
representing the amounts of premium and discounts
determined by the Group that market participants would
take into account when pricing the investments. The
adjusted multiple is applied to the corresponding equity and
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
techniques, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in
fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period. The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings repayable beyond one year after the end of the
reporting period as assessed on an individual borrowing
basis have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

35.
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments, together with a
guantitative sensitivity analysis, as at 31 March 2021 and

35. SMTAZAFERAFER
(%)
ATAR-Z-—FR-F-_FTFZA
S+ AYSRTARBZEATTH
RHARERBERERRRESN

2020:

Valuation
techniques

ik 18 £ 1l

Significant unobservable
inputs

EATARERALE

Range/weighted
average

8 BE, 0 #E P 19 B

Sensitivity of fair value to the
input
D EHEABE 2 BBRE

Unlisted equity
investments

FFEMERERE
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Investment method

REZE

Residual method

BEE

Direct comparison
approach

BERLEE

Asset approach
BEE

Estimated rental value (per
square metre per month)
and revisionary yield

hEEeEE(BTHAKE
R RiEHEREE

Average market unit selling
price

TG EMEE

Market unit selling price
T B EE

Market unit selling price
T B EE

Discount for lack of
marketability
BERZ 5 R AT

RMB171 to RMB269
and 5.75% to 6.00%
(2020: RMB168 to
RMB258 and 5.50%
to 5.75%)
ARBITMITEARE
2697%&5 75%i

6.00% (T T F :
AR#168TLE
AR¥2587T % 5.50%
£575%)

HK$23,150
(2020: N/A)
23, 150;%71
(ZF=TF:
Tmﬁﬁ)

RMB116,500 (2020:

RMB105,700)

AR #116,50070
(ZZT=Z5F:

AER#105,7007T)

N/A (2020:
HK$22,400)
i A
(ZZT=Z5F:
22,4007 7T)

18.00%

(2020: 32.30%)
18.00%

(ZZT =5
32.30%)

1% increase/decrease in estimated
rental value and reversionary yield
would result in increase/decrease in
fair value by HK$341,000
(2020: HK$313,000)

ﬁiéﬁﬁﬁ{gfﬁ&@ 3 s SR 0,

L1%EEHA Wéii‘ﬂu/fw\
341,000 L (Z T =2 F :
313,000/ 7T)

1% increase/decrease in average
market unit selling price would
result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$1,100,000
(2020: N/A)

ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ%bﬂ/ﬁ@%%ﬁ%%

ﬂ?ﬁiﬁbu/}ﬂzdw 100,000/ 7T
(* Z_TFTEA)

1% increase/decrease in market unit
selling price would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$46,000 (2020: HK$70,000)

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%bu/ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

AR5 46,0007 7T
(ZZ=Z% : 70,0007 7T)

N/A (2020: 1% increase/decrease in
market unit selling price would
result in increase/decrease by
HK$555,000)

THEA(ZE_ZF : mHEL
EEEIN R 1% g E s
B 4> 555,0007% 7T)

1% increase/decrease in discount for
lack of marketability would result in
decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$118,000 (2020: HK$223,000)

R THIZ B BT AR
M 1% GG BN TERD, 8N
118,000/ T (Z T ZT4F ¢
223,000 L)




35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2021

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k M &

31 March 2021
—ZE-—F=A=+—H

TMITREZAFERAFERE

(&)
DR ERA

TRIIFAEESR T ANRFEFE

F4

BAFETENEE
R-E-—F=ZHA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AVEFEERANER
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RNER EBEXTERE EATTEE

i ZRE WARE WARE
(& B1—) (&B1=) (A=) =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET

Equity investments at fair ~ RAFEFABZREZ
value through profit of g &

loss — — 125,224 125,224

As at 31 March 2020

R-ZBE-_ZEF=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

REEHECANER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
KR  BEAAEHE EAFAHE
M52 WE WABIR WABIE
(& 51—) (& A1=) (& A1=) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Equity investments at fair AT ETABZREZ
value through profit of g &
loss — — 124,931 124,931

MERREBREERERAT —T-—FFH
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

TMTAZAFERLFERT
(&)

DNFERA (&)
BAFETENEE (&

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRARRN=NTEFAEZZHNOT :
during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
=B —F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Equity investments — unlisted: RERE —FLWm:
At beginning of year REA 124,931 114,780
Purchases A 6,173 34,357
Disposals & — (16,950)
Total loss recognised in the statement R EZZEANERK
of profit or loss E1E4a%E (5,880) (14,806)
Total gain recognised in other B E A 2 TH W 2 B ER
comprehensive income W 4258 — 7,550
At end of year RER 125,224 124,931

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s financial liabilities not
measured at fair value but for which fair values were
disclosed included those interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings with non-current portion of HK$248,390,000
(2020: HK$259,050,000). The fair values of these financial
liabilities disclosed were measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are unobservable (Level 3).

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

MN-E-—F=A=+—HB  x&EE>
W EARNFEFEERLBEAFEZ
B EREZSENSHI G BRI
N E £ B 248,390,000/8 7T (ZE-F
1 259,050,000/87) - ZEEmaE
P 5 2 A FETERHERMrmat
£ MZHEERMFPZEAREAFEE
HEBRFEZTEH ABURY N AT EE
(BRN=) -

FRN cHMEENEBREEZHA—H
LRl — BT EAFEFEZEE - D
EEREYEBEANR = (T _FF
) o




36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, equity
investments, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable, accounts payable, deposits and other receivables,
balances with associates and related companies, and other
payables and certain accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations with floating interest rates in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are disclosed in
note 25 to the financial statements. Other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group do not have material interest
rate risk. Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts, other
interest-bearing loans, cash and cash equivalents, and short
term deposits are stated at cost and are not revalued on a
periodic basis. Floating-rate interest income and expense are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

The nominal interest rates of the financial instruments
approximate to their respective effective interest rates.

36.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEEMEEREREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) Fl == b ()

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRETKRIIEEMEBRBETEZNE
reasonably possible change in the Hong Kong dollar interest AT REEBRRATERLEZ (BB
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's FENFRMERFE) WB T R A gL
loss before tax and equity (through the impact on floating REERB 2 GURE -

rate borrowings).

Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) in Increase/
(decrease) in loss before (decrease) in
basis points tax equity*
2EEEH FRBIATE 18 M
(TH)  ®A /() (R ) *
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T FE T
2021 —E-—f
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (4,754) —
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 4,754 —
2020 —E-THE
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (3,817) —
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 3,817 —
* Excluding retained profits * TREFERE &
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2021 and
2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

As at 31 March 2021

36.
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MHEREERREREE(E)

EERR

AEEERER REBAENE=T
HEITR S - RBAKENBER - AR
REBGRETRZINES - HAKS
EERERFR  HAEE W K
SESRHBEERBRAHRNER  MA
SENERERIL NEX -

REE R TEFLEER

TERETERAEBEEERRNEREEZ
=heaEERR (E2RaBBEERS
i BRIEEAM RIS ERET N EEEINK
AREZBH) UWER - E-—FK-F
—EFEZ A=+ HELERELE -
2y meEALREEMBETE -

R-E-—F=ZHA=+—8H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-@AE
HiEEBRX 2HEHEERLX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Tota
F-RER FEoBER E=RBR  fEihE et
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
Accounts receivable* FE Y BR 1R — — — 27,094 27,094
Financial assets included &M ATEMFRIE « &e &
in prepayments, EfbEBGRIERN @5
deposits and other EE
receivables
— Normal** — IEE** 18,611 — — — 18,611
— Doubtful** — RER** — — 23,309 — 23,309
Due from associates** € /NI 3,220 — — — 3,220
Pledged deposits 2HEBER
— Not yet past due — K@ H 2,500 — — — 2,500
Restricted cash ZRHE
— Not yet past due — K@ H 4,033 — — — 4,033
Cash and cash RekR&FEIER
equivalents
— Not yet past due — K@ E 20,372 — — — 20,372
48,736 — 23,309 27,094 99,139
HEFREBREEARAR —T-—FFH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020

36. IREMEEBERBE (&)

FERR (&)
RERERITEFEER (&)

R-ZE-FEHF=A=+-—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@AE
HiEEIEX S HITEHEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FMEBR FoER 2 E=RE  #tFE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Accounts receivable* FE Y BR IR * — — — 36,134 36,134
Financial assets included T ATERRIE - B& &
in prepayments, Eith JEUGRIER & @b
deposits and other BE
receivables
— Normal** — [EF** 27,474 — — — 27,474
— Doubtful** — RER** — — 17,137 — 17,137
Due from associates** FEUHE & N E) 5,242 — — — 5,242
Due from related FEUR R E N F)
companies** 1,291 — — — 1,291
Pledged deposits e
— Not yet past due — k8 Hf 3,500 — — — 3,500
Cash and cash RekBeEFHEER
equivalents
— Not yet past due — k8 Hf 20,099 — — — 20,099
57,606 — 17,137 36,134 110,877
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified * MAKEERBERENERERME

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from associates and
related companies is considered as “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
have a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered as

“doubtful”.
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, bank loans and other interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group's policy is to ensure the matching
of maturity of its financial liabilities against that of its
financial assets, and the maintenance of a current ratio,
which is defined as current assets over current liabilities, at
above one so as to enhance stable liquidity.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

36.
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MHEREERREREE(E)

AEERAEEERDESHRE TALE
2ECHEROAR - ZTAZEESR
EMTARERMEE (MEKRER) 25
HERARBEEXH BH2ERS

=
JILEE °

AEBZBRIREBNBRITES
RITERLEMF REEUAREREZ
FEMMEIE M Z i o AEEZBE
ERRESHAEERSREE YA
MBI MRERRBL R (RER/RD
BERMURDABZHER)BR—MUE
ZKF - AMBREZARBDES °

RBEYR - AEEZERABGERES
FIMMERBIR AR Z BB R T

2021
—EB-—fF
On demand or
less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
RERHD
R+=@A —ZHE #aEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR FET FET
Accounts payable FETERIA 5,824 — 5,824
Financial liabilities included T AE i (< I8 & FE AT
in other payables and BRzaBAE
accruals 67,166 — 67,166
Due to associates JE 1< Bt & 2 A 3,069 — 3,069
Due to a related company JEfJEHE QA 13,054 — 13,054
Interest-bearing bank and I ERITREMEE
other borrowings 289,569 243,102 532,671
378,682 243,102 621,784

HERREBREEGRAAF
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

REE € @ ()

MHREREERRERBER (R)
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2020
—TEF
On demand or
less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
RERKY DR
+=M@A —ZERF HBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Accounts payable FETBRIE 8,160 — 8,160
Financial liabilities included — &F A E b fE{ 5038 & BT
in other payables and BRzamAaE
accruals 57,338 — 57,338
Due to associates JFE 1<) B & A A 8,280 — 8,280
Interest-bearing bank and  FtERITREMEE
other borrowings 213,708 270,455 484,163
287,486 270,455 557,941
Capital management BEXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
accounts payable, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to associates and a related company, and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, less pledged deposits, and cash
and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the Company.

AEBEAERZEZRE  DRER
SEREMEBIRSERERELE K
MRERBRBZEARNLE  UXFEBKE
- FRMBEAZRREE -

REBRELEEBR S8 TEEE
RNEBIERFAE - BEHNARERN
@i ARETEABRMRRIRE 2K
B MRREIKEEARSNEITHRGD o &
2T —FZA=+-—HER-Z_-Z
FZA=T—HILFEAN IEAEER
EEMBENEEE  BELIET -

AEENBAEAABLL X (EREFERK
AEARIMBERFH) EEERZEBER -
ERFEEBEEMNERE  RENIEA
NEFHER - ENBERR R —HRE
RAEFIE - AREHBIRTT REAMEER
EEAERMEE RIS FEEAR - &
AIEARBEE ARG -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEMEEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) EXREE (H)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods R|ERR  ERBELERAT -

were as follows:

2021 2020

—B-—F —E-BF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Accounts payable e ARTE 5,824 8,160

Other payables and accruals H 5/ R ERT B A 83,630 71,260

Due to associates ANE NG 3,069 8,280

Due to a related company JE —EEE R 13,054 —
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMEE

borrowings 485,462 422,973

Less: Pledge deposits B BEIERFR (2,500) (3,500)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IReRIReEEER (20,372) (20,099)

Net debt B1RF 5 568,167 487,074

Capital N 1,589,401 1,520,705

Capital and net debt BRREIEFRE 2,157,568 2,007,779

Gearing ratio BEARBELE 26% 24%
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. AT ZHBRAEK

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BERRERRAR R ZHHBARREXZ
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BAERWT
2021 2020
=F=—F —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&E 630,893 569,053
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Due from a related company JE U — Al B s A — 42
Prepayments TET5IR 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EBEIEE 813 792
Total current assets RBEERE 814 835
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals et &R 4,821 1,337
Due to subsidiaries JERTHI B A A 57,907 62,744
Interest-bearing other borrowings ATEHMEER 78,060 —
Total current liabilities MEBERRE 140,788 64,081
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFHE (139,974) (63,246)
Net assets AEFE 490,919 505,807
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 97,788 97,788
Reserves (note) R (P 5E) 393,131 408,019
Total equity e G 490,919 505,807
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. A2 Rz MM R K ()
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRFEBEREZLOT -
Retained
Share Capital profits/
premium Contributed redemption Share option (accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
BEXEE RERA/
R RER ERER wE BRERE (RIEBR) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR TET TET
At 1 April 2019 -"WFmA—H 243,040 155,531 14,457 - 15,582 428,610
Loss for the year and total AFEEERAFELE
comprehensive loss for BEEE
the year — — — — (10,811) (10,811)
Final 2019 dividend paid ~ Eff ZZ—FREKS — — — — (4,890) (4,890)
Special 2019 dividend paid Eff =Z—FHFIKSE — — — — (4,890) (4,890)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 RZZ=ZF
April 2020 =A=+-BRk
—T-TFNA-A 243,040 155,531 14,457 — (5,009) 408,019
Loss for the year and total AFEEFHERAFERHE
comprehensive loss for EEEE
the year — — — — (15,863) (15,863)
Equity-settled share option  JARR#ZE & BB R EZ HE
arrangement — — — 975 — 975
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ—F
=A=+—H 243,040 155,531 14,457 975 (20,872) 393,131
BERREREERRAR —TZ—FFRH
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37.

38.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on 21 May 1997
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a distribution may be made out of
the contributed surplus, provided that the Company will be
able to pay its liabilities as they fall due and subsequent to
the distribution, the aggregate amount of its total liabilities,
issued share capital and share premium is less than the
realisable value of its assets.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2021.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBME

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out below.

AEERBERLEVRFEC B ZEENR
BE BEMFEREDSME  #HIWT -

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F ZE-%F —E-NF ZE-)\F —T—+LF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHRT FAETT FHETT FHETT FAETT
REVENUE WA
Continuing operations FEREED 103,799 351,614 259,417 190,783 199,683
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM MR BERBLEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER  FEFr5% A,/
FINANCE COSTS (B518) (34,280) (33,223) 41,094 54,562 36,575
Share of profits and losses of 215 E: & A 7)) A
associates N EE 2,037 (1,790) (4,527) 8,671 1,616
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB RDE R (B1B) (32,243) (35,013) 36,567 63,233 38,191
Income tax expense FTEMmAY (6,659) (2,523) (13,165) (16,198) (35,069)
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AFEEFELLEK
FROM CONTINUING w A, (EE)
OPERATIONS (38,902) (37,536) 23,402 47,035 3,122
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BB
Profit for the year from FFEERRIEEER
discontinued operations i Al — — — — 174,863
(38,902) (37,536) 23,402 47,035 177,985
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company RAREE A (36,738) (35,296) 27,486 47,776 144,934
Non-controlling interests FEER R (2,164) (2,240) (4,084) (741) 33,051
(38,902) (37,536) 23,402 47,035 177,985

HERREBREEGRAAF

TR FFR

227



228

Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

BE BERFERER

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F ZTZTF ZT-NEF ZT-)\F ZT—+tF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FET
Total assets BEE 2,391,039 2,227,228 2,591,964 2,804,205 2,783,058
Total liabilities BEE (804,617)  (711,552)  (944,623) (1,154,401) (1,326,345)
Non-controlling interests TR E 2,979 5,029 3,932 609 (120)
1,589,401 1,520,705 1,651,273 1,650,413 1,456,593
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Trading of Medical Equipment and Home Security and Automation Products

HEBRRERRERZRBEELER

Medical Technologies Limited EE BIFR B2 EZXHFR A Al

Perfect Particulates Purification (“PPP”) medical-grade air purifier is
developed by a team of Hong Kong air quality experts and medical
professionals, which has passed the “AHAM” (United States) and “CNAS”
(China) standards.

PPP is equipped with patented PPP Kill Virus Blue High Efficiency
Particulate Air Filter Sterilisation Technologies to effectively kill the
coronavirus disease, SARS-COV-2 and human pneumonia viruses.

At present, several government departments have adopted
PPP air purifiers to provide a safe, comfortable, clean and
sterile environment for the public.

Perfect Particulates Purification ([ PPP]) Z& gi&éﬁﬁ%’*ﬂﬁ% il
MEBLAERIFRGLEAABAAGE - LOA m
EEREREE RN B B G R A - MW
PPP A & = 7 PPP3R %“émﬁwmlﬂﬁmézm B |1||1
W S BB ST IS R B S B2 A A qﬂ
i RERE - WD A ZEABRATPTER A PPPE RUF{L# -
BQ%TE{/# iﬁT fﬂ/%iﬁrﬂlﬁ”ﬁ&f“

|||
il

|H‘“'
|||II||I
1|||| A 1100
Model : 1100

|||||:“||l

i
|||':“'|||

Medical Technologies Limited was featured in the Gerontech and
Innovation Expo Cum Summit 2020. Intelligent rehabilitation devices
were on display to provide effective assessments and dynamic
training games to the community.

HEEREERESRARAANERMNEEESES2020R LA R
ME R - F%Tﬂj\i%mf\mx&pﬂﬁ&ﬁtﬁ’]ﬁﬁz AIAR o

Deson Innovative Limited ME EERGE AR A T

Surveillance projects involving the planning, technical consulting and equipment supply of closed-
circuit television-video management system were rendered for Windsor House and Hysan Place in
Causeway Bay and the carpark area of HK Science Park in Tai Po.

ERERANBEEEERNS HEBRSLABHMBEFESRE TRAETERZFNMRE  RINE AN
AP o

Hysan Place, Causeway Bay

FERS  WEe

Carpark area of HK Science
Park - Tai Po
RENBEEES

Windsor House, Causeway Bay

EZEHS  RRE
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